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2. MINISTER’S FOREWORD

Pravin Gordhan
Minister of Finance

Eight years after the Great Recession of 2008, the global economy remains weak and growth prospects uncertain. New
geopolitical and socio-economic challenges have emerged that require greater co-operation internationally and higher

levels of commitment by individual countries to tackle domestic problems in partnership with citizens.

Developments such as Brexit, the slowdown in China, the volatility in world markets, the commodity cycle and the rise of
far-right movements and extremism in various parts of the world point to a difficult period ahead. Lower economic growth
has become the new normal. Growth projections by the International Monetary Fund and other forecasters continue to

be adjusted downwards.

These developments throw into sharp focus our need for concrete plans about how to achieve more rapid growth and
how to ensure that it is inclusive and benefits all citizens. This is our responsibility both as government and citizens.
Together we must solve our development challenges.

We have a South African National Development Plan. But more important than our plans is our collective capacity to
implement policies and programmes that will practically address poverty, unemployment and inequality. Decisive
and effective implementation is that much more critical in the current environment of constrained growth and global

uncertainty.

Low economic growth limits the resources available to finance government’s developmental objectives. In this context, we
have been prudent in the management of public finances. Cabinet has been instrumental in ensuring that the budget is
closely aligned with the NDP and that infrastructure investment can continue to be prioritised. Tough decisions have been
taken on the expenditure ceiling for the current MTEF period, while protecting spending on our critical social programmes.
In the year under review, our credit ratings have come under pressure. By working closely with the private sector, civil
society groupings and organised labour, South Africa has retained its investment grade credit rating.

In this spirit of co-operation we will continue to promote inclusive growth through an economic reform agenda, promotion
of job-intensive sectors, investment in our cities and support for rural development.
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The constrained fiscal environment also demands that we ensure that we get value for the money government spends.
Working with four provinces, for example, the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer has achieved savings in spending
on textbooks and learner support and teacher material. There is more that government can do in this area and | have set
the OCPO a target of savings of R25 billion in the medium-term. Savings such as this will enable government to shift funds

towards key areas such as student finance and health services.

Political and economic challenges in the period under review have been a reminder of the role of strong institutions
to build our democracy. The National Treasury is one such institution, with a mandate to ensure stable public finances,
fairness, transparency and accountability, in line with the tenets of the Constitution.

The Constitution is our guide in all that we do and sets the foundation for a transformed society in which all have dignity
and participate meaningfully in the economy. In strengthening the resilience and moral character of the institutions of our
democracy, we enable services to be provided to our people impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias.

| am honored and privileged to serve my country in this portfolio. | would like to express my gratitude to the Director-
General Mr Lungisa Fuzile, for his leadership of the Treasury and for agreeing to extend his appointment. As Deputy Minister
of Finance, Mr Mcebisi Jonas has been a comrade and a valued advisor. | am grateful to the staff of the National Treasury
and all the entities in the “finance family” for their hard work on behalf of the people of South Africa. Let us continue to
build strong and principled institutions that will be our legacy to future generations.

irfister of Finance
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3. DEPUTY MINISTER’S FOREWORD

Mcebisi Jonas
Deputy Minister of Finance

To build on the economic gains that South Africa has made since the dawn of democracy, the country needs a stable
economic environment, strong institutions, a strong and resilient financial system that facilitates meaningful participation
by all, regulatory bodies that protect the integrity of that system and ensure it is fair to all, a revenue authority that is
trusted by the citizenry. All this must be coupled with prudent financial management of state resources.

The "finance family” entities that South Africa has built over the years exist for the purpose of ensuring that government
can create an economically and financially stable country that will meet its developmental objectives.

It is our duty as citizens and government to guard jealously the relative strength and integrity of these institutions so
they can perform their mandates without undue influence. The capacity of the state to deliver a better life for the citizens
depends heavily on strong institutions.

The survival of our democracy depends on entities such as the South African Revenue Service (SARS), the Development
Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA), the Land Bank, the Public Investment Corporation (PIC), the Financial Services Board (FSB),
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), the Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC), the Government Pensions Administration
Agency (GPAA), the South African Special Risks Insurance Association (Sasria) and South African Airways (SAA) outlasting all
of us. The maturity of our democracy will depend on these institutions being able to function and execute their mandates

without fear or favour.

I'would like to highlight some of these. SARS is particularly crucial in collecting the resources that government needs to
fund agreed priorities. We are pleased that SARS has consistently met its revenue targets and we commend them for the
hard work. But to maintain high tax compliance levels and enhance tax morality during hard economic times like the
present, SARS will have to be seen to be above reproach and free from undue influence. Greater care has to be taken to
protect the reputation of the institution so it can improve its effectiveness and maintain public trust that may have been

affected by developments in the year under review.

The FIC's contribution to combating crime and protecting the integrity of our financial system is a crucial one, in the context

of a continent where illicit outflows pose a significant threat to the developmental agenda. In the year under review the

2015/16 | National Treasury



FIC has continued to block monies suspected to have been the proceeds of crime, thanks to its intelligence-gathering
activities. Parliament passed the amended FICA, a crucial piece of legislation that enables our integration into the world
economy and protects the integrity of our countries'financial system and ensures that it's not abused by criminals. We look
forward to this law being finalised.

The Land Bank and the DBSA are good examples of the important role that our development finance institutions can
play in the economy when they are financially stable. The Land Bank is key to government’s agenda of promoting the
agricultural sector into a viable industry that has potential to create jobs even in rural areas. The DBSA explores infrastructure
development opportunities beyond South Africa that will facilitate regional integration.

The PIC continues to make a significant contribution to the transformation of the national economy through its investments
in strategic sectors and increased shareholder activism. Its investment approach is aimed at safeguarding and growing
GEPF members'value beyond retirement, so that those who have worked for the state can be taken care of in their old age.
There have been a number of challenges in the year under review, both economic and political. These challenges
notwithstanding, broadly speaking, the entities in the “finance family” have performed their duties in line with their
mandates and contributed positively to maintaining South Africa’s economic stability. This needs to be maintained in the
future to secure our democracy for future generations.

It has been my pleasure to contribute positively to this economic project. | thank management and staff of the “finance

family”for their work on behalf of South Africa. | wish to thank the Finance Minister for his support and the Director-General
and the staff of National Treasury for putting South Africa first.

Mcebisjdonas
Deputy Minister of Finance
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4. REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Lungisa Fuzile
Director-General

In the World Economic Outlook published in July 2016, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) revised down its forecast for
global GDP growth to 3.1 per cent from 3.2 per cent in April 2016. This underscores the reality of a global economy mired
in a protracted period of slow growth, dubbed secular stagnation by some.

South Africa’s growth forecast was revised down to an even larger degree. The IMF now anticipates growth of only 0.1
per cent in 2016, down from an estimate of 0.6 per cent made only six months earlier. It is increasingly apparent that
domestic factors - structural constraints and low business confidence amongst others — are at the heart of SA's economic
performance. While a recovery in commodity prices would assist, a stronger economic recovery in South Africa —and the
desperately needed jobs that go with it — requires a determined and united response from South Africans themselves.
Some of our economic challenges - skills and electricity shortages or adverse movements in the terms of trade — cannot
be remedied in the short-term. This makes it even more urgent that we focus on the challenges that are within our power
to address — ensuring policy certainty, restoring investor confidence in the durability of our institutions and addressing
structural factors that constrain economic growth.

Low economic growth leads to shortfalls in revenue. If nothing is done to adjust the fiscal path, fiscal consolidation could
be derailed as national debt continues to rise. No country can claim true sovereignty if it increasingly relies on debt to fund

its programmes.

To ensure that its fiscal objectives are achieved even in the face of economic slowdown, government lowered its
expenditure ceiling and announced tax measures to boost revenue. All this was done in a manner that sought to balance
the need to protect growth and jobs on the one hand, while also preserving spending on key social programmes on the
other hand.

These are tough times! Government must do more with less. Accordingly, the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer
(CPO) has instituted a range of measures aimed at reducing the cost at which government buys goods such as learner and
teacher support materials, and services such as travel and accommodation. A Central Supplier Database for Government
was established on 1 September 2015. Over 100 000 businesses had registered on the system by 1 April 2016.
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The CPO also launched the eTender portal on 1 April 2015, a web-based platform to advertise bids and to publish bid
notices, amendments and awards. The eTender will improve transparency and save costs for government. As these savings
are realised, new resources could then be allocated for core public services such as education and health.

The cities are already centres of economic activity where the majority of our population live. To a large extent, our efforts
to achieve economic transformation, growth and social inclusion depend on how we reform the urban economy. Through
its City Support Programme, the National Treasury has assisted cities to leverage private sector investment in areas such
as infrastructure and public transport. We have also finalised a toolkit for the Cities Infrastructure Delivery Management
System, which will assist cities with planning and implementing infrastructure projects.

National Treasury also plays an active role in strengthening international co-operation. Ratification of the BRICS Contingent
Reserve Agreement’s Articles of Association has been finalised, as well as the Articles of Agreement establishing the New
Development Bank (NDB). The National Treasury, on behalf of the South African Government, is working towards setting

up of the NDB Africa Regional Centre in Johannesburg.

The main challenge in the period under review was the heightened risk of South Africa losing its investment grade credit
rating. This risk underscores the urgency with which we should implement the actions and reforms required to reinvigorate
the economy. Through working with business and labour, we have averted a downgrade, but we must redouble our
efforts in the period ahead, focusing on improving our growth prospects.

Under trying economic and political conditions, the National Treasury has proven its resilience and value to the South African
economy. | am grateful to the staff for their support and their dedication in making a contribution to our country. | do not take
for granted the personal sacrifice required at times to do this work. | am grateful to Minister Gordhan for his exemplary and
unerring leadership, to the deputy minister for his wise counsel and to both of them for their loyalty to the nation.

Director-Géneral
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY
FORTHE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following.

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The annual financial statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the

relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements
made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human
resources'information and the Annual Financial Statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources’
information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Accountingf Officer

Lungisa Fuzile

ol
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. Vision

The National Treasury is the custodian of the nation’s financial resources. We hold ourselves accountable to the nation to
discharge our responsibilities professionally and with humility, with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis and advice and in the execution of our financial management
responsibilities. We aim to realise the full potential of South Africa’s economy and people and to mobilise the resources of

the state, business enterprises and the wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect.

6.2. Mission and objectives

The National Treasury aims to promote economic development, good governance, social progress and rising living
standards through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable and sustainable management of South Africa’s public
finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based empowerment, progressive realisation of human rights and
the elimination of poverty. We are responsible for preparing a sound and sustainable national budget and an equitable
division of resources among the three spheres of government. We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently
and to manage the government’s financial assets and liabilities soundly. We promote transparency and effective financial
management.

6.3. Values

As custodian of the nation’s financial resources, the National Treasury acknowledges the authority of Parliament through
whom we are accountable to the nation. We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive continually to

improve the quality, accuracy and reliability of our service delivery.

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of choice, we invest in the education and training of
our staff, we cultivate a learning and consultative environment, we make use of the best available technological support
and we aim to mobilise the full potential of our people.

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues, we act transparently and with integrity, showing respect and

demonstrating fairness and objectivity. In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the South African public

has placed in us.

2015/16 | National Treasury



7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The National Treasury’s mandate is to promote the national government’s fiscal policy and to coordinate macroeconomic
policy, intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations, manage the preparation of the budget, and to ensure that revenue
and expenditure, assets and liabilities, public entities and constitutional institutions are managed in a transparent and

effective manner.

Parliamentary service

As the political principal of the department, the Minister of Finance regards collaboration and engagement with Parliament
as vital. Consequently, National Treasury continued interactions with parliamentary committees during the period under
review. These included the Standing Committee on Finance (SCoF); the Standing Committee on Appropriations (SCoA);
Select Committee on Finance (SeCoF) and Select Committee on Appropriations (SeCoA). Other committees also include

the Standing Committee on Public Accounts and all other relevant portfolio committees in Parliament.

The Parliamentary Service Office (PSO) is at the core of maintaining this relationship. The PSO is also a vehicle through
which financial policies and pieces of legislation are presented to Parliament for consideration and approval.

During the period under review the PSO coordinated work processes between policy makers and public representatives.

Information continued to flow between the Ministry through Cabinet to Parliament and vice versa.

Other clients of this office include but are not limited to:
« Members of Parliament
Parliamentary Committees
+ Parliamentary Administrative Staff
- Civil society institutions
Members of the public.

The PSO also maintains collegial and cooperative relationships on behalf of the Ministry with all parliamentary political
structures as well as offices of the Presiding Officers, the Secretary to Parliament and Leader of Government Business.
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
(ORGANOGRAM)

ER N

PRAVIN GORDHAN MCEBISI JONAS LUNGISA FUZILE
MINISTER OF FINANCE DEPUTY MINISTER OF FINANCE DIRECTOR-GENERAL

NN
NN

11. ANDREW DONALDSON
ACTING HEAD: GOVERNMENT TECHNICAL ADVISORY CENTRE (GTAC)
- Technical Assistance Unit

+ Public Private Partnership Unit
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- Media Liaison & Communications

Legal Services
- Legislation

Internal Audit Function
- Chief Risk Officer

1. STADI MNGOMEZULU

HEAD: CORPORATE SERVICES

- Strategic Projects & Support
Human Resources Management

- Chief Financial Officer
Information & Communications

5. KENNETH BROWN

HEAD: CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICE
- Transversal Contracting

+ SCM Policy, Norms and Standards
- Strategic Procurement

+ SCM Client Support

8. MICHAEL SACHS

HEAD: BUDGET OFFICE

+ Expenditure Planning

+ Public Finance Statistics

+ International Development

Coordination

Technology + SCM Information, Communication « Fiscal Policy
and Technology « Public Entities Governance Unit
2. ANTHONY JULIES + SCM Governance, Monitoring and - Public Sector Remuniration Unit
HEAD: ASSET & LIABILITY MANAGEMENT Compliance
- Sectoral Oversight 9.JAYCE NAIR
Liability Management 6. DONDO MOGAJANE ACTING HEAD: OFFICE OF THE
Financial Operations HEAD: PUBLIC FINANCE ACCOUNTANT-GENERAL

- Strategy & Risk Management
- Governance & Financial Analysis

3. MALUJENG NGQALENI,
HEAD: INTERGOVERNMENTAL
RELATIONS

Local Government Budget Analysis
Intergovernmental Policy & Planning

Provincial & Local Government
Infrastructure

Provincial Budget Analysis

- Protection Services

- Economic Services

+ Administrative Services

- Education & Related Departments

& Labour

« Health & Social Development
« Urban Development &

Infrastructure

- National Capital Projects
- Project Management Unit

- Capacity Building

« MFMA Implementation

« Accounting Support & Integration
« Internal Audit Support

+ Risk Management

+ Technical Support Services

- Governance Monitoring &

Compliance

+ Specialised Audit Services
- Financial Systems
- Integrated Financial Management

NT
ANNUAL
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Neighbourhood Development Unit 7. ISMAIL MOMONIAT Systems (IFMS)
HEAD: TAX & FINANCIAL SECTOR
4. MMAKGOSHI PHETLA-LEKHETHE = POLICY 10. MONALE RATSOMA

HEAD: INTERNATIONAL & REGIONAL
ECONOMIC POLICY
« African Economic Integration

International Finance & Development

- Global and Emerging Markets
- Country and Thematic Analysis

- Financial Sector Development
- Financial Services

- Financial Stability

+ Economic Tax Analysis

+ Legal Tax Design

HEAD: ECONOMIC POLICY

+ Modelling & Forecasting

+ Microeconomic policy

+ Macroeconomic policy

+ Regulatory Impact Assessment
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9. PUBLICENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER

-~ ¢
S DB ‘, \ PUBLIC INVESTMENT AND FISCAL

AND FISCAL
Accounting Standarts Board Development Bank CORPORATION COMMISSION

of Southern Africa

?"FAISOmbud

Office of the Ombud for Financial Services Providers

“GEPF sas

your investment, your future
covering the|

9. v vars P
P2 Department:

_33 @» REPUBLIC OF SOUTHARRIGA 2" At Your Service

LAND BANK

We stand by you

Pension Funds Adjudicator

n A — —
DA SOUTH AFRICAN l?—.l:la I

AIRWAYS OFFICE OF THE %ﬂpgmé\
TAX OM B U D BANKS DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Y financial intelligence centre
S REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
@

Seventeen entities report to the Minister of Finance through governance arrangements that give them autonomy but also
enable them to align their strategies with government policy. Seven of these entities - the South African Revenue Service
(SARS), the Office of the Tax Ombud (OTO), the Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC), the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), the
Co-operative Banks Development Agency (CBDA), the Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC) and the Independent Regulatory
Board for Auditors (IRBA) — receive transfers from the National Treasury.

The remaining ten are self-funded and generate their own revenue — the Financial Services Board (FSB), the Financial Advisory
and Intermediary Services Ombud (FAIS Ombud), the Office of the Pension Fund Adjudicator (OPFA), the Government Pensions
Administration Agency (GPAA), the Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF), the Development Bank of Southern Africa
(DBSA), the Public Investment Corporation (PIC), the Land and Agricultural Development Bank of South Africa (Land Bank), South
African Airways (SAA) and the South African Special Risks Insurance Association (SASRIA). Each entity develops and reports on its
own strategic and corporate plan. The commentary below on the performance of the 17 entities describes the broad approach
of each and how its work relates to the National Treasury’s strategic objectives which are in turn aimed at attaining the goals of

the National Development Plan.
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SOUTH AFRICAN REVENUE SERVICE (SARS)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The mandate of SARS since its inception, in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (Act No. 34 of 1997), is to
collect all revenue due to the state and to support Government in meeting its key growth and developmental objectives
by facilitating legitimate trade, protecting South African ports of entry and eliminating illegal trade and tax evasion.

SARS has collected R1.0699 trillion in taxes. This exceeds the R1.0697 trillion target by R154.07 million set out in this
year's budget speech by the Minister of Finance. Achieving the target of a trillion rand is the first for South Africa
and SARS.

Key to this accomplishment is the enhancement of the entity’s operating model which has started transforming
SARS into an organisation that is adapting to a changing global environment and refocusing the organisation on the
execution of its mandate: that of collecting all revenue that is due to the fiscus.

Despite South Africa facing declining GDP growth, tax revenue collections have outperformed the economy,
representing a growth of 8.5% from the 2014/15 fiscal year, and increasing the estimated tax to GDP ratio from 25.8%
in Budget 2015, to 26.3% as projected in Budget 2016. This level of tax extraction moved closer to the levels obtained
during the commodity boom cycles in the mid 2000s.
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OFFICE OF THE TAX OMBUD (OTO)

This year marks three years since the inception of the Office of the Tax Ombud as established under the Tax Administration
(Act No. 28 of 2011) (TAA). Section 16 (1) of the TAA gives the Tax Ombud a mandate to review and address any complaint
by a taxpayer regarding a service, procedural or administrative matter arising from the application of a provision of a tax act
by SARS. The Tax Ombud as appointed by the Minister of Finance is expected to discharge his/her mandate independently
in terms of section 16 (2), which provides for fair, free and effective procedures in resolving complaints.

In fulfilling his/her mandate, the Tax Ombud strives to promote fairness and impartiality, to ensure that taxpayers are
treated equally in the tax system and increase the level of tax compliance so that, in turn, more resources will be available
for socio-economic and infrastructural development.

More than 80% of tax complaints received are in favour of the taxpayer.

The OTO attended to more than 2000 complaints from taxpayers.

Utilisation of the OTO by individual taxpayers continues to increase as we promote and create awareness about its

existence, using different communication channels.

The website is regularly updated and has been improved to promote usability. Educational material about the services

of the OTO is continually distributed through various engagements and is in different languages to promote higher

levels of comprehension among taxpayers.

The modes of contact with the OTO continue to improve as taxpayers are able to reach it by telephone, fax, post,

email and walk-in visits.

Engagements, collaboration and education enhanced relationships with industry to the benefit of the taxpayers. The

engagements included the following:

- Roadshows were held in provinces in collaboration with industry bodies such as the South African Institute of
Chartered Accountants (SAICA), South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA) and South African
Institute of Tax Professionals (SAIT).

- The Tax Ombud and CEO participated in international engagements where they exchanged ideas on good
governance, taxpayer rights’initiatives and benchmarking of service with the OTO’s international counterparts.

- Media engagements and educational broadcasting on radio, television and online media promoted the services

of the OTO to taxpayers at large.
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FINANCIAL INTELLIGENCE CENTRE (FIC)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The FIC primarily exists for three reasons: to gather information and produce financial intelligence concerning proceeds
of crime, money laundering and the financing of terrorism; to establish and maintain a robust anti-money laundering and
financing of terrorism regime in the private sector; and to continuously evolve domestic policy and legislation in order to
promote our national interest.

The FIC's achievements in the reporting year included:
The number of accountable/reporting institutions registered in terms of FIC Act increased to 34 255 (30 461 in
2014/15).
Ongoing capability improvements have enabled the FIC to manage 9.5 million incoming reports (6.9 million in
2014/15). The information received comprised Suspicious Transaction Reports, Cash Threshold Reports and Terror
Property Reports.
Increased support to the criminal justice system, through the FIC's contribution to 1 979 national and international
law enforcement matters (1 799 in 2014/15).
The value of suspected proceeds of crime blocked increased to R184.6 million (R181 million in 2014/15).
Ensured supervision and enforcement in terms of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (Act No. 38 of 2001) (FIC), with
145 risk-based compliance inspections performed (130 in 2014/15). The inspections and compliance documents will
guide businesses to have better information at hand to enable quality reporting to the FIC.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (ASB)

(SCHEDULE 3A: NATIONAL PUBLIC ENTITY)

The ASB's legislative mandate is to develop uniform standards of generally recognised accounting practice (GRAP) for all
spheres of government in terms of section 216 (1) (a) of the Constitution and the Public Finance Management Act, (Act
No. 1 of 1999), as amended. A further function of the board is to promote accountability, transparency and the effective
management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the entities to which the standards of GRAP apply.

The ASB's key achievements during the year under review include the following:
Issued 14 pronouncements for the year, the majority of which focused on dealing with reporting on South African
specific issues, as identified by stakeholders. These include developing guidance on accounting for land, housing
arrangements, principal-agent arrangements and the accounting implications of the custodianship and management
responsibilities of government over natural resources.
Developed a framework that allows entities to assess whether they should apply international financial reporting
standards (IFRSs) or GRAP based on the nature of their operations.
Commented on all pronouncements issued by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board, most
notably social benefits, and participated in the task groups on revenue, public sector specific financial instruments,
and heritage assets.
Submitted one new standard of GRAP to the Minister of Finance for promulgation of the effective date.
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CO-OPERATIVE BANKS DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CBDA)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The CBDA was established in terms of the Co-operative Banks Act (Act No. 40 of 2007). The CBDA's mandate is to create
a strong and vibrant co-operative banking sector. Its overarching objectives are to support, promote and develop co-
operative banking, and to register, supervise and regulate deposit taking financial services co-operatives, savings and
credit co-operatives, community banks and village banks as co-operative banks.

The CBDA's achievements during 2015/16 included:
Developed online applications and returns portal with 27 CFls registered. The online portal allows CFls to submit
applications and to submit their returns to the CBDA electronically.
Diploma in CFI management commissioned with the University of Fort Hare. The current intake is 25 students from
the CFl sector and government entities responsible for CFls. This programme further enhances skills development
and capacity building in the CFlI sector.
Published 3 quarterly reviews and 2 connection newsletters.
Three CFls were taken live on the banking platform system with funding from the Department of Small Business
Department, (via the Small Enterprise Financing Agency) toward the banking platform project.
Training and mentoring of eight interns who will be absorbed in the CBDA structure in the new financial year
(2016/17).
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FINANCIAL AND FISCAL COMMISSION (FFC)

(Schedule 3A: Constitutional entity)

The mandate of the FFC is to make recommendations, envisaged in Chapter 13 of the Constitution or in national
legislation, to Parliament, provincial legislatures, and any other organs of state determined by national legislation. The
enabling legislation is Section 214 (2), 218 (2), 228 (2), 229 (5), 230 (2) and 230A (2) of the Constitution; the Financial and
Fiscal Commission Act (Act No. 99 of 1997) (FFC); the Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Act (Act No. 97 of 1997); Money
Bills Amendment Procedure and Related Matters Act (Act No. 9 of 2009); Provincial Tax Regulation Process Act (Act No. 53
of 2001); Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act (Act No. 12 of 2007); Borrowing Powers of Provincial Government Act
(Act No. 48 of 1996); Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003); and the Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32
of 2000).

In2015/16 the FFC successfully conducted research, published findings and briefed, advised and participated in Parliament
and other spheres of government. This involved the following:
The submission of 2016/17 Division of revenue bill to Parliament for tabling.
The submission of Medium-term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) in term of Part 1 (3) (1) of FFC Act.
The submission and briefing on BRICS New Development Bank and Contingency Reserve Arrangements.
Made a special submission on the Eskom Special Appropriation Bill and Eskom Subordinated Loan Special
Appropriation Amendment Bill.
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INDEPENDENT REGULATORY BOARD FOR AUDITORS (IRBA)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The IRBA was established by an act of parliament in April 2006. Its mandate, as set out in the Auditing Profession Act (Act
No. 26 of 2005) is to protect the sections of the public that rely on the services of the registered auditors, and to provide
support to registered auditors. It is required to ensure that only suitably qualified individuals are admitted to the auditing
profession and that registered auditors deliver services of the highest quality and adhere to the highest ethical standards.
The IRBA celebrates 10 years of independent audit regulation this year.

South Africa maintained its number one ranking for the strength of auditing and reporting standards in the World
Economic Forum Global Competitiveness Survey for 2015/2016 for the sixth consecutive year. This means that
investors are able to rely on financial reports signed off by auditors which will in turn attract more investments to
South Africa and help grow the economy.

The IRBA issued the Public Inspections Report: Striving for Consistent, Sustainable High Quality Audit. The report
provides an analysis of key findings arising from firm and engagement inspections performed by the Inspections
Department.

The Audit Development Programme (ADP) was launched in May 2015. As at 31 March 2016, 13 registered candidate
auditors (RCAs) had registered on the programme. The ADP provides the IRBA with an opportunity to work with the
firms in the development of their quality structures and ensure that the training ground is compliant with I1SQC 1.

As part of the ADP monitoring process, the IRBA has monitored 10 offices. Some of these training offices have already
developed action plans based on the IRBA monitoring process.

The IRBA started researching measures which could be introduced in South Africa to strengthen auditorindependence.
Some of the measures which the IRBA is considering are:

- Mandatory audit tendering

- Mandatory audit firm rotation

- Joint audits.

The IRBA conducted an independent survey to explore and quantify factors driving and limiting professional
advancement in auditing. The study involved questionnaires completed by a sample of auditing students who are in the
process of completing their articles at an accounting or auditing firm, and recently qualified CAs. Findings of the study
were presented to the IRBA Board and also shared at the 2nd Annual Audit Educators'workshop held in March 2016.
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BOARD (FSB)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Financial Services Board (FSB) was established by the Financial Services Board Act, (Act No. 97 of 1990), to be the
prudential and market conduct regulator of the South African non-banking financial services industry. In this capacity the
FSB is responsible for ensuring that the regulated entities comply with the relevant legislation and with capital adequacy
requirements, to promote the financial soundness of these entities and protect the investing community. In line with
the twin peaks model of financial regulation the FSB will cease to exist in its current form and will transition to become
the market conduct regulator of the financial services industry. The enabling legislation, the Financial Sector Regulation
Bill, was tabled in parliament on 27 October 2015. When enacted it will establish the Financial Sector Conduct Authority
(FSCA). The FSB will transition to become the FSCA.

Highlights of the 2015/16 financial year include the following:
There was a positive response from the Hedge Fund industry to the call for registration with 21 hedge fund
management companies, collectively representing in excess of 280 hedge fund portfolios, submitting applications to
the FSB.
To date, five applications have been presented to the FSB's Licensing Committee with all five being approved with a
further four being finalised for consideration over the next month.
Through its consumer education department, the FSB continued to utilise a variety of methods to target consumers
of financial services and products with its array of educational interventions. These included the use of workshops,
development of materials, various media, exhibitions and a consumer education website.
During the 2015/16 financial year the department held 218 workshops, 29 exhibitions, 40 media activities and

developed six new consumer education resources.
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FINANCIAL ADVISORY AND INTERMEDIARY SERVICES
OMBUD (FAIS OMBUD)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The FAIS Ombud was established in terms of Section 20 of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act (Act
No. 37 of 2002) (FAIS). The FAIS Ombud is a Schedule 3A entity in terms of the PFMA and reports to the Board of the
Financial Services Board. Its mandate flows directly from section 20 of the FAIS Act, that being to resolve complaints in an
economical, informal and expeditious manner. A further mandate is derived from the Financial Services Ombud Schemes
Act (Act No. 37 of 2004).

During the 2015/16 financial year, the FAIS Ombud’s office received 9 891 complaints, an increase of 9.9 per cent from
the previous year.

The FAIS Ombud resolved 8 081 cases in the same year.

The quantum of cases settled and determined increased from R46.6 million in 2014/15 to R50.2 million in 2015/16.
The number of justiciable complaints increased by 15.3 per cent from the previous year,amounting to 4 263 justiciable

complaints.

2015/16 | National Treasury 23



NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

OFFICE OF THE PENSION FUNDS ADJUDICATOR (OPFA)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The OPFA was established in 1998, mandated to investigate and determine complaints lodged in terms of the Pension Funds
Act (Act No. 24 of 1956). In order to deliver on its mandate, it must ensure a procedurally fair, economical and expeditious
resolution of complaints in terms of the act by ensuring that its services are accessible to all; to investigate complaints in a
procedurally fair manner; reaching a just and expeditious resolution in accordance with the law; to incorporate innovation
and proactive thought and action in its activities; and to support, encourage and provide opportunities for individual

growth. The OPFA has jurisdiction only over funds that are registered under the Pension Funds Act.

The OPFA achieved the following in the 2015/16 financial year:

A record number of complaints were lodged with the OPFA. This was due to a combination of stakeholder outreach
programmes undertaken by the OPFA and the communication regarding unclaimed benefits held by pension funds.
A total of 9 667 new complaints were received, 1 544 matters were settled, three complaints were settled through
conciliation, 3 476 complaints were formally determined, and 3 438 complaints reported were out of the OPFA's
jurisdiction.

There were also an increased number of complaints from members of the Government Employees Pension Fund,
which the OPFA does not have jurisdiction over. A total of 14 appeals were lodged against the determinations of the
OPFA in terms of section 30P of the Pension Funds Act.
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GOVERNMENT PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION AGENCY (GPAA)

(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The GPAA was established in terms of the Government Employees Pension Law, 1996, as amended; the Temporary
Employees Pension Fund Act (Act No. 75 of 1979); the Associated Institutions Pension Fund Act (Act No. 41 of 1963);
post-retirement medical subsidies as provided for and regulated by Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council
resolutions; military pensions in terms of the Military Pensions Act (Act No. 84 of 1976); injury on duty payments in terms
of the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (Act No. 130 of 1993); and special pensions in terms of
the Special Pensions Act (Act No. 69 of 1996). The GPAA also provides pension administration services on behalf of the
National Treasury. It is mandated to ensure that benefits are paid on time, to maintain accurate information on benefits
paid and payable pension benefits, to communicate with members, and to build relationships with employer government

departments.

The GPAA has developed a roadmap for improving its administrative efficiency, with 100% of benefits paid accurately.
849% were paid on time after receipt of duly completed documentation.

92% of core business processes have been mapped, which is a combination of as-is and to-be processes.

Mobile units have been deployed to all provinces, resulting in better client access to services in rural areas.

The GPAA administered benefits on behalf of the GEPF, with membership of 1 269 948 in the past year. Contributions
of approximately R60.3 billion were received in 2015/2016 and benefits of approximately R87.7 billion were paid to
clients and beneficiaries.

The initiatives that were high on the agenda were:
Stakeholder management to enhance employer department support and improvement on payment
turnaround time.
Establishment of backlog committee to focus on delayed payments.
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GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND (GEPF)

(Juristic Entity, governed by the Government Employees Pensions Law of 1996)

The GEPF is a defined benefit pension fund established in May 1996 when various public sector funds were consolidated.
The core business, which is governed by the Government Employees Pension Law, 1996, as amended, is to manage and
administer pensions and other benefits for government employees in South Africa.

The GEPF accounts for the majority of the PIC's assets under management, about R1.8 trillion rand. The GPAA provides
the GEPF with administration services. These include admitting new members, collecting contributions, maintaining
beneficiaries, and processing member benefits. GEPF has more than 1.2 million active members, and around 406 395

pensioners and beneficiaries
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DEVELOPMENT BANK OF SOUTHERN AFRICA (DBSA)

(Schedule 2: Major public entity)

The DBSA is a state-owned entity with the purpose of accelerating sustainable socio-economic development and
improving the quality of life of the people of the Southern African Development Community (SADC) by driving financial

and non-financial investments in the social and economic infrastructure sectors.

Progress in terms of key objectives in the 2015/16 financial year included:
The Bank recorded disbursements of R17.8 billion (2014/15:R13 billion) during the 2015/16 year. Overall disbursement
levels for the 2015/16 financial year was R700 million lower than the target level of R17.8 billion.
The DBSA approved infrastructure funding amounting to R23.5 billion during the 2015/16 financial year and
committed an additional R17.9 billion. This will ensure a continued pipeline of projects that can be supported by
the Bank.
Of the R3.5 billion disbursed to the African continent, R3.3 billion was disbursed to the Southern African Development
Community (SADC). This means that the full year disbursement to the African continent (excluding SADC) amounted
to R200 million.
The DBSA achieved its financial sustainability goals for the 2015/16 financial year. Sustainable earnings exceeded the
yearly target by R489 million mainly as a result of net interest income exceeding its yearly target by R789 million as
well as lower than forecast operating expenses.
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PUBLIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED (PIC)

(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

The PICis aregistered financial services provider in terms of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act (Act No. 37
of 2002). It is wholly owned by the South African government, with the Minister of Finance as shareholder representative.
The PIC manages assets for clients, all of which are public sector entities. The PIC operates principally in South Africa, while
also investing offshore and in the rest of the African continent.

As at 31 March 2016 the assets under management were valued at R1.85 trillion, a slight increase from the previous
year's R1.813 trillion. This figure represents almost one half of the South African GDP, thus making the PIC one of the most

influential organisations in the South African economy.

Achievements in the 2015/16 financial year included:
Approximately 13 200 jobs were created.
Investments in renewable energy generated an additional 302 megawatts of electricity, resulting in 2 319 megawatts
of electricity being generated since inception of the programme.
In excess of 12 500 student loans were approved and disbursed.
Approximately 220 Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs) were funded through intermediaries funded from the unlisted
investment portfolio.
A facility of R11 billion was developed and approved towards SA Home loans for housing end-user financing for
members of the Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF).
More than a total of R57 billion of trades (64% of our brokerage) were given to stock brokers that are majority owned
by black people.
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THE LAND AND AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT BANK OF
SOUTH AFRICA (LAND BANK)

(Schedule 2: Major public entity)

The Land Bank’s mandate is derived from the Land and Agricultural Development Bank Act (Act No. 15 of 2002). It is
aligned with government’s developmental objectives which promote, among others, rural development and job creation;
provision of food security; equitable ownership of agricultural land, in particular by historically disadvantaged people;
agrarian reform, land redistribution and development programmes aimed at historically disadvantaged individuals; land
access for agricultural purposes; and agricultural entrepreneurship.

Key highlights during the year under review include:
The Bank disbursements to clients during the period under review amounted to R1.3 billion which is 62% lower than
the R3.4 billion disbursed in 2014/15 financial year;
The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio improved to 27.1 per cent, above the 20 per cent target, and cost-to-income ratio
slightly increased to 63.6% (or 57.1% excluding costs related to the organisational review) when compared to 57.4%
in the 2014/15 financial year.
The loan book quality was healthy at 5.2 per cent which is below the targeted limit of 6.3 per cent.
The Bank recorded a net interest income of R1 087 million, 2 per cent higher than the R1 068 million net interest
income generated in the 2014/15 financial year.
The Bank’s operating expenses increased by 32 per cent to R695.5 million (2015: R528.8 million) which is largely driven
by the organisation review cost amounting to R57.8 million. The Bank’s comprehensive income decreased to R117.2

million representing a 60 per cent decline from previous year (2015: R292.4 million).
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SASRIA SOC LIMITED

(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

SASRIA is a short-term insurance company wholly owned by the state (Schedule 3B Public Entity) which is represented
by the Minister of Finance. SASRIA also reports to the FSB, the non-banking financial services industry regulator of South
Africa. As a state-owned company, it has a specific strategic mandate that is prescribed and further informed by the
Reinsurance of Damages and Losses Act (Act No. 56 of 1989), the Conversion of SASRIA Act (Act No. 134 of 1998), and

continual engagement with the National Treasury.

Key achievements during the year under review include:
Gross written premium income increased from R1.52 billion to R1.67 billion during 2014/15, a 10.2% increase.
64% per cent of the claims received during the financial year have been finalised. The closure ratio has increased by
36%. This resulted in the achievement of the turnaround times targets, 86.5% of claims under R0.250 million were
settled within 30 days and 67.5% of large losses were settled within 60 days.
Reduction in staff vacancy rate from 16% to 6.4% when compared to the same period last year.
SASRIA's capital and solvency positions remain strong, underpinned by continued focus on risk management in its
disciplined investment and underwriting strategies. Shareholders’ equity increased to R5.3 billion in 31 March 2016.
SASRIA delivered solid results and generated strong cash flows while maintaining its strong capital position. This
enabled the Board of Directors to declare and pay an attractive dividend of R183.2 million during the year under

review, demonstrating the company’s sustained commitment to shareholder value.
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SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS

(Schedule 2: Major public entity)

On 2 April 2013 SAA provided the (then) Minister of Department of Public Enterprises with a Long-Term Turnaround
Strategy (LTTS). This was refined by the Board of SAA and a 90 day action plan was proposed, beginning mid-November
2014, to return the company to relative stability. Progress has been made in multiple areas of the LTTS, with some of the
initiatives implemented by SAA as follows:

Wide body fleet: The replacement/renegotiation of SAA's wide body fleet is a critical pillar of SAA's turnaround strategy
as the current operating cost is a concern. SAA has successfully extended the lease terms of the remaining five wide-
body leased aircraft, with approximately 50% reduction in lease rental, and 98% reduction in return conditions.
Narrow body fleet: The leases of three A319 aircraft were successfully extended, with approximately 31% reduction in
lease rental and 30% reduction in return conditions.

Cost Compression: On top of R3.3 billion cost savings realised in the three financial years, including the 2016 financial
year, an additional saving of R1.2 billion has been targeted over the next two years.

Human capital development and organisational redesign: Performance management was identified as one of the
key pillars of a successful turnaround of the organisation, and significant progress has been made in this respect. The
development of an Integrated Performance Management Framework Policy has been completed and an HR Strategy
for the financial years 2016 to 2019 has been developed.

Headcount rationalisation process: The headcount rationalisation process within SAA and SAA Technical (SAAT),
which began in April 2015, has been concluded. A total of 242 voluntary severance packages (VSPs) were approved
in SAA, and 94 in SAAT, amounting to savings of R134.4 million versus a target of R181 million. The balance will
flow through to 2016/17 due to an initial delay in negotiations. The process was successfully finalised without any
employees being retrenched.

Air Chefs: In the 2015/16 year Air Chefs has focused on various initiatives to turn the business around. The key focus
areas were cost of sales, revenue improvement and labour cost reduction. Improvements have been made on all
these fronts. Excluding once-off retrenchment costs, Air Chefs is showing positive results. Remaining challenges
are Air Chefs inability to get new business as a result of the current poor infrastructure and the cost of maintenance
of equipment. As a result a request for information (RFI) has been sent to the market to explore strategic options,
the outcome of which will be shared with the shareholder once the process has been completed and approved by
the Board.

Risk and fraud management: Risk management activities within SAA are guided by the Group Risk Policy and
Framework. This policy is aligned to 1SO31000 and is reviewed annually. The policy has undergone a review in
consultation with the shareholder and was approved in March 2016. The changes identified in the policy will be
implemented during the 2016/17 financial year.
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT:
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable assurance
in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included
in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 231 of the report of the Auditor-General, published as Part E: Financial information.

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

2.1 Service Delivery Environment

The 2015/16 financial year was a challenging one for South Africa and a year in which the country met both external and
domestic challenges that impacted negatively on global perceptions. This posed a particular challenge (and opportunity)
to showcase South Africa positively at international forums such as the World Economic Forum and the OECD.

In the past year, the perceptions of risk associated with lending or investing in South Africa have increased. Deterioration
in the credit rating outlook towards the end of 2015 was followed by unanticipated changes in the finance portfolio,
impacting on investor confidence and raising concerns about fiscal probity. The yield on 10-year government bonds — an
indicator of the cost of government borrowing - surged by nearly two percentage points. While declining soon after the
mid-December spike, the borrowing rate is trending on a higher plateau. Debt-service costs have increased by R15.3 billion

over the next two years.

Business confidence is at its lowest point since the 2009 recession, reflected in slowing private investment. Consumer
confidence is equally at historically low levels and demand for durable goods is subdued. South Africa’s GDP growth rate is
expected to recover gradually over the medium-term as electricity availability improves and confidence returns.

But in the absence of action to restore confidence in fiscal sustainability, the recovery risks being cut short is challenging as
deteriorating conditions create a vicious cycle of lower growth, declining incomes, rising inflation, capital outflows, further
currency depreciation, rising interest rates, and falling investment and consumption..

Fiscal constraints were more binding than anticipated at the outset of the budget process leading up to the 2016 Budget.
As GDP growth stagnated over the 2015 calendar year, the initial revenue forecasts disappointed and the aggregate
government expenditure ceiling forward estimates for the three upcoming financial years had to be reduced. This resulted
in line department budgets being reduced over the three years of the 2016 MTEF, late in the budget process leading up to
the 2016 Budget Day.
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Adverse economic pressures post the tabling of the MTBPS required further adjustments of R25 billion to government’s
medium-term spending plans, which was implemented just before the tabling of the 2016 Budget. In order to achieve
the reduction of R10 billion for 2017/18 and R15 billion for 2018/19, an extraordinary process needed to be invoked in
January 2016. Line departments co-operated and the Estimates of National Expenditure and provincial departmental
budgets reflect the details of the appropriations adjusted after the MTBPS. Given the lateness of these changes, it is
anticipated that some line departments will need to plan carefully in order to spend within their 2016/17 budget and
compensation ceilings.

Various intergovernmental forum and task team structures were used during the reporting period to enhance
intergovernmental collaboration and discussion on various issues impacting on the provincial and local government fiscal
frameworks (equitable share, conditional grants and own revenues)

Cabinet has recently resolved that national departments that intend to introduce new policy, legislation and regulations
must conduct a Socio-Economic Impact Assessment (SEIAS) before such policy/legislation/regulation is submitted to
Cabinet for approval. Due to this new requirement, the formal consultations on the draft policy framework for development
charges and draft Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Amendment Bill had to be delayed. A draft SEIAS report on
development charges has been developed and submitted to the Department of Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) for
certification. Discussions are underway with DPME to finalise the report.

The re-demarcation of municipal boundaries has made the allocation of funds in the Division of Revenue Act as well as the
provision of support to provinces and municipalities significantly more complicated in 2016/17.

The Department of Rural Development and Land Reform promulgated the Spatial Land Use and Management Act (Act No.
16 of 2013) which makes provision for the levying of development charges by municipalities. However, the legislation does
not prescribe how these development charges should be levied. This necessitated the development of a policy framework

on development charges.

It should be noted that National Treasury Programme 7 is unique in that it is administered on behalf of the National
Treasury by the Government Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA).The programme administers diverse portfolios of
non-contributory funds. Pensioners and beneficiaries total 118 900 as at end of the financial year 2015/2016. The increase
in post-retirement medical subsidies by 28,5% presented the administration with challenges, namely, fiscal constraints,
medical aid schemes consultation and changes to systems, an increase in the numbers of applicants for the subsidy and a
need to conduct internal training for regional office personnel.

The military medical accounts sub-section is experiencing service delivery pressures due to lack of skilled personnel,

appropriate systems and processes and lack of industry protocol policy to reduce rejections of invoice for services
already consumed.
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2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP)

The department has not yet completed its SDIP

2.3 Organisational environment

The executive structure of the department has experienced significant developments with the re-deployment of Minister
Pravin Gordhan as Minister of Finance. This caused no disruption to the department’s ability to deliver on its objectives and
mandate continued seamlessly under his leadership. Both the positions of Accountant-General (AG) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) became vacant during the reporting period, and acting appointments were made from within the strong
National Treasury talent pool to ensure that the operations of these critical functions continued unimpeded. Subsequently
a new CFO was appointed and interviews to appoint an AG were held.

The year under review focused on stabilising and adjusting the funded staff establishment of the department in line with
the available budget and programme needs. In this regard, there has been a drive to capacitate the office of the Chief
Procurement Officer and the Intergovernmental Relations Divisions to ensure the achievement of their objectives. The
talent pipeline of the department has been strengthened through the department’s internship, learnership and bursary
programmes, facilitated through the Graduate Development Programme and Chartered Accountant’s Academy.

As indicated in the Service Delivery Environment, Programme 7 is unique in that it is administered on behalf of the National
Treasury by the Government Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA) and their environment was tested by a series of
changes. In military pensions, the GPAA has experienced increased retirements of employees which resulted in the flight
of institutional memory.

The employment of the new CEO in August 2015 ensured that the moratorium for vacant positions was lifted, thereby
allowing many positions that were either frozen or not filled to be advertised and filled. The CEO also ensured the
stabilisation of the employee environment, stakeholder management activities and improved service delivery to our

clients and customers.

24 Key policy developments and legislative changes

No major changes to NT policies were made
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3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

Programme 1 ensures effective leadership,
strategic management and administrative
support to the National Treasury through
continuous refinement of organisational
strategy and structure in line with appropriate
legislation and best practice.

Strategic outcome | Achievement to date towards the achievement of the 5 year targets

The National Treasury has been successful in delivering on its mandate
over the past financial year; this was achieved through diligent
and continuous improvement in effective leadership and strategic

management.

Programme 3 aims to promote growth, social

development and poverty reduction through

sound fiscal and financial policies and through

effective, efficient and appropriate allocation

of public funds to address government’s policy

priorities. It aims to achieve these objectives by:

+ Providing analysis and advice on fiscal policy
and public finances, intergovernmental
financial relations and expenditure planning
and priorities.

+ Managing the annual budget process and
providing public finance management
support.

The 2016 Budget proposals respond actively to the changed circumstances
since the tabling of the 2015 MTBPS. The budget deficit will narrow from 3.2
per centin 2016/17 to 2.8 per centin 2017/18 and 2.4 per cent the following
year.In 2016/17, for the first time since the 2009 recession, government will
achieve a consolidated primary surplus: revenue will exceed non-interest
spending. Relative to projections contained in the 2015 MTBPS, these steps
will lead to additional fiscal consolidation of R18.1 billion in 2016/17, R25
billion in 2017/18 and R30 billion in 2018/19

The annual budget process was managed effectively and the aggregate
expenditure ceiling was adhered to in the budget allocations. Funding
was provided for government’s priorities despite the fiscal constraints
by reallocating budgets to higher priorities. In addition, the aggregate
expenditure ceiling was lowered, reducing expenditure planned for the
2016 MTEF period by line departments.

As a result of policy analysis, an early childhood development grant was
introduced in the 2016 MTEF to harness the overwhelming evidence that
links early childhood intervention to better education outcomes, income
potential and promotes growth and social development.

Programme 4 manages government’s annual
funding programme in a manner that ensures
prudent cash management and an optimal
portfolio of debt and other fiscal obligations.
This programme also seeks to promote and
enforce prudent financial management of state
owned entities through financial analysis and
oversight.

ALM was able to finance government’s gross borrowing requirements
for the first two years and strategies are in place to finance the
borrowing required for the remaining three years. The corporate plans
of public entities were reviewed annually to assess their alignment

with government’s priorities, financial sustainability and soundness of
governance to identify risks and enabling mitigating actions to be taken.
Borrowing limits and guarantee facilities were approved and closely
monitored. Major transactions, tariff applications and remuneration trends
were analysed. The public entities’ performance was assessed through

a review of their annual reports. In 2015/16, 32 corporate plans and 30
annual reports of public entities and development funding institutions
(DFls), and nine corporate plans and nine annual reports of water boards

were reviewed.
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Strategic outcome | Achievement to date towards the achievement of the 5 year targets

Programme 5 is made up of two divisions:
the Office of the Accountant-General and

the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer.
This programme facilitates accountability,
governance and oversight by promoting
effective, efficient, economic and transparent
management of revenue, expenditure, assets
and liabilities across all spheres of government
and public entities.

In our efforts of modernising the public sector procurement, the OCPO
has introduced the Central Supplier Database for Government and
eTender portal.

On the SCM Governance, Monitoring and Compliance, 218 bid
specifications were reviewed, 102 procurement plans were aligned,
and 219 BEC/BAC minutes were reviewed to ensure compliance with
evaluation criteria /scoring. 127 projects were visited and 192 contracts

were reviewed in terms of physical verification of infrastructure.

Strategic Procurement Framework has been drafted and developments
on sourcing strategies were also made on medical equipment, mobile
and fixed line communications, travel and accommodation project,
national travel policy framework, car hire and travel buy site. 14 Transversal
contracts were renewed; industry research is to intensify for open
competition.

Standard for Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management were
developed and issued. PPPFA Regulations have been revised.

Stakeholder and Client management function has also been established
to ensure that government stakeholders are informed of the public sector
SCM matters.

Programme 6 manages South Africa’s interests
in shaping regional and global policies

which advance the economic, financial and
development objectives of the country and
those of Africa as a whole.

The New Development Bank has approved the first loans with ESKOM
receiving a loan of US$ 180 million.

AU Scale of Assessment : A new financing framework for the Africa Union
was adopted in an effort to reduce the reliance on development partners

to finance the activities of the Africa Union.

The SACU Council and Summit was convened in November 2015 (for the
first time in 2 years)

Programme 7 provides for the processing
and payment of pensions to members and
their dependants in terms of various statutes,
collective bargaining agreements and other

commitments.

The programme achieved more than 90% of its SLA indicators and, in
terms of Internal and external audit findings, 81% was achieved
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Programme 8 provides advisory services,
programme management and development
finance support to improve public finance
management, support high-impact
government initiatives, facilitate employment

creation and strengthen infrastructure planning

and delivery.

support activities.

programme total.

(52%).

improvements in municipal audit outcomes.

258 township projects completed.

Strategic outcome | Achievement to date towards the achievement of the 5 year targets

Establishment of the Government Technical Advisory Centre to
consolidate the National Treasury’s advisory and project management

Technical and advisory support for 189 projects during 2015/16,
including the Basic Education and Mining Phakisa processes.
Internal audit established in all municipalities, and significant

355 neighbourhood development projects in 65 municipalities, and

R5.5 billion in Jobs Fund project allocations, out of R9 billion

78 172 permanent jobs created out of programme target of 150 000

Significant achievement with regard to the national outcomes

National outcome

| Indicator

Net loan debt as a percentage of GDP.

Target |

42.5% (R1781.3 bn)

Achievement
44.3% (R1 800 bn)

Value of government gross annual borrowing. R204.5 bn R202.1 bn
Total number of new jobs contracted for approved

Outcome 4: Decent ) ) ) 140 000 129018
and active projects in the Jobs Fund.

employment through

) ) ) Number of training placements contracted with

inclusive economic 160 000 223750
active private companies in the Jobs Fund per year.

growth
Number of placements contracted
with project partners in the Jobs Fund (cumulative 70 000 88833
inception to date and still active) per year.

Outcome 8: Sustainable | Total estimated third-party investment leveraged. R3 bn R4.180 bn

human settlements and

) ) Number of long-term urban regeneration

improved quality of ) q 18 18

T .

household life programmes registered per year.

Outcome 9: Responsive,

accountable, ) )

) ) Number of neighbourhood development partnership

effective and efficient ) ) 40 61
grant projects under construction per year.

developmental local

government system
Percentage of identified transversal contracts with

Outcome 12: An ) ) L ) 100% (14) 100% (14)
strategic sourcing principles introduced per year.

efficient, effective and

) Number of individuals trained per year to assist

development oriented

with the implementation of financial management 1000 1380

public service

reforms.
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4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY
PROGRAMME 2015/16

4.1 PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Purpose

The programme ensures effective leadership, strategic management and administrative support to the National
Treasury through continuous refinement of organisational strategy and structure in line with appropriate legislation
and best practise.

Measurable objective

Ensure effective leadership, management and administrative support to the National Treasury through continuous
refinement of organisational strategy and structure in compliance with appropriate legislation and in alignment with
best practice.

Programme’s sub-programmes

The programme is divided into four sub-programmes:
The Ministry sub-programme incorporates the Office of the Minister of Finance and includes parliamentary and
ministerial support services.
The Deputy Minister sub-programme incorporates the Office of the Deputy Minister of Finance and support services.
The Management sub-programme incorporates the Office of the Director-General and related support services
(Strategic Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, Communications, Legal Services, Legislation, Internal Audit and
Enterprise Risk and Security Management).
The Corporate Services sub-programme incorporates all other support functions for the administration and effective
operation of the department.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

Recent outputs

Internal Audit (IA) implemented its annual risk-based audit plan for 2015/16 as part of the three-year rolling plan as
approved by the National Treasury Audit Committee.

There were 50 planned audits for the 2015/16 financial year. Nine planned audits were postponed to the next financial

year with approval by the audit committee. A total of 41 planned and 14 ad-hoc reviews were completed within the
predetermined timeframes, representing 100 per cent completion of the approved 2015/16 audit plan. All reviews were
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conducted in accordance with International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Audit, issued by the Institute
of Internal Auditors (IIA).

Recommendations for leading practices provided during the independent external quality assurance review that was
conducted on the function during the 2014/15 financial year have been implemented through the unit’s quality assurance
and improvement programme. The function strives to maintain the highest possible rating of general conformance to the
definition of internal auditing, International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics
of the Institute of Internal Auditors and applicable legislation, as well as to ensure that it continues to perform consistently
above average as measured against leading global internal audit functions.

Enterprise Risk Management in an institution is effective if identified risks continuously remain on the radar of senior
management. During the year under review the focus has been to ensure that the risk management culture of NT
continues to mature. Risk management continues to be an agenda item at EXCO meetings of NT, and this approach has
been extended to divisional meetings where risk management matters are considered and emerging risks are discussed
and dealt with timeously.

The business continuity function has been dealing with emerging risks that could disrupt business operations and
damage the reputation of NT. The business continuity unit has commenced with phase two of a three phase business
continuity strategy with the department now having two business continuity sites established with a third site in the
feasibility study phase.

Prevention of fraud and corruption remains high on the agenda of NT. During the year under review NT held a very
successful commemoration of International Anticorruption Day, focusing on breaking the chain of corruption. The
establishment of an anticorruption database which will improve fraud profiling and proactively reduce the risk of fraud

has further enhanced the unit’s functionality.

Vetting of employees is an important part of prevention of fraud and corruption. The National Treasury uses a two-step
approach to vet its employees. All candidates who attend interviews are pre-screened, followed by a full vetting process.
In the current year, the target for vetting of employees was 310 out of the identified list of employees and 241 vetting files
were submitted to the state security agency. The vetting unit has been capacitated with additional resources in order to
further improve the vetting statistics of the institution.

Human Resources (HR) provided an integrated approach to attracting, engaging and developing talent across the
department, resulting in a highly skilled workforce with a strong performance culture leading to 89 internal promotions

during the period.

The department conducted a comprehensive employee engagement survey which yielded a 77% response rate with
positive results. Together with the 87% retention rate for the year, this supports the department’s goal to be considered
the employer of choice.

The graduate development programme continues to provide a strong talent pool for future selection purposes, with 74

interns employed and 15 external bursaries provided to students. The department has increased its focus on gender
mainstreaming with 56% of employees accessing development programmes.
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The Siyaphila lifestyle programme, which contributes to a healthy work environment, continued to receive strong support
during the year, with employees taking an active role in ensuring a balanced work life and prioritising health and wellness.

The National Treasury closed its financial books ahead of all national and provincial departments on 5 April 2016. The
Financial Management team processed 98 per cent of supplier payments in an average of nine days from receipt of an
invoice. The unit applied strategic sourcing effectively and efficiently in curbing deviations and non-compliance cases. The
unit successfully reviewed 68 per cent of NT contracts. In addition, accurate semi-annual and annual tax reconciliations
were submitted to SARS six weeks before the closing date.

Strategic Projects and Support focused on preserving the institutional memory of the department by identifying,
documenting and supporting the review, development and implementation of knowledge asset strategies. They ensured
that explicit knowledge assets are structured, classified, stored and retrieved in line with the National Archives of South
Africa Act (Act No. 43 of 1996). Training workshops were conducted to increase awareness on the importance of record
keeping and knowledge sharing. A manual on the Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act No. 2 of 2000) (PAIA) was
developed to ensure that the National Treasury information is accessible to the public. Nineteen requests were received
and facilitated in line with PAIA.

In responding to fiscal consolidation there has been a focus on enhancing oversight and accountability within public
entities by reviewing 40 quarterly reports, 10 annual reports and 10 strategic plans during the period under review. As
part of the process to ensure active oversight, onsite visits to public entities were conducted. Three Chief Financial Officer
forums were held, to share best business practice.

Information and Communication Technology (ICT) continued with the formalisation of ICT governance in line with the
Corporate Governance of ICT Policy Framework (CGICTPF). The unit implemented several projects to enhance service
delivery, including internet upgrade, local area and wide area network upgrades and the procurement of server and
storage infrastructure which supported the budget process and other NT mandates. The unit also optimised the email
system by upgrading to a newer exchange version and enforcing email maintenance policies. It supported key NT ICT
service delivery initiatives such as the roll out of the Central Supplier Database and migration of ALM Systems from
Mainframe to Wintel. The ICT Unit also assisted in setting up the ICT services of the New Development Bank's Africa
Regional Centre in Johannesburg.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The Chief Risk Office appointed two additional resources to improve investigations and finalisation of vetting cases. A
revised strategy to address the slow response times from employees in finalising and completing their vetting documents
was also implemented. The department is developing a workforce plan in order to prioritise vacant positions in line with
available funds. The plan will seek to address existing vacancies and prioritise future needs to ensure that positions are

timeously filled.

Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year 2014/15 Financial Year

Final Actual | (Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)/Under
Appropriation Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation | Expenditure Expenditure

Programme 1

Ministry 3633 3628 5 4005 3308 697
Departmental
48 350 47115 1235 47 900 47 458 442
Management
Corporate Services 125333 116477 8856 111690 107 274 4416
Enterprise Wide
27553 27537 16 23548 22496 1052
Risk Management
Financial 40051
. . 38862 38699 163 38632 1419
Administration
Legal Services 18 749 18657 92 16 794 16 593 201
Internal Audit 20993 20682 31 18311 17119 1192
Communications 10 292 10 202 90 10276 10120 156
Office
. 92880 92 586 294 99 806 99528 278
Accommodation
Total 386 645 375583 11062 372381 362528 9853
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4.2 Programme 2: Economic policy, tax, financial regulation

and research

Purpose

Provide specialist policy research, analysis and advisory services on macroeconomics, microeconomics, taxation, the

financial sector and regulatory reform.

Measurable objectives

Advise on policies to promote growth, employment and macroeconomic stability and on the development of tax and

financial sector policy; conduct macroeconomic and revenue forecasts for the annual budget review and the MTBPS.

The programme is divided into the following sub-programmes:

Management advises on policies that will promote economic growth, employment, macroeconomic stability and
regional integration.

Research funds the department’s economic research programmes and promotes the research capacity of academic
researchers in the areas of economic growth, job creation, macroeconomic stability, taxation, financial sector
development, regulations, retirement reform and poverty alleviation.

Financial Sector Policy advises on financial sector policies in relation to the regulatory framework and supporting
legislation. The current focus is on modernising the financial regulatory framework in response to the global financial
crisis and facilitating a stable financial sector, retirement reform, improved access to financial services and the
transformation of the financial sector.

Tax Policy provides advice on tax policy, drafts the annual tax legislation and carries out tax revenue analysis and
revenue forecasting.

Economic Policy provides macroeconomic and microeconomic analysis, policy advice, economic forecasts, regulatory
assessments and policy reviews for the annual budget and other government processes.

The Economic Policy, Tax Policy and Financial Sector Policy divisions co-ordinate the National Treasury's interaction with:

The SARB on the framework and conduct of macroeconomic policy, supervision and regulation of banking and
management of exchange controls.

The FSB on the regulation of non-banking financial services.

The FIC on anti-money laundering and combating the financing of terrorism.

The CBDA on the development of co-operative financial institutions and the regulation and supervision of co-
operative banks.

Three committees on macroeconomics, financial regulation and financial markets. These committees are cochaired
with the SARB by the National Treasury’s asset and liability management, economic policy, tax policy, and financial
sector policy divisions. They also prepare recommendations for bilateral meetings between the Minister of Finance
and the Governor of the Reserve Bank.

2015/16 | National Treasury



SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs

Economic policy

In addition to the research conducted during the reporting year, the division also advised on growth enhancing policies.

Areas of work included:

Monthly reports on CPI, PPI, PMI, credit report, trade, gross reserves, SARB leading indicator, mining production
and sales, manufacturing, retail sales, building statistics, monthly presentation on global and domestic economic
developments, tax report.

- Regular reports: MPC preview and review; IMF World Economic Outlook update, quarterly transport and
telecommunications report; quarterly electricity, gas and water report; quarterly agriculture report; quarterly GDP
preview and review; quarterly bulletin update; quarterly employment statistics report; quarterly construction report,
balance of payment report, quarterly labour force survey report; Andrew Levy Survey.

- Daily economic update.

Analysis of key macroeconomic trends which include regional analysis of GDP, update on China, Agoa and Brazil,
briefing notes on key priorities and government on i) economic growth reforms, i) SOEs and iii) policy uncertainty.

- Exchange rate misalignment note and briefing note on exchange rate movements.

Optimal level of reserves and EM comparison of reserves.

- Various papers and breakfast conference on exchange rate hedging survey and exchange rate system.

+ Microeconomic Policy unit: Review of key trends in the mining sector and initiatives to alleviate constraints to growth;

implications of the prolonged nation-wide drought; key factors that highlight the importance of agriculture for
the South African economy; findings from recent interactions with firms in agriculture and fisheries; update on the
electricity sector; small business support initiatives; findings of NT commissioned research into barriers to entry in the
telecommunications sector; enhancing South Africa’s export competitiveness: reform of the port and rail network;
export taxes: the need for guidelines and consultation; firm and sector level “tipping points” for electricity tariff
increase scenarios.
The Modelling and forecasting unit continued to produce quarterly economic and revenue forecasts accompanied by
scenarios highlighting the main risks to the baseline forecast. In addition to the regular model maintenance, a number
of additional projects were completed. These included improving the global demand measure and the determinants
of long-term bond rates in the quarterly forecasting model; developing regional input/output models; improving
short-term inflation forecasting accuracy; building a 2012 social accounting matrix for South Africa; calculating
substitution and transformation elasticity for South African trade; calculating elasticity of factor substitution in South
Africa; comparing 2009 and 2012 SAM; comparing price mark-ups across countries. The unit has also embarked on
a comprehensive back-casting exercise to estimate and validate the parameters used in NT's CGE model. In addition
to managing the tax administrative database, the unit continues to build capacity in tax analysis. For example, during
the 2015/16 financial year a research paper on the impact of the small business corporation tax regime on company
behaviour was published, while three studies focusing on corporate tax incentives, individual rental income and VAT
vendors respectively were released in briefing note format.
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Tax and Financial Sector Policy

Tax Policy conducted research and developed policy which culminated in the revenue forecasts and tax proposals made in
the 2016 Budget. Legislation to give effect to the tax proposals as announced in the 2015 Budget Review was completed
and promulgated. Amendments relating to the tax treatment of contributions to provident funds were amended to
allow more time for consultation. Contributions to provident funds will be tax deductible (up to certain limits) and the
full amount of accumulated savings will be available upon retirement for the period to 2018. It is important that these
provisions be reviewed in order to bring them in line with that of pension Funds and retirement Annuities. The draft
Carbon Tax Bill was published for comment in November 2015. Work to deal with base erosion and profit shifting is on-

going. A number of bilateral tax treaties have been revised and ratified.

Financial Sector Policy is responsible for policies and legislation to ensure that South Africa enjoys the benefits of an
advanced, stable, fair and accessible financial sector. The unit was extensively engaged in implementing proposals to
strengthen the financial regulatory system, as contained in the National Treasury 2011 document ‘A safer financial sector
to serve South Africa better’ During the year under review, the unit tabled the Financial Sector Regulation Bill in Parliament.
This Bill aims to implement the ‘Twin Peaks’ approach to financial sector regulation, giving new responsibilities to the
South African Reserve Bank, creating a new Prudential Authority and converting the FSB into a dedicated market conduct
regulator. Extensive submissions and public hearings were held on the Bill through Parliament. It is anticipated that the Bill
will be enacted in the latter half of 2016 and work is underway to ensure the smooth establishment of the new regulatory
authorities. The Financial Sector Policy Unit is working with the Department of Trade and Industry (dti) to improve the ease
of doing business and the general investment climate in South Africa. One concrete initiative that has been put in place
is the InvestSA/ One Stop Shop that will be launched in the third quarter of the 2016/2017 financial year. Work in this area
is continuing working closely with the World Bank and UNCTAD to address shortfalls in the business facilitation processes.

The objective is to ensure that South Africa remains attractive for investment.

The unit is also responsible for promoting financial integrity by formulating policies which assist in combating financial
crimes like money laundering, corruption and terror financing. In achieving this objective, the unit tabled and successfully
processed the Financial Intelligence Centre Amendment Bill of 2015 in Parliament. The unit is also responsible for financial
inclusion, and participates in the Financial Sector Charter Council and other forums to promote financial access and

inclusion.
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Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year 2014/15 Financial Year

Programme 2 Final Actual | (Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)/Under

9 Appropriation Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure
Programme
management for
economic policy,

21244 21197 47 21133 20 668 465

tax, financial
regulation and
research
Research 11697 10 968 729 11530 11529 1
Financial sector

. 27 886 27637 249 32393 27974 4419
policy
Tax policy 27789 27 609 180 23697 21589 2108
Economic policy 26773 26 537 236 28767 25731 3036
Co-operative Banks
Development 17 341 17 341 - 16 838 16 838 -
Agency
Total 132730 131289 1441 134358 124 329 10029
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4.3 Programme 3: Public finance and budget management

Purpose

Provide analysis and advice on fiscal policy and public finances, intergovernmental financial relations, and expenditure

planning and priorities. Manage the annual budget process and provide public finance management support.

Measurable objective

To promote growth, social development and poverty reduction through sound fiscal and financial policies and the

effective, efficient and appropriate allocation of public funds.

Specific aims are to:
Prepare a national budget that gives effect to the government’s economic, fiscal, social and developmental goals as
expressed in the National Development Plan and the MTSF of government.
Produce and publish the National Budget, the Budget Review, the Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE), the
Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure (AENE), the MTBPS and appropriation legislation containing relevant,
accurate and clear financial information and associated indicators of service delivery and performance.
Contribute to public policy and programme development through support for planning, policy and programme
analysis, budgeting and project management including support for public finance reform in provinces and
municipalities.
Promote public and private investment in infrastructure and public services by providing technical support for capital
expenditure planning and project analysis, advice on financing alternatives, support for municipal development and
financial assistance for neighbourhood development projects. These activities are complemented by Programme 8
activities (Technical and Management Support, and Development Finance).
Monitor and analyse public expenditure and service delivery, support improved monitoring and analysis of public
expenditure and service delivery, and the appropriate use of public and private financial resources for social and
economic development and infrastructure investment.
Support and enable budget analysis by a broad range of stakeholders such as Parliament, and increasingly including

budget participation by the public.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

Recent outputs

Budget Office

The Budget Office is responsible for the national budget process including the publication of the Budget Review, the MTBPS
and the ENE. The division oversees expenditure planning, provides fiscal advice, leads the budget reform programme,

manages official development assistance and compiles public finance statistics.
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The Fiscal Policy unit manages and develops the fiscal framework which is used to advise the Minister of Finance on
policy options available in setting the budget. The unit also regulates, analyses and reports on public sector infrastructure
spending. In 2015/16, the unit significantly expanded its budget outreach activities in order to discuss the 2016 Budget
with a wider cross-section of South African society. The unit also expanded the activities of the fiscal risks committee which
considers risks to government finances across the public sector. This included producing long-run costing estimates of
new and existing policies.

The Expenditure Planning unit designs and manages the national budget process. The annual decision-making process
considers available resources in the three-year fiscal framework against the priorities set out in government plans. The
budget process is led by the Minister of Finance and the Ministers on the Budget Committee, and budget allocations were
presented to Cabinet for approval before being tabled in Parliament.

The unit provides guidance for, and requirements to government institutions, to solicit the informational inputs and
administration requirements needed to enable budget decision-making. It also co-ordinated the production of the
Appropriation Bill, required for enactment of these budgets, as well as of the accompanying Estimates of National
Expenditure publications, tabled with the 2016 Budget in February. Similarly, it managed the 2015/16 financial year budget
adjustments process and produced the Adjustments Appropriation Bill, and the accompanying Adjusted Estimates of
National Expenditure, published in October 2015.

The unit is also responsible for budget reform, and leads or participates in interdepartmental forums and represents South
Africa in this capacity. Broadening public participation in the budget has been a focus area in the last year, This is in line
with the international Open Government Partnership agreement, which in South Africa is led by the Department of Public
Service and Administration. Active engagement is also maintained with the International Budget Partnership and the
Global Initiative on Fiscal Transparency. Domestically, budget outreach events accompany budget calendar events and
range from smaller meetings, to seminars with university students and engagement with civil society groupings. This has

enabled these stakeholders to produce budget commentary and analysis, with the assistance of the National Treasury.

The Public Finance Statistics (PFS) unit is responsible for producing government sector consolidated budgets and other
public sector financial statistics that comply with national and international standards. The unit compiled the consolidated
government accounts for the 2015 MTBPS and the 2016 Budget Review, economically and functionally classified and
provided the table of the operating account, the capital account and consolidated financing position. All newly listed
entities were included in the consolidation and more inter-unit transactions were identified for elimination to improve

the consolidation.

PFS prepared data for the estimation of the preliminary spending numbers and calculation of the preliminary budget
balance for 2015/16. The public entities quarterly reporting system was further enhanced and agreement was reached
on the level of auditing of the quarterly reporting for 2015/16. The unit also provided reporting data to various clients
within and outside of NT. Budget and in-year reporting data for national and provincial departments as well as the
quarterly reporting data for public entities was moved to the Structured Query Language Server while continuing further
development of the database.

The SCOA committee published four classification circulars and assisted the OAG with provincial visits regarding the

asset inventories and participated in BAS user forums. Training manuals were updated for SAQU accredited courses and
arrangements made to roll out training and allow private accredited trainers to use the material. A mapping between
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Economic Reporting Format classification and the Government Finance Statistics (2014) classification as well as SCOA was
done on the Vulindlela database to enable the SARB to access correctly classified data. The unit also continued with the
process of ensuring that programme descriptions in BAS and PERSAL are aligned.

The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit is responsible for the mobilisation, effective management and
coordination of official development assistance (ODA) flows from international donors to South Africa in the form of
grants, technical cooperation and concessionary loans. In line with SA priorities, the focus of support has shifted from
policy/strategy development to strengthening service delivery and reducing poverty.  ODA coordination is supported
through engagement with development partners at annual consultations and high level bilateral meetings. Within
departments, coordination is enhanced through national and provincial ODA coordinators'forums. Two joint national and
provincial coordination forums, and over ten bilateral development partner consultations and high-level meetings, were
held during the financial year including the SA-EU Joint Cooperation Council, Switzerland, Flanders and USAID respective
annual consultations with SA as well as the Germany — SA Bi-National Commission, among others.

In a subdued global economic environment and a changing development cooperation landscape, bilateral ODA grants
to South Africa fell by 21%, to R1.9 billion, in 2014/15 compared with the previous financial year. However, a number of
bilateral financing agreements were still concluded and signed including the SA-EU Multiannual Indicative Programme
2014-2020 (reduced from €980m to €242m) and the SA-German Technical and Financing Cooperation Agreements
(€287m). New ODA programmes include the Teaching and Learning Programme for Department of Higher Education
and Training (€26m); the Socio-economic Justice for All Programme at the Department of Justice and Constitutional
Development (€25m); the Expansion of Social Enterprise Fund at the Industrial Development Corporation (€4m); the
KwaZulu-Natal iLembe Local Economic Development (LED) Programme (CHF7.5m) and the Infrastructure Investment
Programme for South Africa (IIPSA) (€100m) managed by the DBSA. Programme evaluations and reviews undertaken
include the Public Expenditure and Financial Accountability (PEFA) country assessment; the SA-EU Trade, Development
and Cooperation Agreement (TDCA) Dialogue Facility mid-term review; and the Innovation for Poverty Alleviation, Access
to Justice and Sustainable Rural Development in the Eastern Cape (SURUDEC) programme.

The Public Entities Governance unit implements the recommendations of the public entities governance review
framework. It provides institutional support on a range of issues to various national and provincial public entities. During
the reporting year, the unit assisted with preparing consolidated financial accounts and maintaining budget databases and
administrative records of the general government sector, including public entities. The unit developed and implemented
remuneration frameworks related to public entities. The unit also provided public entities with advice on legislative,
financial, human resources and other issues and thus continued to support an enhanced regulatory and governance
environment. The unit supported various departmental review committees on public entities reporting to Ministers, and
consulted with departments on budgets and on policy related matters concerning public entities.

The purpose of the Public Sector Remuneration Analysis and Forecasting unit is to provide timely analysis and policy
advice about the fiscal impact of government compensation spending and changes in policy. The existing COLA model
was reviewed and a quarterly projection module was introduced. The model was used to assess the cost implications
of the 2015/16 wage negotiations and to set budget ceilings for the 2016 MTEF. An integrated sector-based personnel
costing model is being developed with assistance from GTAC. It is anticipated that the model will be finalised by the end
of the 2016/17 financial year.

Consideration of the implications of amalgamating the Temporary Employees Pension Fund (TEPF) with the Government

Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) is ongoing. The effective date of amalgamation will be approved by the Minister of
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Finance following finalisation of the applicable processes. Among issues under discussion is the change in the employment
status of Supported Employment Enterprises (SEE) employees of the Department of Labour who are members of the TEPF.
Following Proclamation 37539 of 7 April 2014, they have been declared public servants with effect from 1 April 2014. The
change in their employment status to that of public servants makes it mandatory for them to be members of the GEPF.
They therefore would fall under the overall amalgamation process.

The amalgamation of the Associated Institutions Pension Fund (AIPF) with the GEPF still awaits amendments to the
Associated Institutions Pensions Fund Act (Act No. 41 of 1963) (AIPF). These have been submitted for consideration and
are currently in the parliamentary legal processes.

The development of pre-funding options to address post-retirement medical liabilities in the public service is still under
consideration. the National Treasury will continue to hold discussions with relevant departments in order to arrive at
appropriate proposals. It is envisaged that dedicated discussions with relevant stakeholders will form part of preparations
for the next round of salary negotiations in 2018

Public Finance

The Public Finance division oversees budgetary planning and execution in national departments, provides advice and
analysis on sectoral policies and programmes, monitors public expenditure and advises on financial and budgetary
aspects of public policy and spending proposals. The division provides advice to the Director-General, the Deputy Minister
and the Minister on cabinet memoranda and public finance issues that require ministerial concurrence or NT approval. It
is the primary link between NT and other national departments and government agencies.

The Administrative Services unit oversees the finances and budgets of a number of central government departments and

entities. Departments and other key structures with which the unit worked in 2015/16 included:

- The Presidency: the unit facilitated the transfer of the planning functions and the National Youth Development
Agency (NYDA) to the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation.

- Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation: the unit worked closely with the department on its budget
programme structure, and on the establishment of a planning programme in the department. The unit assisted the
NYDA with its restructuring process and implementation of the new organisational structure. The unit participated in
the inter-departmental task team reviewing the National Youth Development Act (Act No. 54 of 2008).

« Department of International Relations and Cooperation: the unit provided advice and technical support to the
department on the acquisition strategy and the implications of various financing arrangements for constructing
the Pan African Parliament and affiliated structures, contributed to the review of the foreign exchange management
framework, and participated in expenditure and performance reviews of foreign missions. A review committee
consisting of the Department of International Relations and Cooperation, National Treasury and the Department of
Public Service and Administration is currently developing proposals on foreign services dispensation reforms.

- Department of Home Affairs: the unit is playing a coordinating role in the process with the department to establish
a Border Management Agency (BMA). The unit is part of a working committee to develop a funding model for
the proposed BMA; has briefed senior management and the Minister on progress in relation to the BMA project,
and coordinated NT's inputs into and interventions in the Bill process at Nedlac; assisting in the development of a
business case on repositioning the department with regard to its role and location in the state; the development of a
Green Paper and business case on International Migration Policy and the State Printer’s Bill on the conversion of the
Government Printing Works (GPW) into a State Owned Enterprise.
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Statistics South Africa: the unit, as part of the working committee on the project, assisted the organisation’s Public-
private Partnership (PPP) project to obtain new head office accommodation. Construction started in 2014/15 and
the division will continue to provide guidance on procurement and other expenditure issues until the project is
completed in 2016/17.

Department of Public Works: the unit identified capacity deficits in the implementation of the turnaround project in
the Department of Public Works (DPW), discussed these with the DPW's management, and facilitated the recruitment of
GTAC for the capacitation of the project management office. It also worked with the intergovernmental relations division
on inputs into a DPW Cabinet Memorandum on progress thus far in resolving outstanding government debt owed to
municipalities and measures which need to be put in place to minimise and eliminate such debt. The unit provided
and coordinated the National Treasury’s extensive and formal comments on the business case for the Independent
Development Trust. Another initiative prepared and finalised a memorandum and the relevant minister to minister
letter to motivate the handover from the National Treasury to the Department of Home Affairs of the leadership for the
development of a one-stop border post policy for South Africa.

National School of Government: the unit initiated discussions with the principal of the NSG on the appropriate funding
model for it and relevance of the provisions of the Public Administration Management Act (Act No. 11 of 2014) for future
business and funding models for it.

Department of Public Service and Administration: the unit provided advice on the costing of the presidential
remuneration review commission and provided appropriate funding for the extension of the term of office for the
commission; provides advice on the costing for the establishment of the government employees housing scheme and
the phased in funding of the scheme; supported the department with the transfer of the Public Sector Education and
Training Authority to the Department of Higher Education and Training; managed and provided substantial inputs into
the development of a report on the financial implications of and possible funding models for Thusong service centres.
Department of Women: the unit provided substantial guidance on the business case for the department, specifically
regarding capacitation and resource allocation options.

The Justice and Protection Services unit oversees planning, expenditure and service delivery by departments in this sector.

Key achievements for the 2015/16 financial year included:

Department of Correctional Services: the unit aided the department in reprioritising funds towards the
operationalisation of case management committees and capacitation of the Judicial Inspectorate for the department.
Case management committees are required for ensuring that offenders have correctional sentence plans and that
the plans are reviewed and updated, while the inspectorate facilitates inspections of correctional centres and reports
on the treatment of inmates and conditions of incarceration.

Departments of Defence and Military Veterans: the unit provided support to the department to retain funds reimbursed
by the UN for South Africa’s contributions towards peace support operations as self-financing expenditure.
Independent Police Investigative Directorate: the unit provided detailed inputs and advice to IPID on its expansion
strategy and made a presentation on the analysis of the directorate’s 2016/17 annual performance plan at the
IPID strategic planning session. The unit further conducted a baseline analysis for IPID. This formed the basis for
recommendations made to the MTEC and the Minister’s committee on the budget for the 2016 MTEF. The unit also
assisted IPID with the drafting of its 2016 estimates of national expenditure chapter, outlining key policy focus areas
for the directorate. A costing model for compensation of employees was also developed.

Department of Justice and Constitutional Development: in collaboration with the public entities governance unit and
taking cognisance of relevant legislation, the unit provided advisory services and inputs for the establishment of the
information regulator and the appointment of the solicitor-general. In addition, support continues to be provided to
the department with the implementation of the recommendations of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission.
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Department of Police: the unit provided comments on various sector-related policies, cabinet memoranda and
reports such as the US securities and exchange commission’s due diligence 18K Report, implementation of the
recommendations of the Farlam Commission of Inquiry on Marikana, status report on the transformation and change
management strategy of South African Police Service (SAPS), follow up sessions with Russia-Africa on the fight against
drug abuse and the new rank structure for SAPS. The unit further compiled a detailed briefing note for management
on matters related to conditions of service, promotions, grade and pay progression in SAPS, and on the request by the
directorate for priority crime investigations to become a separate programme/vote.

Civilian Secretariat for the Police Service: the unit provided comments on a number of cabinet memoranda prepared
by the Secretariat on policing matters such as the White Paper on safety and security, White Paper on policing, the
national critical infrastructure protection policy, the National Critical Infrastructure Protection Bill (2015 and 2016)
and the Firearms Control Amendment Bill. The unit also provided advice and support to the Secretariat on the
implementation of stringent cost containment measures to ensure that the spending outcome for 2015/16 remains
within the allocated budget.

Integrated Justice Cluster: the unit compiled a comprehensive briefing on the integrated justice system modernisation
programme which culminated in recommendations on how the programme delivery could be improved. Desktop
research was undertaken on various topics, including project costing for the justice modernisation programme,
administration and funding of commissions of inquiry, cost of civil claims against the Justice, Crime Prevention and
Security Departments, cost of crime on business in South Africa and benefits and limitations of electronic monitoring.
This research was conducted with a view to assist in budgetary decision-making. A comprehensive report on crime
statistics and performance of the criminal justice system departments was compiled linking non-financial information
with financial information. The unit coordinated the compilation of input for the crime prevention section for the 18K

form reporting.

The Education and Related Departments unit monitors and advises on a number of functions implemented largely by

provinces and public entities. During the year the unit assisted with improved monitoring of expenditure and service

delivery, and with reviews of current departmental policy and implementation approaches. Departments with which work

was carried out included:

Department of Basic Education: the unit served on steering committees for the evaluation of the national school
nutrition programme, the early grade reading strategy, and for the performance and expenditure review of school
infrastructure. It also provided assistance and guidance in the development of cost guidelines for school infrastructure,
and organised and coordinated a basic education sector budget benchmark to identify systemic and organisational
issues limiting credible budgeting and sound planning in provincial education departments. It assisted and advised
the department on developing norms and standards for inclusive education.

Department of Higher Education and Training: the unit commenced work as part of a task team with DPME and
DHET on costing and financing options for the White Paper on post-school education and training, participated in
the performance and expenditure reviews of Technical Vocational Education and Training (TVET) Colleges, and the
national student financial aid scheme. It also advised on the mid-term review of university enrolment plans for the
period 2017-2019, advised on the revision of targets for outcome 5 of the 2014-2019 MTSF in line with the MTEF. It
facilitated agreement between the national Department of Health and the Department of Higher Education and
Training to take over the agreement with six universities to fund MBChB students as from 2016/17 onwards, with the
necessary funding.

Department of Sport and Recreation: the unit advised the department and Cabinet on plans to bid to host the 2022
Commonwealth Games and assisted the department and the Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
in revising their MTSF performance indicators for the sport and recreation sector. Together with the IGR branch it
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assisted the department and the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs to find a resolution
on the funding mechanism for sport infrastructure in municipalities, and assisted the department in ensuring that the
filling of posts was completed within their allocation for the compensation of employees.

Department of Labour: the unit held discussions and provided advice to the Unemployment Insurance Commissioner
on the inclusion of public servants in the Ul safety net; facilitated discussions between the department and the
Department of Public Works on the issue of leasing suitable office accommodation; advised the department on
the amendment of performance indicators for the public employment services programme; commented on the
amendments to the Occupational Health and Safety Bill and advised on the composition of the advisory board and
the calibration of fines according to the severity of the transgression.

Department of Arts and Culture: the unit assisted the department with resolving discrepancies in compensation of
employees; addressing challenges in terms of how the capital works budget and function is managed, the outcome
of which is the centralisation of the capital works function; facilitated agreement between the Gauteng Department
of Sport and Culture, Gauteng Treasury and the national Department of Arts and Culture on the targets set for the
library sector on building new libraries if these can't be fully operational on completion; and assisted and advised the
Department of Arts and Culture on aligning the departments infrastructure policy with GIAMA and budget timelines

to ensure timeous submission of inputs during the budget process.

The Health and Social Development unit in Public Finance oversees budgets, expenditure and service delivery of the

Departments of Health and of Social Development respectively, and is closely involved in a number of policy areas for

these sectors. Key work carried out in 2015/16 included:

Department of Health: the unit supported the office of health standards compliance in its first year as a new
public entity and many health facilities were inspected. The National Treasury collaborated with the department
in producing the White Paper on National Health Insurance, which was published in December 2015. Investment
cases for HIV and TB were supported in development and were funded in Budget 2016. These will enable the country
to progress towards 90-90-90 goals, as laid out by UNAIDS. Agreement was reached to shift funding for additional
medical students from the department to the Department of Higher Education. Unit costs of laboratory tests were
reduced to ensure cost-neutrality in the shift of funding to the national sphere for laboratory institutes and laboratory
education and training. Five national health insurance work streams commenced with NT representation to take
forward more detailed NHI development. The department has been assisted in developing a business case for the
South African Health Products Regulatory Authority (SAHPRA) as a new public entity for medicines registration
from April 2017. Projects were done, among others, on HIV funding integration, legal aspects of NHI and the Nelson
Mandela Children’s Hospital. Support was given for the development of a new patient based primary health care
information system and an electronic stock management system for medicines, in order to reduce stock outs. The unit
was also involved in leading a primary care costing exercise with the department. Supporting work was done on the
introduction of sugar tax and related fiscal interventions for health. Levy increases were approved for the Council for
Medical Schemes. It is anticipated that the new demarcation regulations will be implemented in 2016. The unit has
also contributed to numerous internal and external publications, including a chapter on HIV and AIDS financing in the
South African Health Review.

Department of Social Development: the projection model for social grants continues to be refined and the model
was used to inform the 2016 social grant value increases and budget allocations. Child support grant numbers were
somewhat unstable in 2015/16 with many previously deregistered children being brought back on to the system.
This required additional allocations in Budget 2016/17. Work was done with the department on an improved social
assistance grant for orphans that was approved by Cabinet. Research on welfare services financing has progressed,
with the first phase focusing on improving the administration of transfers to NPOs. A paper was developed on
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improving the registration and funding processes for early childhood development (ECD) and was submitted to the
department for its consideration. Funding was secured as a new conditional grant to increase the number of children
subsidised in ECD centres and to improve the maintenance of these centres. Input was given into the costing of its
policy and a concept paper was also drafted on how to approach the financing of ECD going forward, noting the
substantial cost implications of the policy approved by Cabinet. The food relief model was reviewed and the unit
advised on a series of interventions required for the programme to be more cost effective. The unit also participated
in a series of policy debates regarding child protection and violence prevention and is supporting initiatives to
strengthen these programmes.

The Economic Services unit works with government departments and agencies. The unit analyses policy proposals,

strategies, funding requests and expenditure plans of departments and state entities responsible for regulatory oversight,

economic development, employment, growth, science and technology, tourism, environmental protection, land reform,

rural development, agriculture, forestry, fisheries, trade and industrial development. Departments with which the unit

worked during the reporting year included:

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries: assistance was provided to the department in reprioritising R60
million of the comprehensive agricultural support programme grant. This would usually go to provinces to be
retained in the national department for the monitoring and evaluation of provinces'use of the grant over the medium-
term and in future, including project plans and grant indicators, and project reports. This supports subsistence and
smallholder farmers to enter the mainstream agricultural economy. The unit is also part of the task team for Operation
Phakisa for agriculture, land reform and rural development. This programme seeks to ensure the formulation of
required interventions to ensure greater economic inclusion, offers unique methods and interventions contributing
to the revitalisation of pivotal industries in agriculture, forestry, fisheries and agro-processing.

Department of Rural Development and Land Reform: the unit continued to assist the department with the
implementation of agri-parks in 44 priority districts. It continued to support the department with the implementation
of Operation Phakisa.

Department of Mineral Resources: the unit participated in the mining Phakisa aimed at reviving the mining sector and
increase the sector contribution to growth and development.

Department of Public Enterprises: the unit supported the department with the transfer of the R23 billion equity
injection to Eskom which was enabled through the Eskom Special Appropriation Act (Act No. 7 of 2015) for security
of electricity supply.

Department of Trade and Industry: the unit provided comments on the National Liquor Policy and the Black
Industrialists programme. The unit also participated in Project Kopano for the proposed merger between the National
Empowerment Fund and the Industrial Development Corporation.

Department of Economic Development: the unit supported the department to fund the extended inquiry into
private healthcare conducted by the Competition Commission. The unit further engaged with the department in
establishing a presidential infrastructure coordinating commission (PICC) support structure within the Industrial
Development Corporation as a way to capacitate PICC activities. This was funded through a virement and further
engagement will be held to find a way forward in terms of future funding plans.

Department of Small Business Development: the unit supported the department in amending the budget programme
structure to align funding with the objectives of the National Development Plan and the MTSF.

Department of Environmental Affairs: the unit provided technical support to the department on the restructuring
and design of the tyre levy to ensure compliance with the (PFMA). The unit continued to provide technical support to
the environment and culture EPWP programme to ensure that the EPWP incentives motivate sector departments to
increase labour intensity. Eligibility is determined based on performance of full-time equivalent opportunities created.
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Department of Science and Technology: the unit continued to engage with the department on the proposed
structuring of a coordination platform to report on the allocation of science and technology expenditure across
national departments with extensive research and development (R&D) budgets. This was done to ensure that
weakness in sector strategies and interventions for human capital development and infrastructure across the science
base in Ministers with R&D intensive portfolios, are allocated effectively.

The Urban Development and Infrastructure unit provides budget, policy and expenditure management and support to

national departments and public entities involved in infrastructure investment including transport, energy, water and

sanitation, human settlements, telecommunications and postal services, cooperative governance and traditional affairs.
Work carried out by the unitin 2015/16 included:

Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs: the unit continued to support the department
to strengthen intergovernmental relations and provided inputs with respect to developing and implementing
interventions in drought relief. The unit represented the National Treasury in the Southern African Development
Community (SADC) meeting dealing with the SADC disaster reduction response plan and fund. The unit also assisted
the department to finalise the customary policy on initiation in South Africa, a milestone towards the development
of the associated legislation.

Department of Energy: support was given by the unit to the department in developing the biofuels financial and
procurement model. A proposed funding model was sent to the Minister of Energy on the strategic stocks policy.
The unit also provided inputs on the integrated energy plan, and served as a panellist on energy workshops. The unit
worked with the department to resolve funding shortfalls within some public entities. The department, through the
IPP office, was supported in meetings with stakeholders for the development of a gas IPP in South Africa.
Department of Human Settlements: the unit supported the department with reporting reforms on the national
upgrading support programme, and programme and funding support for the title deeds restoration project. It also
provided support for institutional and funding reforms related to the social housing regulatory authority (SHRA), inputs
and recommendations into the human settlements policy review, provincial BAS and housing subsidy system (HSS)
standardisation and alignment, as well as cost efficiency reviews of the human settlements development grant (HSDG).
Department of Telecommunications and Postal Services: support was given to the department in providing inputs
on the implementation of the digital development pillar of the broadband policy (SA Connect) and the ICT policy
review process through engagements and written inputs. The unit convened and chaired a meeting on progress on
broadcasting digital migration to clarify roles and responsibilities, and timelines. The unit worked with the department
to resolve funding shortfalls in some public entities.

Department of Transport: the unit undertook analysis to assist with the reforms to the public transport network grant;
provided comments to the department on the road accident benefit scheme and supported the new dispensation
announced by the Deputy President for phase 1 of the Gauteng freeway improvement project. The unit continued
to support the department in monitoring the rolling stock fleet renewal programme implemented by the Passenger
Rail Agency of South Africa (PRASA).

Department of Water and Sanitation: the unit provided inputs on the review of the raw water pricing strategy, the
establishment of catchment management agencies (CMAs) as well as the sanitation policy. The unit also contributed
to the government agreement on funding of acid mine drainage (AMD). From a funding efficiency point of view,
the unit participated in the grant review task team which eventually resulted in the merger of various grants to

municipalities into a single grant in order to improve management and service delivery.
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Intergovernmental relations

The Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) division coordinates fiscal and financial relations between the national, provincial
and local spheres of government. This is an important function given that R571.5 billion or 51.1 per cent of non-interest
expenditure in 2015/16 was allocated to provinces and municipalities. The bulk of this expenditure went to priority
programmes such as education, health care and the provision of free basic services.

The division coordinates inputs to the division of revenue, the annual Division of Revenue Bill and the development
of the framework for managing conditional grants. The 2016 Division of Revenue Bill was tabled in February 2016
and included new clauses to facilitate the establishment of new municipalities created through a series of re-
demarcations that will come into effect at the time of the 2016 local government elections. New provisions were also
added to enable conditional grant transfers to municipalities to be stopped if they fail to comply with procurement
rules and to require provinces to gazette human settlements allocations to municipalities before they receive grant
transfers. The Bill also included a second round of reforms emerging from the ongoing review of local government
infrastructure grants. These reforms include the merging of several water and sanitation grants, expanding the
scope of grants to fund refurbishment of aging infrastructure and changes to public transport funding to promote
investment in more sustainable systems. Led by the National Treasury, the local government infrastructure review
is a collaboration involving the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs, the Department of
Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation, the South African Local Government Association and the Financial and Fiscal
Commission.

+ An urban investment partnerships conference was held on 27 and 28 August 2015 to renew and strengthen
the dialogue between the public and private sectors on urban investment, and to provide a platform for regular
engagements between government and the private sector to jointly develop practical solutions that accelerate
investment in strategic infrastructure that drive urban transformation. Following the success of the delivery of the
first urban investment partnership conference (UIPC) in August 2015, technical support has been initiated to develop
long-term financing strategies for cities, review the municipal borrowing policy framework and improve quarterly
monitoring of municipal borrowings. The division initiated a process of amending the Municipal Fiscal Powers and
Functions Act (Act No. 12 of 2007) to enable the regulations of the development charges, which is a key financing

instrument for the provision of strategic infrastructure that will accelerate economic growth.

The division coordinates the implementation of the city support programme (CSP). CSP, together with the neighbourhood
development partnership programme (NDPG), plays a significant role in promoting cities as the key drivers in both

transforming the country’s spatial landscape and accelerating economic growth.

The CSP supports metropolitan municipalities to lead the development of more inclusive, productive and sustainable
cities. CSP targets changes in the enabling policy and regulatory environment for city development and the fiscal
framework that funds this. It supports complementary best practices in urban development. Projects and associated
activities have been identified in consultation with cities through their city support implementation plans (CSIPs). They
are implemented at a national level through five component plans (core city governance, human settlements, public
transport and economic development).
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Key programmes for the year included:

+ The reporting reforms project has undertaken work to improve the quality of data collected from municipalities and
simultaneously reduce the reporting burden. This initiative also included an overview of the data requirements from
the sector departments and provinces.

+ Planning support to cities through the annual build environment performance plans (BEPPs) process continued with
a key focus on increasingly strong alignment across spheres of government, and with budgets.

Support for the preparation of catalytic land development projects identified in BEPPs, including panel reviews
facilitated by the Urban Land Institute.

- An executive city leadership course on urban economic development was hosted in Q3, to complement the
sub-national cost of doing business study, with follow up system reforms and peer learning events being
scheduled in cities.

The integrated city development grant (ICDG) was established in 2013/14 to provide incentives for metropolitan municipalities
to integrate and focus their infrastructure investments within identified integration zones (areas identified for targeted
investment). Metropolitan municipalities are being assisted to plan and programme catalytic investments in these zones.
During the 2015/16 financial year, R251.3 million was allocated to metropolitan municipalities based on a number of
indicators of performance on governance. In their BEPP, the metropolitan municipalities identified 14 integration zones,
with 30 projects for planning and 13 under implementation in the zones.

To improve infrastructure delivery performance across provinces and local government, the division embarked on a
process to implement the infrastructure delivery management system (IDMS). This was supported by the development of
an infrastructure delivery management toolkit for provinces, and recently also for metropolitan municipalities (referred to
as the Cities IDMS). In support of these reforms, 184 officials have been trained on the toolkit in the 2015/16 financial. In
addition to training, the infrastructure plans (18 plans) for provinces were assessed and feedback provided on areas that
required future improvement. These reforms have formed the basis for the National Treasury standards for infrastructure

procurement and delivery management (SIPDM).

The infrastructure skills development grant (ISDG) is conditionally granted to municipalities to develop capacity by creating
a long-term and a sustainable pool of registered professionals within the built environment, (i.e. engineering, town
planning, architecture, quantity surveying, geographic information systems, and project management). Municipalities
recruit unemployed graduates in the built environment for training and register them with the relevant statutory councils.
A total of 435 graduates have been enrolled in the programme in 16 participating municipalities. Of these, 124 have
already completed their training and are registered as professionals by the relevant statutory councils. Most of them are
employed in the public sector, while some have moved to other sectors.

There has been a particular focus during the reporting period in ensuring that all municipal budgets and adjustment
budgets are funded. MFMA Circulars No. 78 and 79 were published to provide municipalities with guidance in preparing
their2016/17 MTREF budgets. For eight consecutive years, the division has institutionalised two formal annual engagements
with the 17 non-delegated municipalities, namely the municipal budget and benchmark and the midyear budget and
performance assessment engagements. These engagements have been instrumental in ensuring that the budgets of 13
of the 17 non-delegated municipalities are credible, sustainable and funded.

In order to improve the oversight by provincial treasuries over the budgeting and financial management practices of
the 261 delegated municipalities, IGR facilitated the development of province specific strategies to address the local
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government finance failures by all provincial treasuries. The National Treasury, through its municipal finance improvement
programme (MFIPII), has appointed provincial advisors to assist the Limpopo, Northern Cape, Eastern Cape and Gauteng
provincial treasuries with the implementation of their strategic plans and to strengthen the capacity of these treasuries to
better execute their monitoring and support responsibilities towards local government.

In-year reporting is now well institutionalised with most municipalities consistently producing in-year financial reports.
Consolidated in-year reports on municipal financial performance reports were published quarterly, in line with Section 71
of the municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and Section 31(3) of the 2015 Division of Revenue
Act (Act No. 1 of 2015) (DoRA). National Treasury also published the annual consolidated set of budget information for all
municipalities for the ninth time. The routine publication of budget and in-year financial performance information for local
government enables better in-year management and oversight of budgets, making these reports management tools on
the one hand, and early warning mechanisms on the other, for councils to improve municipal performance.

The withholding of local government equitable share (LGES) allocations of 59 municipalities in March 2015 was a bold step
taken by the National Treasury after persistent failures by municipalities to honour debts owed to Eskom, the water boards
and other creditors delivering services to municipalities. This action followed years of engagement with and warnings to
municipalities to pay their creditors as required in terms of legislation. Several stakeholders’engagements with the effected
municipalities, provincial treasuries, the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs, Eskom and SALGA have
taken place to address the situation. As a result 48 (of 51) municipalities signed payment agreements with Eskom, 12 (of 14)
with the water boards. Subsequently 27 of these municipalities defaulted on their repayment agreements during the period
March 2015 to July 2015. One of the key observations from this process is that poor revenue management is the core of the
problem. Since most of the affected municipalities are delegated municipalities, the accountability has been shifted to where
it rightfully belongs, i.e. provincial treasuries. It is intended that provincial treasuries, in collaboration with the Departments of
Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs, must develop appropriate support plans to assist these failing municipalities.

IGR continued to improve the conditional grant monitoring framework for local government. The 2014/15 unspent
conditional grants process has been concluded. Section 22 of the 2015 DoRA was invoked in offsetting previous years'
unspent conditional grants against the 2015/16 equitable shares from underperforming municipalities, with R2.2 billion
returning to the National Revenue Fund. An additional amount of R159 million was offset from the 2015/16 equitable
share allocation as a result of municipalities requesting repayment arrangements against their historical unspent
conditional grants between the 2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years. DoRA enables municipalities to repay unspent funds
in instalments. This avoids their having to offset the entire amount from their equitable share at once, which could cripple
their financial status. To date, the National Treasury has approved 15 repayment arrangements relating to the 2013/14 and
2014/15 financial years. The National Treasury continues to help low performing municipalities to improve spending and
managing their conditional grants.

The municipal infrastructure grant (MIG) is the main unspent conditional grant. During the 2015/16 financial year, the
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs, which administers the MIG, started withholding funds
from municipalities with under-spending of 40 per cent or more. The National Treasury reallocated R704.6 million against
the grant to fast-spending municipalities. As part of the support provided by the National Treasury to underperforming
municipalities, NT reallocated monies from the Mafube, Makana, lkwezi and Thabazimbi local municipalities and
redirected their MIG monies to their districts municipalities (Fezile Dabi, Sarah Baartman and Waterberg respectively).
The arrangement assisted these local municipalities to continue with projects on site while resolving their financial

management and governance challenges.
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To ensure that all 278 municipalities comply with the regulation on municipal standard classification of accounts
(mSCOA) by 1 July 2017, the National Treasury commissioned the mSCOA project Phase 4: change management and
piloting in 27 municipalities. The mSCOA version 5.4 classification framework was released for implementation by
piloting municipalities, although this is not the final version. The database design to accommodate mSCOA on the
local government database was concluded and implemented. The division issued a series of mSCOA circulars to assist
non-piloting municipalities in preparation for full compliance by 1 July 2017. In addition mSCOA training was held in
nine provinces and in 44 district municipalities.

IGR exceeded its target for budget formulation and budget analysis courses offered to officials in provincial departments.
A total of 405 officials were trained during the period under review in a concerted effort to provide support and build
capacity in provinces. All nine provinces had staff trained on departmental in-year monitoring of expenditure and
personnel costing and the forecasting tool. A significant step in support of public finance reporting was the introduction
of the public entities MTEC database tool in the 2015/16 financial year. This will assist in the improvement of oversight over
provincial public entities' finances. Provincial entities submitted the database for the preparation of the 2016 MTEF process,
with the information analysed for the second round of the benchmark exercise.

IGR continued with the two rounds of the provincial budget benchmarking process in the 2015/16 financial year, with
the first round focusing on how service delivery areas have been adequately budgeted for, particularly in the education
and health sectors. The second round of the benchmark exercise focused mostly on provincial public entities issues,
including governance and medium-term allocations. Conducting two rounds significantly improved the credibility of
provincial budgets and reduced the impact of fiscal consolidation on provinces' ability to provide services. Personnel
management in provinces has significantly improved, as evidenced by the outcome at the end of 2015/16 financial year.
Transparency continued to be a hallmark of the division. The division ensured that all provincial financial information is
published quarterly and within the timelines stipulated in the PFMA. In the period under review, the division provided
comprehensive parliamentary briefings on outcomes of provincial expenditure for the 2014/15 financial year and possible

risks likely to affect provinces in 2015/16 for all provinces.

2015/16 | National Treasury



ANNUAL
REPORT

V/N

‘paysignd
sem podal sysiy [eISIH 9y "GOz 3snbny pue
KB\ Ul play SBUII9W 9211WILIOD SYSIY [edSl4

‘SIap|oyayeIs
1UeAS|R) Yum 2bebus
pUE $3INSEaU MIIAY

‘Burpodal ysu ul sdeb buissaippe

10} uejd-spiom paubisap pue ‘buiniodas 199ys
9DUB|BQ 1URLIND M3IAI 01 S1S1[e1Dads 9ouelSISse
[eD1UY23) JIA| PNAU| ‘MBIASY 196PNg 107
01Ul p1eJ0diodUl SNS3I UIRJ 'S199YS

asueleq AU d1jgnd pue 3ooIno Yyimolb

uo siseydwd yim 1odal ysu e padnpold

‘Ainba jeuonesausbiaiul
pue A1ljiqeuleisns 1ap
‘A1|e2112A2121uN0D JO
sa|dpund uo paseq
saullepInb |edsy

UM UO[IPIUSUINDOP
196pnqQ 4o 1uswubie
pasueyud 2INsug

/N

.c95ﬁmfowzwmw;ucw@c:coUmb:m
UOI||Iq £°81Y JO $210A 01 Paubisse 10U UoJ1ed0|[e
[eUOISIACID B SEPN|DUI SIY ] "UOI|[1Y 6/°E€Y = dDURIS
Ad110d [BDSY Y} JO SULIRY Ul UOI||IG S'657Y + 431N
G10Z DY Ul paduNouue ainipuadxa 152191u)
-uou 126pNq ujew uol|u1 €5°€Y HHILIN 9107
suaWIlNbal Buy1dd 21N1puadxa Yim aul| Ul

s; poad 431\ 910¢ 243 104 a1npuadxa pauue|d

‘'20Uels

Ad1j10d [BDSY 3Y3 JO SWIR)
Ul Juswpusuie + 431N
107 9Y3 Ul padunouue
whjt_ucwaxw 1Salalul-uou
196pnq ulew 431N S 10T

‘uo

Iq
GZY 4O BUI|9SEQ JIAO $9DIN0SAI J2YLINY pue
0PY JO 9AI9SI Pa1edo|jeun AleujwlRid
e S9pN|DUl SIY| "UOI||L1 €G°€Y = 9duels Adijod
[B2SY SY1 JO SUL1 Ul UOH|Iq #71.2d + 431N
107 dY31 Ul paduUNoUUe In}puadxa 1sa491ul
-uou 326pnq ulew UOI|LI 7€€Y HHILIN G 10T
‘SjUsWIRIINbal

Buljiad a1npuadxa Yum aul| Ui s) popad
431N 5107 341 Joj ainyipuadxa pauueld

"PAUILLIDIBP [9AJ)
2IN}pUadxa 152191UlUOU
196pnQ ulew ayy
P99X3 10U S0P Pa|gel
19bpng ay3 ul pssodoud
2In)puadxa ayy

3LV @Y1 yum sulj v

syiomawiely pajeja4 pue Adijod |edsy sedyy yinos bunuawsajdwi pue buidopasq :2Aa1339(qo d16a3ens

National Treasury

2015/16

91/510z 1961e) S1/#L0T JUBWaA3IYdE [eN)dY g

uonewuojul payipne gL /710 1eal ._O_hQ pue 9L/gL0Z ue|d uoljewiojuj aduewiojiod

91/S 10T Sisk[eue aduew.0yi3d

Jusawabeuew 19H6pNQ pue adueUY DI|gnd € dwwielboid



V/N

‘910 Aenuer

PUE G 07 J9qWiada( Ul paululIa1ap
2J9M S3UaWIRdIP 01 SUOIeDO||e
196pnq |eulq 1auiged Aj1ewn|n
pue 196png ayi UO 331WWIOD)
SIDISIUIN DY1 DILIN Aq paroidde
pue ssad0id 196png ay3 Jo saseyd
SNOLeA 3U1 IN0YHBNOIYL papuswe
Bulag SUOIIPPUSWIUIODAI UOIIeO||R
QUI195BQ YIM ‘19 DI9M 1B1IR1DIDDS
DJILN 2Y1 Aq 195 s19b1e) 9y |

DAL 2y3 104
1e14R121D3S D1 A 195 Se

s1964e1 JO 9600 | 199N

J9QUISAON

Ul PRUIWIRISP J9M s1usuiledap 01
suonedO||e 196pNg [eul4 1auIgeD) AjR1eWniN
pue pnguwodullN ‘D3 LN Ag paacidde usaq
3y 3531 pue ssad0.d 196png sy} Jo
saseyd snolleA ayi 1noybnoiyl papuaiie
U33Q 9ABY SUOIIBDO|| dUI|9Seq 3y |

'siseq Ajawi e uo
pnguoduliy 2yl pue
DLW O3 suolssiwgns
19bpnq |pIUsWIRdaP

uo sindul 913jdwod)

ANNUAL
REPORT

‘910 Alenuer uj12uiged)

AQ P3SIOPUS puR PAIIPISUOD
Uay1 a19m sjesodoid Jayny
'SIY} UM SUl| Uj 'uolen|eAs
pue bupioyuop ‘buuueld jo
1uaWeds sy pue Ainseal|
|euolieN ay1 Ag usyenspun aq
SIOM JayINg 18yl parsanbal
0s|e pue 10z JaquiadaQd

Ul SUOIPDO|[e JUSWUIRA0H
|BUOIIRU 31 PISIOPUS 12UIgeD)
‘pasijeuy pue payelp sbunasw
9911IWIWIOD JO 3|NP3AYIS Y3 pue
P3aNSS| U3Y3 249M Saul|apInD
9Y1'§10Z dUN( Ul saulPpInG
431 2y1 panoidde 1auiged

‘910Z Alenuer pue G0z Jaqusdag

Ul suoneso|fe Jo JUusWasiopus 1aulged)
'SLOZ AInr €z uo ee(d

%003 Bupsaw HILA 381y 941 5 10T
aunf €z uo 213|dwod ss301d bunaaw
,$9911WIIOD JO 3NPayds Aleujwil|aid
'510C

2UuNf ¢ Uo panss| mwc__®U5@ H431W

Jaquiada( Ul
suonedo|je ainypuadxa
JUSWUISAOD [euOlieu JO
JUSWSIOPUD 12UIgeD)
‘AINr U1 ss9201d

Bunasw S911WWO0D
Jo buinpayas

Anr Ul

panssi saulepING 431N

91/510Z 33b4e)

107 JSGWIAON 61 U0 12uIgeD

AQ Pa5IOpUD SUOIIEDO||e 2INYpUadXD [eUOIEN
10z 3snbny | uo

sem Buaaw DI LA IS4y 3Y3 ‘pauue|d MO IOM
pue pa|NPayds $s9301d BUI9IW 5991 ILIW0D)
10T dUN[ 61 UO panss| saulepInG 431N

‘91ep 12b1e3 ayy Jo peaye Jo pouad 196iey

39U} Y3IM 9DUBPIODIE U| 24e $31ep uona|dwo)

18UIgeD 0}
sjesodold Buipuads pue
anuanal a1endoidde
puUe PaJIPISUOI-|[IM

Jo Bbupjew ay3 ul
Buleuiw|nd ‘ssaxoud
196pnQ paiesjunwwod
pue Pa1eUIPIOOD-||IM

e Jo uona|dwod pue
uonesedald Apwi

196pnq jeuoneu ayy jo uoneiedald :9and3(qo d1631enS

uoljew.ojul paypne S /i10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /G107 Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURW.O0}ISd

91/510€ sisAjeue aduew.0}19d _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

72



REPORT

ANNUAL

"AIenige4 pue 43goidQ Ul jusuleljied

01 PaJAI3P 39 03 ‘sauljaui Aleyusulelled

J2d se s10da1 SUOIBPUSWLIODRI MIIADI

196png ayy 03 sasuodsal pue siaideyd malny
196png pue INT Jo uonejdwod ay) pasijeuly -

"Aleniga4 pue 13gqo1d0

Ul JUSWEI|IRd O PAJSAIIDP 2 O} ‘SoWesawWI}

Aieyuawejied 3y UIYim 4o paubis pue

swuweipoid pasijeuy alom siardeyd syuswpiedsp
Aieyuawielpied aya Yyim aulj Ul pajgey ‘dwwesbold |euoneu e Joj sioadeyd NI pue
V/N - | puepsjidwod sem INTY pue INT YL - Areyuswelped jad sy - - IN3V jo uone|idwod ay3 pajeyjdeq - | INIY pue INT djidwiod

196pn(q |[euoiieu ay} jo uoneiedaid :9A139(qo d16arens

91/S10¢C m_m>_mcm 9ouew.ojied _ uonewuojul payipne gL /710 1eak ‘_O_hﬁ pue 9L/qL0Z ue|d uoijewaojuj aduew.iojiad

73

National Treasury

2015/16



‘wJojeld
obeJ01s o1endoidde ue 0} parow
196pNQ ay1 10J $OSLIS [PIDURUY

Jo uonedwod ayy Ul pasn eleq
's911U3 dl|gnd pue [epulAoid
‘leUONBU -- 9| 07 M3IASY 196pNg

‘wlopie|d sbeiols

a1endoidde ue 03196pnQ 2y 1o}
S21151183S [BIDURUY JO UOIE|IdWOD
941 Ul pasn e1ep oY) SAO
“JUswuIsA0b

[e1auab |je jo buimolioqg pue
SJUNODJE PA1ePIOSUOD UO
Uol1eWIOojUl 9pN|DU| O3 SIUNODDE

"UOIIDNJISUOD JOPUN 3Segeiep [eulloy
31 S YDIYM 49AISS TOS 03l eiep (buniodal
Alapenb sannua pue A eiep buiiodas parow
pue 13AI9s TOS Ul Uopewojul 196png psiepdn
‘M3IAJY 19bpng

2U3 Jo Jardeypd sajgel [eonsiels ayi ul paysiignd
$39|ge) Pa1epIjosUOD) "BuNISU J0) UoIIdeSUeI]
Anus-1m1ul alow buikynuspl pue ssnnus dignd
MB3U ||e BulpnppUl A PapUIX PUB Pa1ePI|OSUOD
19bpNng "UOIIeDYISSe|D DILIOUODS pUB UOdUN) O}

RIVETTIVIEYNe]0)
pa1epI|oSuod
10} uonedyissed
JILOU0D3

pue uoduUNy

01 buipiodde
SD1IS111S dURULY

v/N 10} SUNOJDE 196pNQ Pa1epIOSUOD I Po1ePI|OSUOD JO 96BISA0D PUAIXT I Buipiodde payisse|d pue paidwod eiep 19bpng - oiignd bunussaid
J9QUISAON
Ul panssi saulapinb Jaideyd INT 1IA
510¢ snbny 's1eak snojAa1d 3Y3 Ul UBY) J3IjJea Paniwgns a1am
1300320 9 UO panss saulRpIinb INT - Ul panss| saulepinb Ja1deyd INTY 1A sindur Jardeyd INJ uswpiedap [euoieu pue
510¢ 190120 JO PUS 31 210437 P3|qgel 102 12903120 £ uo panss| sauliapinb Ja1deyd IN3
AINf L€ uo panss| saulRpIinb INTY |Ilg uoneudoiddy siuswisnlpy A | “#10Z 1snBNy g uo panssi sauljepinb ua1deyd INIY
3oeq 1 ploy 'G10T 1290120 L7 Uo ‘Alenigad Jo pua ‘10T 4990120 77 U0 JUuaWel|ied
03 9sodind ou aAJ9S pa|qgel ||ig uoneudoiddy syuswisnlpy A | 9yl 21049q pajgel ||ig uoneudoiddy Al ul pajges ||ig uonendoiddy syuswisnipy

IM 31 2duls paysijgnd

3 ||IM 31 12U00S

'910¢ A1eniga
¢ Uo pa|qge} ||1g uoneudoiddy

1940120
JO pua ay) 210j3q payslignd INIV

710 1290120 ¢¢ UO 1uswellied ul pa|gel INJY
‘510z Aleniga4

ANNUAL
REPORT

s196.e) bujydea1 01 "Aieniga4 Jo pua GZ UO JUBUIBIlRY Ul PR|GR)} M3IASY 319BpNng  +
‘G 10z A1enige4 Gz Uuo Jusweljied Ul pa|gel INg

"21ep 196181 33 JO peaye Jo pouad 19611

'510¢ 1990120 L UO pajqer INTY Il BUEablele]
910¢
A1eNJga4 ¢ UO pajgel MaiAay 19bpng Il

‘910z A1eniga4 z Uo pa|qelINg !

3NPp 131|483 OM IO 243 210439 paysijgnd mainsy 126png 126png paiejal pue

Yiuows e pa1a|dwiod ‘Aienige4 saul|apInb ysijignd

JO pud a1 210j3q paysiignd INT

pue aonpoid ‘ubisag

21e saulRpInb 4| SU1 Y3IM 3DUBPIODIL Ul 218 $s31ep uos|dwod

19b6pnq [euorieu sy} jo uonedIgnd :9A113(qo d1b3jens

91/510¢ 3961e) S 1/t L0T JUBWIA3IYIE [endy E

uoljew.ojul paypne S /i10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /G107 Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURW.O0}ISd

91/510€ SisAjeue aduew.o0)13d _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

74



ANNUAL
REPORT

'SJURWIWOD oy sjedipupid 03 3Uas
opING 2URI3a1 PISIASY "SIaUIRIY 10135 S1eAld
aA1193ds0id 09 10 pay SUOISSSS Jaulel} 3y ulel|
‘paulesy alam siauonpdeld epuinold pue jeuopeu
ZS1 JUSWUISAOD) JO [00YDS [eUOIIEN Y} YBnoiyl
SUOISSas Bujuesy siauopdeld papuny Ainseai|
[BUOIBN 3} 1IN0 P[0y 'S3SINOD P}PIdIL U} ||8
104 [e1R1eW BulURl) 33 Jo Buiiepdn syl pasijeuly -
'suoloesURIY [BIDURUY
JUSWIUISAOB JO UO[ILDYISSE]D DILOUOID UO JpInb
2DUDIRJRI PUB YODS S JO uone1aldiaiul ayy

"UOIIBDLISSE|D DJUIOUO0DD U0 JuUsWUIRA0D Ul papirold aie 2duepinb pue adiape Jadoid
apINB 2dUR43a1 Y1 pUB YOS dU3 JO |esauab |je jo Buimoiiog pue 1241 BULINSUS PUNOJRUINY SY23M OM] B UIYIIM "ainyipuadxe
UOI1LI21dI33UI Y3 UO DIAPE PIPINOI]  » SJUNOJ2E P3IRPI|OSUOD U0 salaNb yODS siuswiiedap o) papuodsay  + | JO UOIBIYISSe|D Y}
'saulPpInb UOIIBULIOJU SPN|DU O3 SJUNOJJ. "Jeak [eppueuy G 1 /47107 Ul sabueyd Uo syuswiyiedap 0}

2ouepInb Bulpiroid

10J 0| PUB 6 ‘g SIBNDIID UONLIYISSe|D PaNnss|

VN - pUE SJ|NDJID UOILDYISSe|D Panss| P21ePI|OSUOD JO 36RISA0D PUIX]

196pn( |euoileu ay} jo uonedijgnd :9A133(qo d1barens

91/S10Z Siskjeue aduew.opidd _ uoljew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 41eak Joud pue 91 /G 0T Ue]d UOI}RW.IOJU| SOUBWIO0ID]

75

National Treasury

2015/16



V/N -

‘dWil Uo paniwgns suoneudoiddy uo

291IWWOo)) bulpuels ay1 01 (suodai
syuswedap Of Jo bunsisuod)

suodal ainypuadxe AjJanienb Ino4

Jauenb ays Jo pus
9Y1 JO1JE $Y39M XIS UILYLIM 4D Ino-

‘oL ¥29M XIS 3y}

UIYIM (S1/¥10C €O PUR ZO LD 7L/EL0T
D) suoneldoiddy U0 9913 WIWIOD
Bulpuels ay1 01 PaRIWGNS 219M S10dal
ainypuadxa Apieuenb oy Jo 1o da1y |

‘suonendolddy

UO 99IWWIOD
Buipuels ay1 01
suodal ainupuadxa
Apayenb ywigns
pue aidwo)

'S9OA JO JagUINU 210}

941 109J21 01 S)USWIIedap O}
SYoeqPa9) aINIpuadxe A|yruow
08 9q 01 Ue|d 9DUPWIO
[ENUUY /1/910C 941 Ul 1961e)
SU1 \paSIASI PUR P123110D U]
9DUIS SBY S$Y2BqPa”) A|YIuow 7|
J0 196181 MO 3y "Siuswedap
01 S$y2eqPad) 2UNHPUSAXD
Alyauow 7| Jo 19bie) [enuue

ue buIpaadxa ‘syuswiiedsp

01 U35 249M 5110dal 3oeqpas)
2In1puadxa Ajyiuow e

‘sjuawiiedap o3 papiroid
SyDeQPa”) 2INYPUIAXD A|YIUoW GE7

‘pu
-{uow Ja1e sAep O€ Ulyum yoea ‘z|

'sAep O UlIm § 10z Aleniga4 pue
Ktenuer 10y spiodal yoeqpasy ainpuadxa
Ajyauouwl pajidulod $21e1012311P 1SON

‘suswiiedap
0132eqpPas)
ainypuadxs

Ajyauow buipirold

ANNUAL
REPORT

‘Ssyuswiiedap bunsanbal ayy
WOJ4 UofIeWIOjUI [eUONIPPE
104 152nbaJ se ||jam se Ainseai|
[EUOIEN 341 UIYUM SHUN
JUPAS[J YIIM SUOIR}NSUOD O}
aNp paAalyde Jou sasuodsay Il
‘Juswiedap
1UBIP 8Y1 Aq 18| PAINGLISIP
Sem wnpuejowaw 1puiged

'sauljPWI} asuodsal 13s 3y}

UIyim 03 papuodsal 35uspuodsa1iod
[_LIRISIUIL pUe sisanbal
[e1uaWIRdapP JO (€61 JOINO 681) %86
‘Bunasw 12ulgeD

JUBASJRJ 43 JO 3DURAPE Ul ABp SUO
1523 12 ANISIUIN PaYDeaI BpURIOWSU
12UIGRD JO (SLE JO IO H1€) %/ 66

oegpe9y

A31j0d/22U311N2U0D [BLIRISIUIW IO}
SY2IM 7| UIYIM pUB SUOISSILIGNS
dA1BIISIUIWPE J0j 35anbai Jo 1dIedai
JO SY23M INOJ UIYIM S1saNnbal
|eruawiedap 03 sasuodsay
‘BudaW 12UIgeD) JUBAI[R) 33
210§2q Aep U0 ANSIUIA 343 Yoeal 01
PPURIOWAW 13UIGeD) UO SIUSWIWOD)

'$91810103110 414D ||B AQ A|snoawil) Yam
1|e3p US3q aAeY spodal pue sUoISSILIgNS
‘9ouapuodsaliod |eyuswiedaq
591810103110

Ja1YD |[e Ag A|snoswin papiaoid 21om
ePUBIOWRW 13UIgeD) UO SJUSWWIOD

‘Juswdoansp
spomaulely Ad1jod
10§ 32IApE pUR
siskjeue [pJ01235
Ajauwi apirold

K1aA119p 931n43s pue ainypuadxa dijgnd jo sisAjeue pue HGulioyuol :2A13[qo d1631e1)

uoljew.ojul paypne S /i10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /G107 Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURW.O0}ISd

91/510Z 39b1e)

91/510€ siskjeue aduew.0}19d4 _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

76



ANNUAL
REPORT

'S|2NJOIq JO JUDWISSASSY -
A>1j0d uoIRIBIWIWI S||1¥S 924BDS [BDALD) -
Spund sj|s [euoneN -
101235 21eA1d Y1 Yam
S[IDUN0D) 90U3IDS Jo bulsuLed 2ANdRY3 -
Adouaby Juswdopaaq asidiaug jews -
swiweiboid 1uswdoPAsp uesiy -
uonNIISaI pue] -
24N}ND pue suy Jo Juswedsg
4O S301AI3S JnsINBul| pue snolbjja4 ‘|einnd
31 pue ‘pieog abenbue ueduy YInos ued -
EJLJY YINOS
JO SUOIINISUI [eDUBUY [BINNDLBR ODIN -
SUIISAS
pue ain1oniselul Lodsuen dlgnd -
SL/vLoC
Bulnp pa1a|dwod smalral ainypuadxy -

'$95E3| — UO[IEPOWILLIODIE JUSWIUIDAOD) -
uones|ujWpe JusWabeuew Japiog -
p|O SIeaA S Japun
UIP[IYD 104 AIND3S POOJ PUB UORLINN -
SIDINIDS JDIBAN -
Buisnoy
[BIDOS 10} [9POW BUIPUNS 3Y1 JO MIINDY -
SPeOI [BIDUIAOY] -

‘BuILNSUOD Wi S| Y23eIdS KISAIISP 21N1ONIISRIUI [00YDS -
wioyy e3ep 3y} bupaNniIsuod Buluren
puUB SM3IASJ 34} J0} paiinbal SVHSN pUB UO[1EINP3 [BUONLDOA [e2IUYD3] - "SMIIARI
eiep ausinbal ay1 buneh Jou (0) pue ] 3AL (Q) ,uonepouwuwodde SWIAYDS ple [eIDuURUY JUSPNIS [BUOREN - 2ouewlopiad
21e s1apinold 321A13S "ssalboid 9583| JUWUISAOB (B) Uo pa1a|dwod Aemuspun pue ainypuadxa
Ul [[13S SM3IARJ SouewIOpd s10das MalAaI SdueWIOMRd pue [I13s pue Ja11enb paiy3 Y1 Ul patenul pa109]9s
pueainypuadxa ¢ - 2IN}IPUAAX3 (9 JO INO €) %05 - 1eaf1d Xig - SM3IASI 2INIPUSdXS pUe 2DUBLLIOMS]  » euIpUN

K13A119p 921A13s pue ainyipuadxa dijgnd jo sisAjeue pue Bunojuoly :9A1d3[qo d1633e1)s

91/S10¢C m_m>_m=m 9duew.ojied _ uonewuojul payipne gL /710 1eak ‘_O_hﬁ pue 9L/qL0Z ue|d uoijewaojuj aduew.iojiad

77

National Treasury

2015/16



‘pa19|dwiod ubisap [opoul

Aleujwiaid pue sajajjod uonelsunwal
Jo sisAjeue yum ssaiboud ul aue [opow
V10D 01 ssuawanoldw| 431N 9102
2y1 Joy sbul|ed 196png uonesuadwod
91B|NWIOJ 01 PUB G |07 JO § UOIIN|OSY
19054 1ad se syuswisn(pe abem

910z @Y1 bunuawsa|dw 4oy 51500

‘[9pow BuIsod 10D Y Juswa|dw

‘s|ppow

BuUS0d 2Y129ds-101935 JO JusWdOo|aAP
32U} UO pa1Iels sey YIopA [opow Bunsod
Ulew ay3 ol padojansp a.ie $150d
JusWaalbe abem Jo Juawssasse Jods
-3y31-Uo Apaads 1o} saie|duia) UOIRWIISD
Bunsod Aleyuswalddng ssaiboud uj
Ajjua.ind suolie;nobau abem 91/510z Y
4o suonedldwi BUnsod 1oy pasn bulag s
[9poW Y] "YSdd pue Ainseai| jeuoneN
9Y3 4O SaAlRIUSSIdaI JO pasodwiod
wea) UIof e Ag Usyelapun si |pow
943 JO M3IASI SNONUIIUOD pUB PasA|eue

i 96eMm

101235 dl|gnd ays
Uo SJUSWI[NIDS
abem pue Adjjod
uofelaunwal ay3
Jo suopedydwi ay3
Jo buipueisiapun
s,AINseal] [euole
ay3 anosduwll 0y
[opow bupsod
V10D e jo

ANNUAL
REPORT

v/N  +| 91ewisa 01 pasn usaq sey [opowi ayl - 01 2NUUOD pue SA0IdW] ‘MIINDY  » U939 sey [apow Bupsod Bupsixe ayL JuswdolpnaQ

K1aA119p 931n43s pue ainypuadxa dijgnd jo sisAjeue pue HGulioyuol :2A13[qo d1631e1)

uoljew.ojul paypne S /i10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /G107 Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURW.O0}ISd

91/510€ siskjeue aduew.0}19d4 _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

78



ANNUAL
REPORT

'SaNIUL dljgnd JO sjiomawely
[BUOIIN1IISUI/UOIBDYISSE]D Y}
PAMBIADY 'SIS11BW Paje|as aduelduwod
pue Juswabeuew [epueUy
'92UeUISA0D UO s3I Dljgnd Snotea

01 1oddns pue aouUeISISSe PapPIACLd A ‘sIalew
‘epURIOWRW 12UIgeD paje|as 9duel|duod pue aDUeUIA0H
UO SUOI1EPUSWIWIOD3] JO UOISSILUGNS Al Buipiebas sanua d1jgnd snotiea o}
“WI1SAS uolen|eAd qol poddns pue 95UeISISSe PIPINOL]  +
91en[eAd/21eNnba $31AI9S J1jgnd Ayl ‘epURJIOWRW 12UIgeD)
Yum paubije st ysiym Aujigisuodsai ‘9dueuIaA0b pue asuel|dwod UO SUOIIEPURWIUIODa) JO UOISSILIgNS -
[BIDUBUY PUB {SI01DB) [BUIDIXD anoidwi 01 $a1IuUd dlgnd 1sIssy A 'sannus dlgnd
'suols2ap 4o 1oedwi ‘buinjos wajgoid 'S91HIUD 01 paiejas sindul uonenbal [N pasifeuly -«
‘siamod A1euonna1osip ‘siomod bulyew o1gnd 01 3jgedijdde epueiowaw 'sannus dIignd Jo yiomaudely
-uols1Dap ‘play sbuneaw Jo Jagquinu puUE SYIOM3Wel) UO 12ulgeD [PUOIINIIISUI/UONBIYISSE|D 9Ul PIMIIADY -
'pIROQ JO 9215 ‘paiINbas 3si11adxa ay1 01 SUO1EPUSWWIOD3] JIWGNS Al “WR1sAs uonenieas qof axenjeas
Se Uons 's15adse SNOLIeA SI9PISU0D 'suonenbal [N buipnpoul ‘saiu /21eNba $,921A3S D1|GNd Y3 YUM aul| Ul
Y2IYM UOIIRISUNWIDI DAINDAXS OFD 21|gnd Ul SYIOMWIRL) SAIRIISIUILIPE SIsIy Aujigisuodsal [eipueUly pue sio1oey
pue pJeog UO }IoMaulel) 9yl pasinay lil puUe YH ‘[eIDUBUY MIIADY [PUIRIXD ‘SUOISIDAP JO 1oedWll ‘BUIA|0S ‘sal3uL Dlignd Ul
'S Dljgnd 01 'sassad01d ssauisng paroidul wia|gold ‘siomod Ateuonaidsip ‘siamod WR1SAS dueldwod
pajejas synduy uoeinbas | N pasieuly Il pue juawabeuew abueyd Jo Buiyew-uolsidap ‘play sbunaaw Jo pue Bupioluow
‘92Ue||dWwod pue adueuIdA0H UOIIRIUSWIDIAWI YUM SDIIIUB ISISSY ‘Il | J2quinu ‘paeoq Jo azis ‘palinbal asiiuadxe Juswabeuew
Buipiodas [e1ouBUY 01 Pale|RJ SDIHIUD ‘salua olgnd [epuiroid 9Y3 Se Y2NS ‘s109dse SNOLIeA SI9PISUOD [eIDUBUY pUB
21|gnd [eIDUIAOI4 PUE [BUOLIEN O} pue [euoleu o3 1Joddns pue Suiojal siy| ‘pasodoid usaq sey uonesauNURI 9dUeUIA0D
V/N - poddns [euonniisu| papirnold Ul Hunebpng [PUOHNIASUI SNURUOD 1 | DAIINDAXS OFD PUB PIEOg UO YIOMIWEL Y+ e Juawa|duw|

K1aA119p 321195 pue aunypuadxa diqnd jo sisAjeue pue burioyuol :9A1339(qo d1693ens

91/S L0 sis|eue aduew.0}13d _ uorew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 1eak Jo1id pue 91 /G 0T Ue]d UOIIRWIOJU| SOURWIO0}ID]

79

National Treasury

2015/16



ANNUAL
REPORT

‘PaYDUNe| A|[BIDLJO WISAS UOIIRULIOJU]|
Juswabeuew uopesadood JuswdopAag -
‘pasijeuonelado swweibold ysd|
V/N Al ‘dwwlesbold
“(123f01d 5gD) pun4 day Buip|ing Auoeded winibjag - eysog ojaul -
3y} WOJJ SpUNy JO JUSWSSINGSIP puny asudiaius [e1dos sispuel4-dd| -
3Y1 9|geUS 0} UOIIEIUSWNIOP nIrog -
paiinbal pue suejd yJom woz3 ‘swuweiboid
papuae JO UONESI[eUl puP Juawdojaasp bujuies| pue bulyoea] \NJ-1JHG -
uopeledaid ayy yum Ainsean S1/710Z A4 Bulnp
[eruIr0Id NZY Pa1sIssy pund pawweiboid pue paubisap sawwelboid maN -
day Y1 wouy 3uawpedap ayy "9Yduell paxy pug
01 SpuN} JO JUWRSINGSIP 3Y} puUe 3ydUeI] S|GRHEA PIE :NF Y3 WO} PIAIDIDI
3]g/PUS O} UOIIRIUSWNDOP ‘sawwelboid Sem UOI||IW 689Y JO [e103 B ‘S| /7107 Jo vO Bbuung -
paJinbai Jo uopesijeuy VO 21eN|eA3 pUB JOHUO Al 'sassa201d 196pna apisbuoje sawweiboid Ygo ‘sapuond
QU1 YUM 1P Y1 P1SISSY 'ssa304d SgD Y1 2PISINO |8} 1eYy JUSWIUISAOD SNOLIRA 0} PR1EIO||E 1O PRIHWIWIOD pue Adjjod
‘pun4 sawweiboid yao |je JaasIuiupy il AJIny ua3q ey uol||iq €'1Y 4o [e101 e 126pNq JuswuIaA0b
ddy ay1 woyj s13foid Jay10 01 UENET N3-S9O Uol||iq 57y JO 196pNg [e101 B WOoI4 - 01 uojesadood
pasINgsip uol||ig §'1Y ‘s1oafo.ud swwelboid Sgo Joyuoly Il ‘93IWWOD) 196pNng 03 paniwgns Juswdojanap
SgD 01 PasINGSIP UOI|[IW S8FY Il “JUaWUISA0B JO Jleyag uo pue paonpoud Jodal [eusaiul ygo ‘sauljapinb Jo Juawubife
V/N - ‘A4 @Y1 JOj UOIIBDO||e MAUON I ssadold uonedolje sgo abeuepy | DILN 241 03Ul paiejodiodul uoeuwlojul yao ay1 ainsuj

uoijesadood Juswdojanap jeuoewsdiul buieuipioo) :dAn3[qo >1bajesrs

o1/S10¢C m_m>_mcm 2ouew.ojiod _ uonewuojul payipne gL /710 1eak ._O_‘_Q pue 9L/qL0Z uejd uoljewaojuj aduew.ojisd

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

80



REPORT

ANNUAL

T1/€10C Ul paAIadal
Sem ¢ gy -auweiboid Sgo oyl 10y padIeulIed
‘Junowe 159b1e| 93 10§ BUUNOIIE UOISSILIWIOD)
ueadoing ay1 yum ‘puny dgy 2yl 01Ul PaAIadal

Sem UOI||iq 6'LY JO 2101 B ‘SL/¥L0T A Bulng -
VS

ul sawwlelboid JuswWdo|oASP [BI91R|L1 JO MIIADY -

VS ul Adosyaueiyd Jo malndy -

/S Ul S|9POU 2DUBISISSE [EDIUYDR) JO MAINDY -
10T 1UBWISSasSe A13Uunod (y43d)

A)jIgeIuNOd2E [BIDURUY PUR 2INIPUAdX3 dl|gNd -
Sl/vloc

A4 BULINp U23eLIBPUN SAIPNIS PUB SMIIADI JBUYID  »

‘uoen|eAd [euy swwelboid 31 33ANYNS -

1i0daJ UOIIBN|PAS WIRI-PIW QdSd-WnIBRg-41ayd -

uollen|eAs [euy (og -

4N 1sa -

(4 LW) mainar una)-piut Aujioey snbojelp yoal -
SL/7L0C Ad

9y BuLNp uayeLIPUN sUOeN[eAS duwelbold  «

uoijesadood Juawdojanap |euolieusdjul buneuipioo) :9And3[qo dibajenns

91/S 10 Sisk[eue aduewoyiad _ uorew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 1eak Jo1id pue 91 /G L 0T Ue]d UOIIRWIOJU| SOURWIO0}IDd

National Treasury

2015/16



ANNUAL
REPORT

JUBWISRIOY URWIRD NNdA -
0202~ 10z pouad ay1 1o} WzyzyN3

panjeA swwelboid aAedIpUl [enuuRlNW N3-YS -
JusWwaalbe

co_pm\_mQOOu [eldueUy pue |eSluyd9l UBWILRD-YS -
‘S1/¥10T A4 @y Buunp paubis

pue paieyl|ioe} Juswaalbe elale|iq awwelbold

‘Aienige4 01
‘uoneuaw|dw ‘e3Je [B20) AWOU0I3 U334D - doDASQ AUPWIRD-YS -
JUSIDLY2 2INSUS 0} 213U Bujwweiboid Juswiodwa
uopelaidiaiul sped spuejybiy :2J A1eniga4 9-z ‘WsIA siauenbpeay N3 - -
9169 Usp|0D ay1 Jo ued 1s(oid ‘yoley
2y BuIsIA3I Ul wWsUNO] Jo Gz pue Aieniga4 8| ‘UsiA sisuenbpesy g4y -
1usweds ay1 pauoddng YDJB G USIA UOIIeD3p SIapuel{ -
‘PaUbIS S1USWDI0R elI01Rld ‘wnibjeg-ys -
uopesadoo?) |esuyds] pue OV epeued-ys -
[eIDURUIY UBWIDD) ‘2injeubis J9QUIAON ‘S|assnug ‘winibjag ul DDr N3-VS -
Bunieme pue passadoud Ajoe} ‘sabua|ieyd uoneruswaldull Jaquaidas -¢ ‘bullieg
anbojelg 4D 1 bululaduod yum sswwesbold ygo ‘euUIyD Ul bupeaw dnolb Bupiom ulof BUIYD-YS -
syuawaalbe s / N3 01 poddns apiroid Aleniga4 € 'vS Ul bunasw [9As] Ybly SSIMG-yS -
‘AUPWIDD) YIm pay ‘siouied uawdoasp RIEIN] “BILJY YInos
SUOJIR}NSUOD) [eNUUY (5107 yum buiwwelboisd yago sstjeul il € 'S Ul P|ay UoI1e}NSUOD [BNUUR SI9pUR|4-YS - Ul uopesadood
19qua33Q) eMENO Ul PIaY “ed1yY Yinos 10z 2unf ‘wnioy [elae)iq AIYSN-YS - 1uawdojansp
epeued) pue S Usamiaq 10} syuawiabebua ygo Jauied plRY sbunaawl [aA3] Yoy 9)eUIpJO0d
v/N - SUOIIR}NSUOD [PUOIIRU-IG | JusWdojanap ayy abeuely 1 pUE SWNJO} UOIIe}NSUOD slaulied JuswdopAag  « pue abeuepy

uoijesadood Juswdojanap jeuoewsdiul buieuipioo) :dAn3[qo >1bajesrs

o1/S10¢C m_m>_mcm 2ouew.ojiod _ uonewuojul payipne gL /710 1eak ._O_‘_Q pue 9L/qL0Z uejd uoljewaojuj aduew.ojisd

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

82



ANNUAL
REPORT

Y2 £1-91L

eueyn ‘(daud €gyd) uswdojeaap oy bupdueuly -
YaIew 61-8l

eueyo ‘9AleIul ADuaiedsuesy ple [euoneusaiu| -
1das sz-ve

puejal| Ul bunasuwl weay yse1 OSD [euoneulu| -
swinJoy

|euoneusalul sisunied Jayio 1e uonedpiied -
‘uoiesadood [ed1uyda}
pUE ]WOU023 UO [03010id Japun sjepyjo

11p 93 Jo Bululel) eUIYD-YS JO JUSWSSIOPUT -
swweiboid suteyo anjea pue
S1oyiew paj-sselb a1 paubis Juswaalbe Aelpisgns

40 WNpUeIoWsW YY[DV-44vd — Bllelsny-yS - -
Alenuef |z uo paubis Juswaalbe

auwweIbold 037 aqWiaTe NZY — SSIMG-YS -

uoijesadood Juawdojanap |euolieusdjul buneuipioo) :9And3[qo dibajenns

91/S 10 Sisk[eue aduewoyiad _ uorew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 1eak Jo1id pue 91 /G L 0T Ue]d UOIIRWIOJU| SOURWIO0}IDd

83

National Treasury

2015/16



‘pajidwod bulsg

S110daJ [euy e puB JUSWISSISSe
104 UONEN|BAT pUB BULIOLIUO JO
Jusweda ay1 01 PL1IWIgNS SeM
10dal Sy|3S Weup sy ssedoid ayy
paAejap sey uonesibal bunsixs 01
SJUSWIPURUIE pUE SaAlenIUl Adljod
MU UO (S]3S) JUSWISsasse 10edwl
IWOU03-0120S € 3¥erapun O}
12uIgeD Ag 1UswWalinbal mau ay |

JauIge) 0}
pPaNIWQNS JoU INg pPadojRAsp

u93q sey ||ig Juswpuawy yeid

“JUBWIYSIGINII 2INIDNIISELUI
10} pasn aq 01 spunj 1uelb mojje
01 SUOIIPUOD BudNpoUl pue
's3uelb UoeYIUES PUE IS1eM
[eI9ASS Buibisw Jupib yiomiau
podsupiy 211gnd ay3 ybnoiyy
SUOIeD0|[e buluIWISISP 10)
2|NWLIOJ MaU e papn|dul
sabueyd ‘910z Aleniga ¢ uo
pa|gel ||Ig SNUSASY JO UOISIAIQ
9107 9Y3 Ul Spew a19Mm sabueyd
959y ‘syuelb aIn1oniselyul
1USWUISA0H [BD0] 01 SabuRYD
[BJSASS PIOUNOUUE Sdg] N

“JauIgeD 01 12y suolduUN{ pue
SI9MOd [BdsI4 [eddIunpy Y3 03
JUSWIPUSWE 1JeIp JO UOISSIWLgNS
“WR1SAS Juelb [euoIpUOD
2INIDNIISELUI JUSWUISACH

|eD0] MaU Jo Ul buiseyd jo 1ied
Se SWOJal [eul SONPOIIU|

"AINSE3I] UIYIM S1IUN SNOLIBA

wiol) paaiedal sindul ay) Yam aul| Ul parepdn sem
suosliedwod [pUOIIBUISIUL UO 110da1 3JeIp 3y |

‘ul paseyd Ajaaissaibolid bulaq ale

puUe Sdg1IAl Y1 Ul PROUNOUUE 2I9M 353U | “WOJRI
10§ SaWaY1 peolq dojaAsp 01 Ydleasas dopysap
pue sisAjeue eiep ‘UoIIeNSUOD peaidsapim

Ul pabebus MalA1 3U1 |[eI9A0 G 1 /10T Ul
‘padojsnsp

u99q Sey 510z 4oy ueid yiom e pue padunouue
0s|e Sem M3IA31 31 JO aseyd puodas sy

“Juelb a1nonsesul

[edidiunw ay1 JO S3|NJ 8y 01 sebueyd pue siuelhb
1odsuely o1jgnd omy Jo Jsbisw ayy Ajsweu
'M3IA3) 2U1 JO aseyd 151y oyl woyy bun|nsal
SULIOJ21 OM) padunouue 196png 10z YL

‘SYJOMaWely [BISY
JUSWUISAOD [eD0)
pue [epuirocid
2dUByUS 0}
SUIIOJR4 9ONPOU|

V/N

‘5107 4990120 LT
UO SAFLN S 10T Y3 Yum pajqel
SeM ||Ig JUsWpUsWY oNUaAY
JO UOISIAIQ PUE (9107 Atenige4
) Ae@ 3196png 910t uo pajgel
SeM [|Ig @NU3ARY JO UOISIAI]

ASIA YHM
pa|qel pue Ae 19bpng uo pa|gel
3NUBASY JO UOISIAIQ 23eINDDY

710¢ 1990150

Ul []1g JUSWPUSWY SNUSASY JO UOISIAI] 33 JO
Bul|ge) [NJSS29NS Y3 AQ PIMO]|0) SBM SN0 DY L
"3NUSASI JO UOISIAIP 33 PULIOU

12U} SWISIURYIIW UO[ILDO0|[e pUe SUOIRISpISUOD Adijod
33 [[B [1B33P U1 N0 135 PUE i 3L Ul PSpNjoUI sem
(LM 2INX3UUY) WinpURIOWW Alojeur|dxa ay L

‘|I1g 3Y3 03 SINX3UUR 3Y} Ul JOLID

2UO0 pue ||1g Jo 1ed Ulew U} SI0413 0U Ylm Aeg
196png uo pajgel sem

3NUSARY JO UOISIAI]

‘A|lenuue

JUsWpUIWY
SNUAAJY JO
UoISIAIQ pue
|Ilg SnuaA3Y Jo
uoIsiAid ys!ignd

suone|al [eyudawuidanobiaiul bunyeuiploo) :2A1d3[qo d16ajens

ANNUAL
REPORT

91/510¢ 3961e) SL/L0T JUBWIA3IYIE [en)dy E

uoljew.ojul payipne S/t 10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /5L 0Z Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURWIO0}ISd

91/510€ SisAjeue aduew.o}19d _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

84



ANNUAL
REPORT

"Y}[eay pue uonReINPa
10} (g1) passasse sueid

syueib
[euonipuod ybnolyy buiuued

JUaWUOIIAUS

ainonaseyul ||y €0 buunp panoidwil Jo BuisiARuRdUl Ing ays ul
P3pPN|DUOD Sem UoNedO|[e pue suejd a1nidnaiselyul syuswanoidull
DAIUIDUI /| /9107 WIOjU] O} uoieINPa pue Yyijeay ‘papIroid ¥0eqpas) pue Passasse 2ouewWload

Vv/N $59204d JUBWISSISSe 91 /5107 |eUIACId |[e JO JUBWISSISSY sue|d a/n1oNJISeIul UOIIedINPa pue Yiesy |Iy - | bulobuo aj0wold
S|

v40Q £1/9102 343 Ut paysiignd 'sduin0id

2J9M S$3112 9Y3 O3 SUOIedO||e pue sapp ul

pue (Jueb aAlUDUY) 'SyueIb [RUOIIPUOD YBNOJIY} dd3g euy sy buljidwod Juswabeuew

yomawies) Had)| ‘v1ouisyunS uoneluswa|dwi pue bujuueld Ul $a131d ay3 1sisse 03 pasedaud buiodas sydafoid JUSWIUOIIAUR }|ING

‘S)ISIA 196pNqg JeaApiw Y1 SSIAIIUSDU| pUR ‘S101ed1pUl JnAje1ed 1oy 91e|dulsl e yum Uay1abol s1ou pue bujuueld

40 1ed se saniedidiunu 1USWUOJIAUR }|INg 2431 Buisn ouepinb d43g Ateruswajddng sapjjedpiunw 2IN1dNJISeLUI Ul

ueyljodoJiaw 941 Joj I3y Sdd3g sue|d aouewIopad JUSWUOIIAUS ueyjodossw b3 ||B Yum play (Malnay JuswaAoldw|

/N £1/9107 Y1 JO SMIINSY 1JINQ 3Y3 JO 9dUPWIOLSD MIIASY 196png Je3APIN Yl Yim paubije) sSmaindy dd3g - | Buiobuo a1owoid

“109(04d SIy1 404 Josuods 2y S yd1ym ‘(7/o)
2aQIDUBWILIDSNZ 3]DUONDUIRIUJ INJ JDYIS|j259D) SY)
40 sass9204d JuswiaINd0.d 01 aNp pakeop U3q
Sey 9oUeWIOLSd anuaAal pue 2in}puUadxa o11awW
10} Jap1n0id 921AI3S 2Y1 Jo Juswuiodde ay |
'sIap|oyayeIs

YUM Pa1|Nsuod Bulag s pue pasiieuy usaq
edpiunw ueyjodonaw jo bulyoid

sey s
IWOU03-01205 343 JO 1odal 1yelp 151y Y]

85

National Treasury

2015/16

suoije[aJ |[ejuswuianobialul buneuipioo) :9A13[qo d16ajens

91/510Z 3961e) S1/bL 0T JUSWSAIIYDE [ENDY E

uorew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 1eak Jo1id pue 91 /G L 0T Ue]d UOIIRWIOJU| SOURWIO0}IDd

9L/S10C m_m>_mcm aouewiojiad _




'SONURA pue suswiedap
|eUOIIRU JO AMjIge|IeARUN Y3
013Np ‘910z |Udy Ul paiers

‘pabueiie sdoysyiom o
Jeak [epueuy

91/510Z @Y1 buunp paulen
219M S[eYJO $g1 JO [210) Y
(SISqWIRW JJe1s 86 1)

‘salinseal) [epulAold
31 pue syuawiledap [euopeu
Yum sdoysyiom uolieyuswa|dul

AJuo sdoysyiom yyog ayL ‘Al | sisAjeue 196png pue (siaquisu (Y40Q) 12Y SNUSAY JO UOISIAI
‘paulen He1S /07) UonenuIo) 196png '95IN0D JUBWISbeURW ‘Juswabeuew
UM S[EIDLYO € BIIXS UR ‘S3dUlA0Id Ul paUlel} 1M siaquisw KISAIISP 21N1dNIISEIU] UO JSEINEle)
wolj puewsp ybiy o1 anp ng 4e1s [epuiA0Id GO 4O [BIOTY Il | PaUleIl S|RIRLJO JUSWIUISAOB 0S| 2In1oNIIseIUl
'S|eIPYJO 0G| SeM dUl[2seg YL Il ‘Buipusne sisAjeue pue (Sa) pue siskjeue
'saduin0ld s32UIA0Id 6 || WOl S21eBajsp uoleINWIO) 196pNQ Ul paulel) WI2ISAS JUsWSBRURW AISA|ISP 21N1dNIISELU| "JUSWSS3SSL

[RIEN-N|NZEMY| pUP 3deD) UIa1se]

Yam pa13|dwod Ajjnyssaddns

SIaqIRW Jeis [eipuiroid 00y

243 U0 Bujuel} S|BPYO USWUISA0G $9¢

NlOmadely syueib

3Y3 Ul Bujules uopeINWLIO) 196pNg Bujuiesy dnoibsyiom aseqerep ‘pl2y bunssw "21N38|S1637 [BIDUIACI AMN Ul S|RIDLO 10) Bujules [PUONIPUOD
10} papInoid suojssas Bujulesy 431N 910z pue Bujuien dnoubiom auo - Bupoluow |e1>ads 01 BuIMmo Jeak [eipueUy a3 JO Janienb ‘UOLRINWLIOY
[RUORIPPE 01 2NP S| SI2QUISW els dnoibyIom WA 91/5102 'S10T 1e9A-Ul pue JUsWSsasse 196png 158] 2Y3 Ul PaUlRl} 249M 35343 JO G "PaUles] 219M 196png uo
(SOt-00%) G 40 BUIASIYDRIDAO BYL Il | AINf QL 3Yl UO PJ3Y SeM UOISSSS Ul saunsean [eipuiaold a1eeded syuedppied Qze ‘sisAjeue pue uopenuLIoy 196png S|eIdLYO JO

ANNUAL
REPORT

V/N I Buiuten dnoibspiom auQ Ul paulel} 2q o3 pasabiel siuedpiied 00S Jo IO Bulules 1e)oeq

01 p|2y SAOYSHIOM JO J2qUINN|

suone|al [eyudawuidanobiaiul bunyeuiploo) :2A1d3[qo d16ajens

91/510¢ 3961e) SL/L0T JUBWIA3IYIE [en)dy E

uoljew.ojul payipne S/t 10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /5L 0Z Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURWIO0}ISd

91/510€ SisAjeue aduew.o}19d _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

86



ANNUAL
REPORT

/N

(9102 Aew

| € onp Ajuo si podas saenb
PAIUY 3Y ) ‘sanjedidiunu £ /g
4o buipuads 1ueib [euonipuod
pue sanljedidIUNW 8/ JO
2In}puadxa pue SNUSASI
Bullonod ‘AAldadsal 910
Y2IBA & PUe 107 Joquiaidas
0€ ‘510z unf og uo paysiignd
21am suonedlgnd Jeak-ul
(91/510¢) J21enb puodas
pueisiy ‘(§1/7107) 1o1enb
YuNoy 8yl 'v¢od S 10T 341 Jo
(€)L€ UONO3S pue YINJN 843
40 L£ Uoidss Y3 yum sulj U
‘sanljedpiunw palebajep
-UOU /| 31 JO JUSWISSIsse
9duewlopad pue 196pnqg
1ea/Apiw Y1 uo suodal dyidads
ledidiunw /| pue 1odal
pa1epl|osuod auo pajidwod
oM

Se auop 1J0dal pa1epljosuod
9Y1 pue A3ljigeuleisns

pue Aujigipaid ‘buipuny Jo
Aoenbape aujwia1ap 01
passasse saljediduNU
pajebajep-uou /| a3 Jo
s196pnq pajqel £1 auL |y

91/S 10 Sisk[eue aduewoyiad _

‘vdod

941 4O (€) ¥ U0ND3S pue s11odal
VA L/ UONDSS pUB SMRIARI
2in}puadxa Jo uoledlgngd

Jeak

yoea yoie Aqg saijedpiunu
pa1eH3]2P-UOU J0J JUDWISSISSe
1eaApiw uo 10dal pue apNdUOD)
‘All|igeuleIsns pue

AujIqipaid ‘buipuny jo A>enbape
2UIWJR13pP 03 sanljeddiuNW
pa1ebaj9p-UoU J0j JB3A DB

40 Kepy pue |dy usamiaq
sanifediDIUNW |[e J0J SIUSUISSASSe
uo 1odas pue ylewyduag

91/510Z 39b4e]

710C 19GUISAON 8L

Uo Ja3SIUIN 243 Aq paroidde piodai Juswabeurw
[BIDUBUY PUB S9DUBUL JUSWUIDAOD [BDO] JO 31R1S - 'spi0dai
‘AJonienb 4o uonedignd
| / UOI123G JUSWIUISAOD) [eD0T 3U1 paysliand - Ajpwn pue

‘510z Aeniga4 saniediduNw

/ 03 Aenuer 9z wiouy sanljeddiunw pajeba|ep [[B yum
-UOU 31 JOJ JUBWISSISSe 1eaApIW 9y Pa1donpuod - sJuawabebus
‘Keyy pue JeaApiw

[udy usamiag sanifedidIuNW ||e 10} JUSWISSISSe Bunonpuod pue

BuewyoUq 196pNg Yyl Pa1ONPUOD) Buppiewyouag

suoije[aJ |[ejuswuianobialul buneuipioo) :9A13[qo d16ajens

uorew.ojul paypne G/ 10z 1eak Jo1id pue 91 /G L 0T Ue]d UOIIRWIOJU| SOURWIO0}IDd

87

National Treasury

2015/16



V/N

‘(ssauboud

ul>iom) eseqeiep SN0
p|ING pue s19ays-peaids wolj
SUWN|OD [RUOIIIPPE. 1DBIIXD
Ajlenuey -buiddew yoDSW
01U UOISIaA 3y} bupiodul|
"95eQRIEP D 93 UO #'G UOISI9A
YODSW [euy ay3 pauswajdul

‘sapjedipunuw 1o)id ayy
18 YODS ay3 Jo uopeiuawadw

V/N

ASETVVIETNelo]

[B30] 10} YODS J0
uoneuswa|dw|

ANNUAL
REPORT

‘passanbal sem

Ul 31N1DNJISEIUI UOIIBINPS AU}
uo ‘buyaniq auo AJUo ‘M3lA31 JapuUN
polad ay1 bulng parsanbas usym
Ajuo auop aie sbuyaliq ay1 ‘syuelb

[euoRIPUO 3U1 01 pieb3s Y1 YU I

'S1ozIsnBny 71 pue aunf

61 'SLOZdUN( /1 'SLOT duUNf G
:$31ep BUIMOJ|04 31 UO SUOp
QUM SBUYRIIQ JUBWUISA0D
[epuIA0Id 7 4O [BI0L Y G LOT
unr g pib ainjanuispyul
uonILINP3 343 UO JusWeled
01 buyalig U0 PapIACLd
pajidwod

syodai pue 9|0z Arenuef pue
G107 J2qWia23Q Ul pa32npuod
2Jam sadUlA0Id BUIU BY3 JO
o3 10 SUOISSS Yleulyouag
VIN4d

34} JO 7€ UOND3S JO SULI) Ul
paysiignd syiodal AjJsnienb 1

‘S1UeJb [RUORIPUOD YBNOIYL
papuny sawwelboid aaiyy

pue ‘syuawuIaA0b [epulr0sd
93443 15e3] 1€ Jo 10adsau

ul sbuyanuq Areyuswelyed
dAISU3y1dWO0d 3pIAOId
‘Aleniga4-piw a10j2q sadulroid
3UIU 3y} JO Yde3 10} SUOISSIS
BupewydUaqg 196pNQ 1NpPUOD
VYW4d

3Y1 JO 7€ UONDI3S JO SULI) Ul
sy1iodai AjJaienb jo uonesigngd

91/510Z 19b4e]

‘pPa|NPaYds

10U Jo pauodisod/paj|@dued a1am ||e Ing JODN
Aq pajnpayds a1am sbuyalig Aleyusaweljied
‘9ouIn0id Jad SU0ISSaS

Buppiewuyouaq 196png Jo 5195 omy pasa|duod
"MIIAI

ainypuadxa pue s126pnq [epulroid paysiiand
‘510z AJeniga4 ul paysijgnd aseajau

ssaid pue awiy uo paysiignd podal Jayienb pig
‘(42uenb

AJ3A3) dUl} Uo suodal 7€ UoNdas |je paysiignd

‘suodal

Jo uonedlignd
Apwin pue
SaouUIA0Id (B YUm
syuawabebua
Jeafpiw
Bunonpuod pue
BupewydUSg

suone|al [eyudawuidanobiaiul bunyeuiploo) :2A1d3[qo d16ajens

uoljew.ojul payipne S/t 10¢ 4eak Jold pue 91 /5L 0Z Ueld UOIIRWIOJU| DURWIO0}ISd

91/510€ SisAjeue aduew.o}19d _

P=aNURUOGS - INFWIDVNYIN L395dNd ANV dDNVNIH OI1dNd -€ ININVIDO0Ld

National Treasury

2015/16

88



Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year

2014/15 Financial Year

Programme 3 Final Actual | (Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)/Under
9 Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure | Expenditure
Programme
management for
public finance 18061 17 885 176 23087 20615 2472
and budget
management
Public finance 59573 59167 406 54770 52330 2440
Budget Office and
J o 56 051 55366 685 58132 53225 4907
coordination
Intergovernmental
_g 94 048 89 005 5043 78 601 73812 4789
relations
Financial and Fiscal
o 41156 41156 - 45288 45288 -
Commission
Total 268 889 262579 6310 259878 245270 14 608
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4.4 Programme 4: Asset and liability management

Purpose

Prudent management of government’s financial assets and liabilities.

Measurable objectives:

Manage government’s annual funding programme in a manner that ensures prudent cash management and an optimal
portfolio of debt and other fiscal obligations. Promote and enforce prudent financial management of state-owned entities
through financial analysis and oversight.

There are six sub-programmes:
Management: provides strategic guidance and direction to the overall programme, including management of the
divisional budget.
Oversight and governance of state-owned enterprises: seeks to oversee state-owned enterprises and to enable them
to meet government’s policy objectives in a financially and fiscally sustainable manner, as well as to promote sound
corporate governance.
Government debt management: provides for government'’s long-term funding needs, manages domestic and foreign
debt and contributes to the development of domestic capital and retail markets.
Financial operations: provides for government’s short-term funding needs, the prudent management of cash, the
efficient accounting for debt and investment transactions, the supply of reliable systems and the provision of quality
information.
Strategy and risk management: develops and maintains a risk management framework for state cash investments,
debt and contingent liabilities of the state.
Financial investments: provides funding mainly for the recapitalisation of Eskom and the Land and Agricultural
Development Bank of South Africa (Land Bank).

DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

Recent outputs

The Oversight and governance of state-owned enterprises unit annually reviews the corporate plans of all public entities
listed in Schedule 2 and 3B of the PFMA, including some selected Schedule 3A entities. In addition to assessing their
alignment with government’s priorities, financial sustainability and soundness of governance, the review aims to identify
possible risks proactively so that appropriate mitigating actions can be taken. Similarly, public entities’ performance is
evaluated through a review of their annual reports. In 2015/16, 32 corporate plans and 30 annual reports of public entities
and development funding institutions (DFIs), and nine corporate plans and nine annual reports of water boards were
reviewed. SAA, Broadband Infraco, the South African Post Office (SAPO) and the Nuclear Energy Corporation of South Africa
(NECSA) had not submitted their annual financial statements at the time of the review. The unit analysed the remuneration
trends in Schedule 2 public entities against the state-owned entities remuneration guide (SOERG).

2015/16 | National Treasury



Foreign borrowing limits for Transnet, Eskom, the Land Bank, as well as the Central Energy Fund (CEF) were granted.
Approval of domestic borrowing limits for the Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority (TCTA), Umgeni Water and the South African
National Roads Agency Limited (SANRAL), were also granted. The Minister of Telecommunications and Postal Services was
requested to investigate the breach by SAPO in incurring an overdraft without approval.

During the year, the guarantee facility for SAPO was increased to R4.4 billion. Additional guarantees were also issued to
support the renewable energy independent power producers (REIPP) programme. Eskom, SANRAL, SAA, the Land Bank
and SAPO all increased their borrowing against the guarantee facilities issued. The guarantees to Eskom, Denel, SAA, South
African Express (SAX), SAPO, the Land Bank, TCTA and Autopax Passenger Services (Autopax) were monitored regularly and
quarterly reports were provided to the Fiscal Liability Committee (FLC).

In July 2015, the Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation Amendment Act (2008/09-2010/11 Financial Years) (Act
No. 6 of 2015) was enacted, enabling the conversion to equity of Eskom’s R60 billion subordinated loan. The Eskom Special
Appropriation Act (Act No. 7 of 2015), which was signed into law in July 2015, provided for the appropriation of R23 billion
as equity to Eskom. The appropriation was funded through the sale of government’s shareholding in Vodacom, which
was concluded in June 2015. The funds were transferred to Eskom as follows: R10 billion was transferred in July 2015; R5
billion in December 2015; R3 billion in February 2016 and the remaining R5 billion in March 2016. The transfer of the R10
billion scheduled to have been transferred in December 2015 was delayed until Eskom demonstrated compliance with
the equity conditions

The unit consolidated the capital expenditure and borrowing plans of the public entities and monitored and reported
progress against these plans on a quarterly basis. Forthe 2015/16 year, SOCs capital expenditure was R99.4 billion, 90.7% of
the budgeted amount. The under spending was widespread amongst the top five SOCs, with Eskom being the exception.
Total borrowings for the 2015/16 financial year amounted to R162.36 billion against planned borrowings for the year of
R165.96 billion. The marginal variance of the total planned borrowings was as a result of DBSA, IDC and the Land Bank
borrowing less than initially planned.

As required in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), the National Treasury provided written comments
to each of the water boards regarding proposed tariff adjustments. Similarly, Eskom’s draft selective tariff reopener
was analysed and written comments were provided to the utility. In March 2014, the transfer of the equitable share to
municipalities with overdue debt to Eskom and water boards was delayed, pending the conclusion of repayment plans and
settlement of the current debt. The National Treasury met with the 59 affected municipalities, and 49 of 51 municipalities
concluded repayment agreements with Eskom and 12 out of 14 finalised agreements with water boards. In addition, the
National Treasury has been working towards resolving the issues tabled by municipalities during the engagements.

Notifications in terms of Section 54(2) of the PFMA relating to major transactions being undertaken by public entities were
analysed, including applications from Eskom, SAA, SAX, Denel and the Public Investment Corporation (PIC).

Exemptions relating to Section 52 and other provisions of the PFMA were granted to the IDC and its subsidiaries.
The unit also undertook the following activities during 2015/16:
Reviewed the corporate plans of the PIC, SASRIA, SAA, the Land Bank and DBSA, which were tabled in Parliament by

the Minister of Finance.
Concluded shareholder compacts with the PIC, SASRIA, SAA, Land Bank and DBSA.
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Reviewed the annual reports and financial statements of the PIC, SASRIA, the Land Bank and DBSA, which were tabled
in Parliament. The Minister of Finance requested an extension for the tabling of SAA's annual financial statements.
The National Treasury worked with SAA to review and refine the LTTS developed in 2013.

The Land Bank is currently finalising its organisational review which started in the 2014/15 financial year. The aim of
the review is to enhance efficiencies within the Land Bank to ensure it plays a meaningful and catalytic role in the
entire agricultural value chain in South Africa by aligning its mandate with government’s objective for an inclusive
and sustainable agricultural sector. The Land Bank is currently implementing recommendations made during the
diagnostic stage of the review.

Cabinet approved the review of the provincial development finance institutions (PDFls). It is anticipated that the
review, coupled with the previous review of the national development finance institution, will assist in developing
a policy in order to coordinate activities of all developmental financial institutions in South Africa more effectively
and to increase their developmental impact. The review of PDFIs commenced during the 2015/16 financial year. The
outcome of the review will be communicated to Cabinet once completed.

Supported the Minister as a member of the Inter-ministerial committee on state-owned company (SOCs) reforms.
This included developing a draft framework to guide private sector participation alongside government in new
infrastructure projects and piloting a framework for quantifying the costs of the developmental activities undertaken
by SOCs.

Anumber of policies oramendments to acts with implications for the public entities were considered and commented
on, including the ICT policy review, raw water pricing strategy and norms and standards, the draft White Paper on the
national civil aviation policy, and inputs were provided for the development for the integrated energy plan.
Contributed to the work of the task team that has been established to work jointly with representatives from labour
and the private sector to enable increased private investment in infrastructure.

The Government debt management unit successfully financed the gross borrowing requirement of R202.1 billion,
originally budgeted at R204.5 billion. This was financed through issuance of domestic short-term loans (R13.1 billion) and
domestic long-term loans (R174.3 billion) and the use of a surplus cash balance of R14.7 billion. A request for proposal

(RFP) was issued and Banks mandated. No foreign loans were issued, however, due to unfavourable market conditions.

In keeping with efforts to conservatively manage the debt portfolio, the issuance of debt in the domestic market was
executed in a manner that sought to protect the long-term sustainability of the debt portfolio. To this end, 6.9 per cent
was issued in short-term debt, with the remaining 93.1 per cent issued in long-term debt. Of the long-term debt, 82.4 per
cent was issued in fixed rate bonds, with 17.6 per cent issued in inflation linked debt. Three new bonds were introduced
during the year in order to broaden the funding options, and an amount of R55.4 billion was switched from short-dated
debt to long-dated debt.

Debt-service costs were R128.80 billion against an original budget of R126.4 billion. Domestic and foreign loans of R32.0
billion were repaid during 2015/16.

The Financial Operations unit managed cash flows amounting to R4.8 trillion in 2015/16, ensuring that government had
sufficient funds available to meet its daily cash requirements. Short-term loans of R374.3 billion, consisting of Treasury
bills with maturities ranging from 91 days to 365 days were issued and R367.1 billion matured, while borrowing from the
Corporation for Public Deposits on average amounted to R36.7 billion. In addition, surplus cash was optimally invested.

The unit met all the relevant reporting requirements of the PFMA and of the IMF's special data dissemination standards.
To enhance transparency and accountability relevant information was also published on the investor relations website.
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Strategic risk benchmarks define the boundaries of government’s risk tolerance towards foreign currency, inflation and
interest rate exposures as well as maturity distribution between short- and long-term debt in the medium-term based on
cost and risk trade-offs. The outcome of the 2015/16 funding plans based on the risk allocation strategy that was informed
by a hierarchy of funding objectives: liquidity, refinancing risk and funding costs, including the implementation of the
switch strategy, resulted in all benchmarks being within their respective thresholds and ranges.

As at 31 March 2016 the share of short-term debt (Treasury bills only) maturing within a year assessed against a limit of
15 per cent decreased from 12.62 per cent (31 March 2015) to 11.78 per cent due to demand related factors. The share of
long-term debt (fixed rate and inflation linked bonds) maturing within five years assessed against a limit of 25 per cent
decreased from 20.94 per cent (31 March 2015) to 18.60 per cent due to successful switch auctions and more issuance in
the long end. Meanwhile the inflation risk exposure slightly increased from 22.41 per cent (31 March 2015) to 22.96 per
cent against a range of 20-25 per cent due to revaluations.

This is despite the fixed rate bond and inflation linked bond auction split changing from 78/22 (2014/15) to 80/20
(2015/16). Due to the Rand weakening against major currencies, the share of foreign debt increased from 9.44 per cent
(31 March 2015) to 10.06 per cent against a threshold of 15 per cent. The weighted average term as an illustration of how
long government debt remains outstanding increased from 11.6 years (31 March 2015) to 12.6 years for fixed rate bonds
and Treasury bills, while that of inflation linked debt slightly decreased to 14.89 years from 14.98 years (31 March 2015) as
assessed against a range of 10-14 years and 14-17 years, respectively.

Government’s guarantee exposure to public entities increased to R258 billion in 2015/16, from R225.8 billion in 2014/15.
Eskom makes up 65 per cent of the total exposure from the government guarantee portfolio. The inclusion of the exposure
to renewable energy independent power producers in the definition of government’s contingent liabilities has resulted
in an increase of an additional R200 billion to the total exposure. The power purchasing agreements (PPAs) that Eskom
and the independent power producers (IPPs) enter into create a contractual obligation for Eskom to purchase power from
these IPPs over a 20 year period. This should be done at a price agreed to by the National Energy Regulator. Government
provides support in the form of guarantees to Eskom in respect of its obligation under these contracts, indicating that in
the event that Eskom is unable to purchase some or all of the power as stipulated in the PPAs, government will have to
step in and purchase the power on Eskom'’s behalf.

Contingent liability exposure to PPPs is only recognised in respect of a possible termination of the contract where
government will be required to reimburse the private partner. The obligation will only materialise upon the termination
of the contract. In 2015/16, the inclusion of PPPs added an additional R9 billion to government’s contingent liabilities of
which national PPPs account for 37 per cent and provincial PPPs account for 63 per cent. Government'’s other contingent
liabilities include the actuarial deficits of social security funds, which is the difference between the claims owed by these
entities and their total assets. Government commitments to the Export Credit Insurance Corporation of South Africa,
representing the net underwriting exposure of the company and its total assets, also fall into this category, as do claims
against government departments, and post-retirement medical benefits to government employees. Other contingent
liabilities were expected to amount to R286.1 billion as at 31 March 2016, R33.5 billion higher than the previous period due
to an increase in claims by exporters and increased exposure of the Road Accident Fund.

In 2015/16, the country maintained the investment grade credit ratings assigned by all four of the solicited ratings
agencies. In June 2015, both Fitch and S&P reaffirmed South Africa’s credit ratings at ‘BBB’ (negative outlook) and ‘BBB-'
(stable outlook) respectively. In September 2015, Moody's affirmed the country’s credit rating at ‘Baa2’ (stable outlook). In

December 2015, the country was downgraded by Fitch to ‘BBB- (stable outlook) and simultaneously reaffirmed by S&P at
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‘BBB-' (outlook revised from stable to negative). Moody’s reaffirmed South Africa’s credit rating at ‘Baa2’ (outlook revised
from stable to negative).

In January 2016, R&l reaffirmed South Africa’s credit rating of ‘BBB+'(outlook revised from stable to negative). In March 2016,
Moody’s placed the country’s ‘Baa2’ (negative outlook) credit rating under review for possible downgrade. Moody’s had
stated that the review would conclude within three months, and in May 2016 it reaffirmed the country’s ‘Baa2’ (negative
outlook) credit rating. In their midyear reviews in June 2016, both S&P and Fitch affirmed South Africa’s credit ratings at
‘BBB-' (negative outlook) and ‘BBB-(stable outlook) respectively.
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Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year 2014/15 Financial Year
Programme 4 Final Actual | (Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)/Under
9 Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure
Programme
management for 135
o 9681 9188 493 12086 11951
asset and liability
management
State-owned
entity financial
30903 30817 86 29476 29171 305
management and
governance
Government debt
19 562 19 446 116 19425 19 287 138
management
Financial
. 21162 21035 127 20472 20031 441
operations
Strategy and risk
9850 979 54 9913 8964 949
management
Financial
. 3174013 3174013 - 3252000 3000 000 252 000
investments
Total 3265171 3264 295 876 3343372 3089 404 253 968
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4.5 Programme 5: Financial accounting and supply chain

management systems

Purpose

To promote and enforce transparency and effective management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities by

departments, public entities, constitutional institutions and local government.

Measurable objectives

To facilitate accountability, governance and oversight by promoting transparent, economic, efficient and effective

management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities in the public sector.

The programme consists of the following sub-programmes:

Programme management provides support for planning, monitoring and delivering the programme’s activities.
Office of the Chief Procurement Officer aims to modernise the state procurement system to be fair, equitable,
transparent, competitive and cost effective; to enable the efficient, economic, effective and transparent utilisation
of financial and other resources, including state assets, for improved service delivery; and to promote, support and
enforce the transparent and effective management of state procurement and the sound stewardship of government
assets and resources.

Financial systems updates financial management systems to comply with the Public Finance Management Act (1999)
and GRAP.

Financial reporting for national accounts for the National Revenue Fund and the Reconstruction and Development
Fund provide banking services for national government and support to each sphere of government in implementing
the financial reporting frameworks and in preparing consolidated financial statements.

Financial management policy and compliance improvement assists with improving financial management;
developing reporting frameworks in line with international and local best practice; developing and implementing
accounting policies; monitoring compliance with public finance legislation; and improving financial management,
internal audit and risk management capacity within government. It also provides performance auditing and forensic
auditing capacity to the public sector.

Audit statutory bodies covers shortfalls in audit fees in statutory bodies and municipalities in terms of the Auditor-
General Act (Act No. 12 of 1995).

Service charges: commercial banks provides for bank service charges related to departments’ deposit accounts.

The programme contributes towards the aims of Outcome 12 (an efficient, effective and development-oriented public

service), Output 3 (business processes, systems, decision rights and accountability), Output 4 (corruption tackled effectively),

Outcome 9 (a responsive, accountable, effective and efficient local government system) and Output 6 (improvement to

municipal financial and administrative capability).

2015/16 | National Treasury
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SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

Recent outputs

The programme is organised into two divisions: the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer and the Office of the

Accountant-General.
Office of the Chief Procurement Officer

Modernising of supply chain

In the 2015/16 financial year, the OCPO took bold steps towards modernising the supply chain by introducing a central
supplier database for government on 1 September 2015. Registration of suppliers at a single point of access with
significantly reduced red tape yielded approximately 100 000 suppliers registered on the CSD by 1 April 2016. Local
government will be going live on 1 July 2016. This system is imperative for those who wish to conduct business with the
State as they will need to register on the database.

The benefits of the database are:
A once-off supplier registration
Reduction of administrative cost/compliance burden

Standardised and electronic verification of supplier information.

The CPO also introduced an eTender portal on 1 April 2015 resulting in a total of 3 052 tenders published at the end of
the 2015/16 financial year and representing a startling R50 billion of business opportunities with the State. This portal is a
web based platform for organs of State to advertise bids, publish bid notices, amendments or erratums, cancellations and
awards. The benefits of the portal includes:

Free access to tender documents

Transparency

Cost saving.

The development of eProcurement specifications has also been completed. The eCommerce centre has also been
implemented and has been functional since 31 March 2016. Sign-off of this system was done with Department of
Correctional Service (DCS).

Developments were also made with respect to the assessment of local government systems. Circular 80 forimplementation
of local government was published, assessment of local government ICT was conducted and all provincial treasuries were

visited to create awareness.

The enabling of eperformance management for national and provincial government was not developed.

2015/16 | National Treasury



SCM governance, monitoring and compliance

In terms of SCM governance, monitoring and compliance, the following reviews were carried out in the year under the review:
A total of 200 bid specifications reviews were projected and 218 were reviewed against the SMC policy and applicable
procurement instructions.

- The procurement plans reviews projected were 80 and 102 were reviewed for alignment with core functions of the
organisation.

- Atotal of 200 bid evaluation and adjudication minutes reviews were projected and 219 were reviewed to ensure
compliance with evaluation criteria/scoring.

Atotal of 100 projects to be visited were projected and 127 were visited, and 200 contract reviews projected and a total
of 192 were reviewed in terms of physical verification of infrastructure projects, all against the contract specifications
and conditions of tender.

Transversal contracting

Atotal of 14 transversal contracts were projected for renewal and all were renewed. The OCPO intends to intensify industry
research for open competition.

Development and implementation of strategic procurement

A strategic procurement framework was drafted and is supported by a strategic sourcing methodology. Thirty good
practice guides, which will give guidance to practitioners on practical implementation of strategic procurement, were
also drafted.

The following developments were also made in terms of sourcing strategies for identified commodities/procurement

categories:

- Medical equipment: the sourcing strategy was developed and project implementation to commence after bid award.

- Mobile and fixed line communications project: sourcing strategy was developed and the RFP process for mobile
communication has been concluded. The RFP process for the fixed line communications has been initiated.

- Travel and accommodation project: - the project was implemented on 1 April 2016 for airlines and hotels. Non-
exclusive corporate agreements were negotiated and concluded with two airlines and memorandums of
understanding with four major hotels. These agreements are, however, non-exclusive agreements as fair competition
and cost effectiveness still remains the key principle. The agreements were implemented on 1 April 2016.

- Anational travel policy framework was issued in May 2016 which must be implemented by 1 July 2016. This framework
provides for a minimum standard for all public officials travelling on official business.

- Car hire and shuttle services: a sourcing strategy has been developed.

Travel buy site: proof of concept is complete.

Implementation of a price referencing system was piloted with seven departments but could not be rolled out on a
national accessible platform as it did not achieve the intended objectives. The project has been discontinued.
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Infrastructure

The OCPO developed and issued a standard for infrastructure procurement and delivery management as well as an
instruction on cost control measures for the construction of new primary and secondary schools, and the provision for
additional buildings at existing schools.

SCM legal and policy

The delayed promulgation of the revised PPPFA regulations affected the plan of the roll out Regulations. Finalisation of the
standard operating procedures (SOPs) was hampered by capacity constraints while the re-drafting of the Procurement Bill
hampered the rationalisation of procedures.

Stakeholder and client management

Stakeholder and client management is the name of a new chief directorate established by the OCPO. This directorate will
assist in ensuring that government stakeholders are informed of public sector SCM, and SCM practitioners for government
are informed in both formal and informal forums. In the year under review, the directorate launched CSD and other systems,
and engagements on other forthcoming reforms were shared. A three month radio campaign (nine African language &
two commercial radio stations), newspaper and billboard promaotions, were conducted for both CSD registration and
access to eTender. Workshops with SCM practitioners were held in March/April 2016. Engagements and training with civil
society organisations on how they can improve and/or assist government on oversight are to follow.

Office of the Account-General
During this reporting period the Office of the Accountant-General achieved the following objectives per sub-programme:

MFMA Implementation: the unit coordinates the implementation of the MFMA with national departments, provincial
treasuries and cooperative government as well asin municipalities and related entities. [t also develops policies, regulations,
guides and circulars to strengthen implementation; assists in monitoring compliance; provides reports; and supports
municipalities in improving their financial management policies, procedures and practices. The unit administers the MFMA
helpdesk which responds to municipalities’enquiries about the MFMA; and attends regional CFO Forums to explain MFMA
prescripts and guides. It is notable that the unit had rolled out the financial management capability maturity model as
well the 32 financial management indicators where all municipalities and entities we assessed. A first for the country’s local
government. Assessment reports highlighting outcomes and actions required were circulated to provincial treasuries,
department of performance monitoring and evaluation, municipalities and entities during 2015. These assessments
provide a basis for measuring progress made in implementing financial reforms in municipalities and entities over the past

12 years of the MFMA and the results will be used to direct specific support and other intervention measures.

The unitalso administers and manages the Financial Management Grant Programme where support plans for municipalities
form the basis of allocations which are targeted towards addressing weaknesses. This is reported on in more detail in
Programme 8. The Municipal Finance Recovery Service continued to monitor municipalities' performance and prioritise
technical support to respond to their requests for assistance in developing financial recovery plans. The focus of the work
has been to follow up on outstanding bulk water and electricity payments; introducing measures to assist municipalities

2015/16 | National Treasury



to address payment challenges; and train municipal officials in completing 32 financial ratios to assist in reprioritising
resource allocations and for future sustainability measures.

The unit supported municipalities’ implementation of the MFMA through, among other means, engaging on topical
matters with officials of national and provincial departments, SALGA and the Office of the Auditor-General. The purpose
of these meetings is to improve the coordination of financial management reforms in municipalities and to reprioritise
initiatives towards addressing the specific weaknesses. MFMA circulars have been issued to assist with implementing
steps to address unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure, supply chain management processes, and
uniform norms and standards on financial management. Regulations dealing with the enforcement of the MFMA, focusing
on financial misconduct, were issued with explanatory content towards implementation. The unit has also undertaken
extensive countrywide awareness-raising workshops to assist municipalities with the implementation of the regulations.
Most of the weaknesses identified through the FMCMM and audit outcomes reports form part of the strategic focus
for support within various divisions in National and Provincial Treasuries. These have been included in the revised MTSF
Outcome 9 deliverables where closer monitoring is expected from the executive.

Technical Support Services: the unit made further refinements to the Modified Cash Standard and related accounting
manuals. A new reporting template was introduced to assist departments in the preparation of the interim and annual
financial statements. The template introduced new automations and tests to ensure the accuracy and timely completion
of the information. A new initiative of the unit was the conceptualisation of an e-learning platform for the Standards of
GRAP together with the School of Government will allow preparers to work through the requirements of the Standards in
a simple and automated environment. The portal will be rolled out in the 2016/2017 financial year.

Capacity Building: during the period under review, the unit further researched, developed and implemented structural
and policy reforms to make Internal Audit and risk management functions more responsive to government challenges..
Assistance to municipalities with the preparation of financial recovery plans was further advanced with three new
recovery plans drafted and five existing recovery plans reviewed. Support and training was provided to representatives
from all spheres of government, further building financial management competencies across the public sector. The unit
continued progress in the implementation of the Public Finance Management Capacity Development Strategy (CDS)
having developed standardised job descriptions for the PFM disciplines as well as, in collaboration with the DPSA,
evaluated job profiles. A number of leranerships have been implemented and the actademic support programme for
prospective chartered accountants continues to grow.

Risk Management Support: The Risk Management Support unit provided technical risk management support services to
national and provincial departments, municipalities and public entities. Four risk management fora were held during the
year to facilitate knowledge sharing amongst risk specialists. The Risk Management Support unit supported the MFMA
unit to perform a comprehensive survey of the state of risk management in all municipalities. Pursuant to the updates to
the Treasury Regulations three new guidelines on specific areas of risk management were developed and will be released
concurrently with the Regulations.

Accounting Support and Reporting: During the 2015/16 financial year, the unit prepared and tabled the consolidated
annual financial statements for national departments, including the National Revenue Fund, and public entities within the
prescribed timeframes. It also prepared and tabled the annual financial statements of the Reconstruction and Development
Programme Fund in line with the requirements of the PFMA. The unit monitored and reported on information on national
revenue and expenditure through reports published monthly in terms of Section 32 of the PFMA. Training and accounting
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support interventions were conducted including technical advice to assist all spheres of government to improve financial
management. The unit made significant progress on the development of five sets of Standard Operating Procedures for
Local Government focusing on the most significant accounting and internal control processes.

Financial Systems: The Financial Systems continued to operate optimally, in part assisted by the SITA upgrading their
backup power generators at Centurion. It is noted that due to the National Treasury’s internal LAN experiencing slow
response and down-time towards the year-end period, the adequate and timely assistance provided to user departments
by the Financial Systems was impacted at a critical time of year-end processing. Despite this the system availability
achieved greater than 98% during the reporting period and user departments were fortunately not adversely affected as
they accessed the systems through a WAN linked directly to the mainframe. Significant progress was made in the delivery
and roll out of an IFMS to national and provincial departments.

Governance Monitoring and Compliance

Creating governance synergies with leadership

The Office of the Accountant-General has completed a series of guidelines developed to assist and strengthen accounting
officers, accounting authorities and executive authorities with a pocket guide to the Public Finance Management Act, Act
No 1 of 1999, (PFMA) to strengthen financial management responsibilities entrusted to accounting officers and accounting
authorities and to strengthen oversight responsibilities of executive authorities in institutions that must comply with the
PFMA. Workshops and information sessions will be conducted on these guidelines with the aim of empowering accounting
officers, accounting authorities and executive authorities to effectively fulfil their responsibilities.

Revised Treasury Regulations

The Office of the Accountant-General undertook a comprehensive review of the Treasury Regulations published in 2005,
including those that were amended in 2007 and 2013.The purpose of that review was to ensure alignment of the Treasury
Regulations with local and international financial management best practices and to incorporate financial management
reforms that were introduced since its last publication and integrate the regulatory provisions contained in all Practice and
Treasury Instructions. The revised Treasury Regulations have been submitted to the Minister of Finance for his consideration

and approval.

Cost Containment Measures

South Africa experienced the global economic scarcity in the last decade. This has affected economic growth in South
Africa over the last eight years prompting a deceleration in economic growth. Due to the economic problem of scarcity,
the National Treasury has further issued cost cutting measures to curb unnecessary expenditure. The additional cost
cutting measures include expenses relating to the purchasing of inventory, communication and advertising, debts owed

to the State, hiring of venues and facilities and hosting and attending of conferences.
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Compliance Management Framework

The National Treasury, as part of its mandate to enforce compliance with the provisions of the Public Finance Management
Act, Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA), developed a compliance management framework together with the related guidelines to assist
the accounting officers and accounting authorities to improve the levels of compliance in their respective institutions with

all relevant financial management obligations.

Non-payments of suppliers within the prescribed period

The Office of the Accountant-General continued to monitor compliance of departments with the requirement to pay their
suppliers within a period of 30 days and reported bi-monthly to the Forum of South African Directors-General (FOSAD)
and Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) on the level of compliance. Furthermore, the Office of Accountant-
General responded to queries received from suppliers whose payments have been outstanding for a period longer than
30 days and assisted such suppliers to receive such outstanding payments from the relevant departments.
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Linking performance with budgets

2014/15 Financial Year

Programme 5 ) Fipal Astual (Over)/U_nder ) Fipal Aftual (Over)/U'nder

Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure
Programme
management
for financial

26 680 24729 1951 17 424 15157 2267

accounting and
supply chain
management
Office of the Chief
Procurement 57071 55279 1792 42328 38635 3693
Officer
Financial systems 443 062 441042 2020 413843 412147 1696
Financial reporting
for national 83382 82986 396 88096 86 385 1711
accounts
Financial
management
policy and 131459 128 482 2977 146 789 117812 28977
compliance
improvement
Audit statutory
bodies 41856 41856 - 61258 61257 1
Service charges:
Commercial banks 243 121 122 297 102 195
Total 783753 774 495 9258 770035 731495 38540
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4.6 Programme 6: International financial relations

Purpose

Manage South Africa’s interests in shaping regional and global policies which advance the economic, financial and

development objectives of the country, and of Africa.
During the period under review, the division's focus was on the following areas.

Implementing the goal of increasing South Africa’s voice and representation in multilateral development banks (MDBs)
through:

«  African Development Bank (AfDB)
- South Africa was allocated 633 new shares for selective capital increase in the financial year which will help
increase the country’s shareholding. A payment for these shares is allocated for the 2016/17 financial year. South
Africa’s shareholding at the bank is now 5.0 per cent.

« International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD)
- South Africa asked for an extension to complete its general capital increase (GCl) subscriptions until 2018. This
was due to a 40 per cent decline of the Rand to US dollar resulting in under budget. South Africa has already paid
90 per cent of US$27 million since 2010 to recapitalise the World Bank to respond to the global economic crisis.

+  Replenishment of IDA and ADF
- South Africa is a member of the International Development Association (IDA), a concessional funding window in
the World Bank, and the African Development Fund (ADF), a concessional funding window in AfDB. These two
funds provide support to poor countries which are mostly in Africa. Negotiations are under way to replenish
these two funds.

+  Global development policy
- The international and regional economic policy (IREP) division played an important role in partnership with
other government departments in the international negotiations for global agreements on development that
were concluded in 2015. IREP supported the Minister of Finance in concluding the agreement on financing for
development (FfD) during the third conference on FfD that took place in Addis Ababa, Ethiopia from 13 to 16
July 2015. IREP also played a critical role in the finance track negotiations of the Paris Agreement during the 21st
conference of the parties (COP21) that took place in Paris from 30 November to 12 December 2015.

«  Africa Continental
- The division compiles analyses and briefs for all regional and international meetings where it leads or supports
participation at the African Union. Briefing notes were prepared for the joint annual meetings of the UNECA and
the AU Summit. In addition, the division
- Assessed progress on membership to the Africa Export - Import Bank. The outcome of the Export Credit Insurance
Corporation (ECIC) diligence report is still pending.
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- Conducted cost and benefit analysis to determine SA’s participation in the African Risk Capacity (ARC). A
memorandum has since been submitted to the Minister for his consideration and approval.

- Conducted an assessment of the financial sustainability to the AU. A Joint Cabinet memorandum was prepared
with DIRCO and the National Treasury. Cabinet approved the memorandum, and the National Treasury is awaiting
a formal notification from DIRCO.

- Processed payments/transfers to international and regional institutions i.e. Infrastructure Consortium for Africa
(ICA), Africa Technical Regional Centre South (AFRITACS), and the African Institute for Economic Development
and Planning (IDEP). This was in terms of South Africa’s initiatives/agreements with various international
institutions.

SACU
- Management of South Africa's membership of the Southern African Customs Union (SACU), in collaboration with
the dti and SARS.

SADC

- Compiling analyses and briefs for regional and international meetings where the division leads or supports
participation, including the Southern African Development Community.

- Coordinating the implementation and compliance of various national stakeholders to the SADC finance and
investment protocol.

- Engaging at the subcommittee level to discuss measures relating to improving the use of resources allocated to
SADC Secretariat.

BRICS

- Ratification of the BRICS Contingent Reserve Agreement’s Articles of Association, as well as the Articles of
Agreement establishing the New Development Bank (NDB). The official launch of the NDB headquarters took
place in Shanghai in February 2016. The first Board of Governors meeting took place on the margins of the
seventh BRICS summit in Moscow in July 2016, where the President of the NDB, as well as Vice Presidents, were
officially appointed. The National Treasury, on behalf of the South African Government, is working towards the
setting up of the NDB Africa Regional Centre in Johannesburg.

AlIB

- To support South Africa's membership of the Asian Infrastructure Investment Bank (AlIB), the Minister of Finance
signed the Articles of Agreement establishing the AlIB on 3 December 2015. The National Treasury will take the
agreement through the Parliamentary process for ratification.

Working towards the goal of African economic development through:

Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD)

Increasing presence in the OECD through improved intergovernmental and intra-departmental coordination and
improved engagement with the OECD to assist in strengthening national policy development. This was done
through the hosting of meetings of the OECD interdepartmental working group (IWG). In the week leading up to the
launch of the OECD Economic Survey, we piloted the concept of OECD Week, during which a series of knowledge
exchange workshops were arranged on eGovernance, competition policy, labour market policy, modelling structural
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transformation, new approaches to economic challenges, agriculture and anticorruption and governance. The
OECD week attracted more than 400 senior public officials and can be utilised as an efficient approach to facilitate
knowledge exchange between officials and the OECD.

World Economic Forum

- Ensuring South Africa’s positive representation at the World Economic Forum annual meeting in Davos and at the
World Economic Forum on Africa which was hosted in Cape Town in 2015. IREP was responsible for coordinating
government’s participation at both of these events and ensuring that principals and South African WEF members
were poised to showcase South Africa as a trade partner and investment destination of choice.

African Continental

- Consultations were conducted with relevant government departments on the development of the Africa strategy.
Terms of reference have been prepared and further consultations are to be undertaken with a view to appointing a
consultant.

- There was an assessment of constraints on the programme for infrastructure development in Africa (PIDA) through
NT's participation during the PIDA Week. This is a forum where PIDA priority action plan (PAP) projects are discussed,
together with the implementation and financing of projects.

SACU

- Conducting bilateral consultations with the SACU member states, as in the National Treasury’s capacity as chair of the
SACU Council of Ministers, to ensure that the focus of the Union is on supporting the development of member states.

SADC

- Negotiations on the operationalisation of the SADC regional development fund.

G20

- Ensuring effective representation of South Africa’s position in discussions and negotiations during meetings of
G20 Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors (also called ‘the Finance Track’) of the G20; and working in close
cooperation with the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) and other relevant stakeholders, particularly the Presidency
and DIRCO. During the period under review, this included a series of domestic and regional outreach events in May
at the AfDB annual meetings. South Africa’s strategy to the G20 was presented to Cabinet and endorsed.

International Monetary Fund (IMF)
- Ensuring sustained high quality dialogue between South Africa and the IMF. During the period under review, this

included facilitating IMF’s staff visit as well as the visit of IMF Vice President, David Lipton, in May 2015, and his

meetings with key stakeholders.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD)

Fewer meetings of the OECD interdepartmental working group were held during the year than were anticipated. This was
due to shortages in personnel during the period of IREP's restructuring as well as coordinating difficulties with the co-hosts
of the meeting at the DIRCO. This is unlikely to be a problem in the next financial year as the unit working on OECD will

be fully staffed and thus also in a better position to find suitable dates to co-host the IWG meetings with DIRCO, and to
improve intergovernmental coordination and engagement with the OECD.

Africa Continental

Conducted cost and benefit analysis to determine SA's participation in ARC. Submission was prepared for the Minister to
consider and approve whether South Africa should participate in ARC. Pending his approval, membership cannot proceed.

The outcome of the Export Credit Insurance Corporation (ECIC) diligence report is still pending. The National Treasury

will await the outcome of the report to ascertain if South Africa, through the ECIC, will take up membership of the
Afrexim Bank.

SACU

The SACU ministerial retreat will be held from 19 to 20 June 2016, and will focus on galvanising a common SACU position
on the most suitable way to ensure that SACU is transformed into a developmental institution.

SADC

Bilateral engagement has taken place with Finance Ministers of key countries to ensure that there iscommon understanding
on the operationalisation of the SADC RDF, and in particular, what form it should take.
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Linking performance with budgets

Programme 6

Programme
management
for international

financial relations

2015/16 Financial Year

Final
Appropriation

15927

Actual
Expenditure

14 527

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

1400

2014/15 Financial Year

Final
Appropriation

8731

Actual
Expenditure

8318

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

International
economic

cooperation

30517

30387

130

27 803

27 264

539

African integration
and support

717534

717531

588393

588292

101

International
development
funding

institutions

2762652

2762656

557595

557582

13

International
projects

21032

21031

17195

17195

Total

3547662

3546132

1530

1199717

1198 651

1066
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4.7 Programme 7: Civil and military pensions, contributions
to funds and other benefits

Purpose

Provide pensions and post-retirement medical benefits to former employees of state departments and bodies. Provide

similar benefits to members of the military, special pensioners, state employees injured on duty and related categories.

Measurable objective

The programme ensures the payment of benefits and awards to rightful beneficiaries in terms of various statutes, collective
bargaining and other agreements. It is the responsibility of the programme to ensure that benefits are paid to the correct

recipients within specified times.

The programme is divided into the following key delivery sub-programmes:
Management provides support for planning, delivering and monitoring the programme’s activities.
Government Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA) provides administrative services as regulated by various
statutes.
Military pensions and other benefits provides for the payment of military pensions and medical claims arising from
treatment for disability, medical assistance devices and other related expenses in terms of statutory commitments.
Post-retirement medical benefits deals with the processing of medical aid applications for qualifying retired
government employees.
Special pensions provides for the payment of pensions to qualifying persons who made sacrifices or served the public
interest in the cause of establishing a democratic constitutional order.
Injury on duty payments provides pensions and gratuities to injured or deceased employees in terms of the
Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (Act No. 130 of 1993) (COIDA).

These funds are administered on behalf of the National Treasury, with which GPAA has an SLA governing turnaround times,

the registration of new members, payments made, errors committed, over payments and under payments, risks, audit
findings, business continuity and financial issues.

SERVICE DELIVERY - RECENT OUTPUTS

Strategic objectives for the financial year 2015/16

To pay the right amount as per legal entitlement as prescribed by legislation and rules.
To pay benefits on time as per legislation.
To pay the right person who is a lawful beneficiary.
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Achievements

The sub-programme achieved 91 per cent of client satisfaction levels against a target of 80 per cent, as well as 100 per
cent of benefits paid accurately against a target of 80 per cent, by paying the right amount accurately as per the legal
entitlement as prescribed by the legislation and rules of the funds under administration. This was achieved due to a

collective team effort and sound leadership and strategic direction.

In terms of compliance to the customer SLA, the programme achieved 97 per cent against a target of 90 per cent. This can
be attributed to team's efforts and continuous monitoring of the sub-programme’s production, improvement in internal

controls and a focus on leadership within the units.
The sub-programme paid 92.5 per cent of benefits within 45 days against a target of 100 per cent.

The programme paid out pensions and benefits of R3.9 billion in 2015/16 compared to R3.7 billion in 2014/15, an increase
of 5.4 per cent. This can be attributed to the 28.5 per cent increase in post-retirement medical subsidies.

The overall number of pensioners and beneficiaries increased by 3.4 per cent in 2015/16, from 114 960 in 2014/15 to
118 900 in 2015/16. The increase in applications received can be attributed to post-retirement medical subsidy.

Stakeholder relations

The programme places a premium on building and maintaining stakeholder relations. This process entails planning,
targeting, monitoring and reporting of all stakeholder activities that took place during the year.

During 2015/16 the programme met with stakeholders in Cape Town, Durban and Kimberley to strengthen relations.
The programme also met with key stakeholders for all categories of benefits for post-retirement medical subsidies. These
stakeholders are the Medical Aid Schemes for the implementation of increases, GEMS, the South African Military Veterans
Association (SAMVA), the Department of Military Veterans regarding the implementation of their pension, and Cape Corps
to discuss applications received. It also attended the Board of Health Funders conference.

Military pensions awareness campaign

The unit embarked on an awareness drive in 2015/16 to inform prospective applicants in Durban, Kimberley and Kuruman,
and the Western Cape, about the provisions and criteria for accessing military pensions. Other provinces are earmarked to
be contacted in 2016/17.

Challenges

A manual separation of main members from beneficiaries is currently being implemented as part of the application
control review audit findings.

The programme needs to intensify its communication to members and employer departments, increase awareness
and reduce application errors when accessing benefits for post-retirement medical subsidies, military pensions and
medical accounts and injury on duty award processes.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The manual project implemented to separate main members from beneficiaries for Military pensions will improve the
control environment in the programme.
To reduce errors and delays in payments, employer departments will be trained and the process will be monitored by

customer liaison officers.

Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year 2014/15 Financial Year
Proaramme 7 Final Actual | (Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)/Under
9 Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure
Government
Pensions
T 56 587 56 586 1 54433 54395 38
Administration
Agency
Civil pensions and
contributions to 3156 562 3156521 41 2613927 2613931 4)
fund
Military pensions
754 592 754 591 1 1062611 1062 609 2
and other benefits
Total 3967 741 3967 698 43 3730971 3730935 36
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4.8 Programme 8: Technical and management support and
development finance

Purpose

Provide advisory services, programme management and development finance support to improve public finance
management, support high-impact government initiatives, facilitate employment creation and strengthen infrastructure
planning and delivery.

Measurable objective

Promote public and private investment in infrastructure and public services by providing technical support for
organisational strengthening and capital expenditure planning. This includes advising on public-private partnerships,
project management, infrastructure service delivery and financing alternatives for capital projects.
Specific aims are to:
Build public sector capacity through diagnostic and advisory services and support for organisational development,
specialised procurement, improved public finance management and programme and project implementation.
Strengthen public finance management capacity in municipalities and support provincial treasury oversight of local
government financial management.
Promote public and private investment in city development, integrated urban networks and neighbourhood
development initiatives.
Promote innovative and partnership-based approaches to employment creation, work-seeker support and enterprise
development.
Support infrastructure planning, implementation and skills development in provinces and municipalities.

SERVICE DELIVERY - RECENT OUTPUTS

The Government Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC) provides management support for programme 8, technical consulting
services, specialised procurement and project management support, infrastructure advice and knowledge management
in support of efficient, effective and transparent public finance management.

The Minister of Finance has transferred to GTAC the functions of the former Technical Assistance Unit, the National Capital
Projects Unit, the Jobs Fund Project Management Unit and the advisory functions of the Public-private partnership Unit.
In undertaking its advisory and project management support activities, GTAC draws on core funding provided by the
National Treasury and co-funding by international donor partners, while also partially recovering professional service costs
from client departments or entities. GTAC also coordinates and provides management support for programme 8, and
operates a project development facility through which potential PPP projects, neighbourhood development partnership
projects and employment facilitation projects are supported.

GTAC provided technical and advisory support to 189 projects during 2015/16, including assessing infrastructure and
processes at the country’s ports of entry, reviewing public entities in the Eastern Cape, supporting the mining and basic
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education Phakisa processes, and assessing the feasibility of various national capital projects, such as solar and gas
technologies for energy generation and national rail projects.

Transaction support work over the past year has included ongoing assistance to the PRASA rolling stock renewal
programme, support to the Free State Department of Health for investment in independent power capacity and work on
a wide range of PPP projects.

GTAC's long-term strategic intent is to provide a centre of excellence in policy advice and public finance management, in
partnership with academic and research centres focused on public-sector management and training. In partnership with the
Southern African Labour and Development Research Unit, GTAC supports a research programme on employment, income
distribution and inclusive growth, and seeks to promote public discourse and understanding of public policy, social and
economic development and public finance management through publications, consultative forums and dialogue.

The performance and expenditure review programme was initiated as a joint project of the Department of Planning,
Monitoring and Evaluation and the National Treasury, and is managed by GTAC. Nine performance and expenditure
reviews were completed during the year, including studies on leased government accommodation and the funding
of border management. The reviews aim to identify options that offer greater value for money in public expenditure
and improve alignment in the use of development and service delivery indicators for government-wide performance
monitoring, budget planning and reporting.

On behalf of the National Treasury, GTAC administers the employment creation facilitation programme and the MFIP, and
contributes to the city support and infrastructure delivery improvement programmes of the Intergovernmental Relations

Division.

Within the context of government’s National Development Plan and medium-term strategic framework, GTAC seeks to
contribute to building a capable and development oriented state, while also strengthening capacity to work with the
private sector in promoting growth, employment, infrastructure investment and public service delivery.

GTAC also maintains the independent power producer procurement programme (IPPPP) account on behalf of the National
Treasury and the Department of Energy. Revenue to the account derives from fees payable by participants in the IPP

programme, and covers the administration and contract management expenses of the IPP office.

More information on GTAC performance is available in the 2015/16 GTAC annual report.

Local Government Financial Management Support includes transfers to municipalities to support implementation of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and technical assistance to provincial treasuries and
municipalities through the MFIP. The financial management grant (FMG) is a conditional grant governed by schedule 5(b)
of DoRA. It promotes and supports reforms in financial management and capacity building in municipalities to enable
them to implement the MFMA.

In 2015/16, R452.4 million in grant funding was disbursed in terms of the Division of Revenue Act (Act No. 1 of 2015),
in two payments. The first was in July 2015, when R383.1 million was transferred to 237 municipalities. Payment to 41
municipalities was delayed, as they either did not comply with the requirements of the Act or did not provide their
updated cash flows and reasons for previous slow spending of funds. After correspondence with these municipalities, the
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outstanding documents were submitted to NT and the remaining R69.2 million was transferred to the 41 municipalities
in August 2015.

Every month, municipalities have to submit reports to the National Treasury on spending the grant, aligned with their
support plans. Given staffing constraints, it is impossible for the National Treasury to undertake site visits or perform
physical verifications at municipalities. The actual performance of the grant is best measured at municipal level and can be
audited as part of the regularity audit performed by the Auditor-General.

At the end of March 2016, total spending levels averaged 68 per cent of the grant. The municipal financial year differs
from the provincial financial year, and ends in June. In the past, spending has been close to 100 per cent at the municipal
year-end.

The financial management grant contributed to the following outputs:

- All 278 municipalities submitted their 2015/16 financial management grant support plans.

+  Atthe end of the financial year, 130 municipal managers and 140 chief financial officers had completed the training
provided by the municipal finance management programme; 12 079 municipal officials received certificates for
completing unit standards.

- Asat 31 March 2016, 1 284 interns had been appointed in municipalities throughout all nine provinces.

All 278 municipalities reported the establishment of internal audit units and audit committees.

« Atotal of 251 municipalities developed audit action plans to address 2014/15 audit findings.

-+ Audit outcomes improved significantly over the last three years.

Since 2010/11, the number of municipalities that submit their annual financial statements to the Auditor-General on time
has increased. Auditor-General reports also indicate a steady improvement in positive audit outcomes. By 31 August 2015,
266 municipalities had submitted their 2014/15 annual financial statements to the Auditor-General. Since then, all 278
municipalities have submitted their statements for audit.

The MFIP phase Il'is a hands-on capacity building programme to improve the management of local government’s financial
affairs. It places technical advisors in municipalities’ budget and treasury offices, and in provincial treasuries’ municipal
finance management units, to help them implement the National Treasury’s local government budget and financial

management reform agenda.

The programme supports municipalities and provincial treasuries in two ways.

Institutionally, it strengthens the ability of municipalities to capacitate their budget and treasury offices by appointing
officials who can ensure compliance with the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003). It also builds the
capacity of staff through training and development.

Technically, it helps these officials ensure compliance with the municipal accountability cycle, including strategic planning,
budgeting, in-year implementation and compilation, annual financial statements, annual reporting, internal auditing,

oversight and supply chain management.

The programme further assists targeted municipalities with the implementation of the m-SCOA, which was promulgated
in 2014 with a legislated compliance date of 1 July 2017. It also supports targeted municipalities in addressing specific
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priority outcomes from the FMCMM assessments in municipalities undertaken in 2015 and issues raised by the Auditor-
General in its consolidated MFMA outcome reports, such as risk management, asset management, billing and revenue

management, and audit outcomes, in the medium-term.

As at 31 March 2016, the programme was providing support in the following areas:

- General financial management: 37 municipalities, with an eventual target of supporting 44 municipalities.
Improving the capacity of provincial treasuries to monitor, oversee and support local government: four provincial
treasuries, with the aim of supporting all nine in future.

- Integrated infrastructure and asset management system, including accounting and audit support: 20 municipalities.
Implementation of the m-SCOA regulations in municipalities: Six provincial treasuries, with the aim of supporting all
nine.

- Five specialists who support local government in improving financial management, with a focus on revenue,
budgeting, assets, audit and the financial management capability maturity model.

Currently, the programme has contracted 63 advisors.

In line with the capacity building focus of the MFIP Il, advisors held 3 441 formal and informal training engagements and
exposed 1 050 municipal officials to various financial management disciplines. As part of the nationwide m-SCOA training,
44 training sessions were conducted and 1 527 officials received non-accredited training on the m-SCOA regulations.

By the financial year-end, the MFIP Il was supporting 37 municipalities on general financial management (up from 11 a
year ago), and another 20 on asset management.

Of the ten municipalities that the MFIP Il started to support in January and February 2015, four obtained an improved
audit opinion and none showed any regression. Disclaimers declined from four municipalities to only one, and most of the
municipalities that had previously received disclaimers received qualified audits.

The MFIP Il programme steering committee approved the launch of an integrated infrastructure and asset management
project in nine pilot municipalities identified by the respective provincial treasuries. The overall results were positive, with
five progressing from a disclaimed’ or ‘qualified’ audit opinion to'no findings'on property, plant and equipment.

Urban Development and Support comprises the neighbourhood development partnership grant and the integrated cities
development grant, aimed at strengthening public and private investment in improved living and working conditions in
townships and more spatially resilient, efficient and integrated towns and cities.

Established in 2006, the Neighbourhood Development Programme unit is responsible for managing the neighbourhood
development partnership grant. This grant aims to fund, support and facilitate the planning and implementation of
neighbourhood development programmes and projects that provide catalytic infrastructure to attract third-party public
and private sector investment. The objective is to realise the social and economic potential of targeted underserved
neighbourhoods, improve residents’ quality of life and contribute to South Africa’s economic performance.

The National Development Plan's human settlement chapter highlights the importance of transforming towns and
cities spatially to improve access to economic opportunities as well as the quality of life of citizens, especially people in
townships or living on the periphery. The unit’s strategic planning and investment framework, the urban network strategy,
supports this transformation, as well as broader economic developmental outcomes.
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Using the urban network strategy as a guide to changing the spatial form of larger urban centres, the programme aims to:

- Support municipalities in city wide strategic planning to ensure more integrated, equitable, efficient and effective
cities that can improve the lives of the urban poor.
Optimise public infrastructure investment, regulatory mechanisms and development incentives, as well as the
coordinated management of targeted strategic nodes and urban hubs in townships.

«  Attract, coordinate and leverage private sector investment into the targeted transit-oriented, mixed-use precincts.
Provide the spatial-targeting component of the cities support programme, as reflected in the built environment

performance plans for metros.

The programme is governed by conditions set out in the Division of Revenue Act.

The neighbourhood development partnership grant comprises a technical assistance component and a capital grant
component. The technical assistance component is intended for network, integration zone, precinct and project
packaging and planning, as well as the coordination of urban management. The 2015/16 technical assistance budget was
R25.9 million and R17.3 million was spent by municipalities.

The capital grant component provides catalytic investment into targeted township precincts. In 2015/16, R583.6 million
was transferred to municipalities for capital projects. Since its inception in 2006/07, the grant has registered 355 projects
across more than 65 municipalities. In total, 258 township projects have been completed to the value of over R34 billion;
61 projects in urban areas and 6 in rural areas are still under construction. Neighbourhood development partnership grant
projects in rural municipalities are supported in collaboration with the Department of Rural Development and Land

Reform to explore the feasibility of a small town regeneration grant for rural areas.

The programme’s interventions are ultimately aimed at leveraging third-party investment into targeted urban
spaces, primarily urban hubs in townships. Third-party public and private investment since the inception of the
programme amounts to R4.2 billion. In order to increase the level and diversity of such investment, precinct
management technical assistance has been provided since 2015/16. Two pilots are under way: the Jabulani Urban
Hub in Soweto, Johannesburg and the Mdantsane Urban Hub in Buffalo City. The latter is a joint venture with the
German development agency GIZ.

The city support programme, together with the neighbourhood development partnership programme, plays a significant
role in promoting cities as the key drivers for transforming the spatial landscape and accelerating economic growth. Since
its inception in 2012, with a team of three, the programme has become an important element of government’s response
to the challenges of urban growth. It is premised on the need for large urban municipalities to make a more focused
contribution to national economic development and the reduction in poverty and inequality. The programme supports

metropolitan municipalities in developing more inclusive, productive and sustainable cities.

The programme promotes an enabling policy and regulatory environmentfor city development, through improvements
in the local government fiscal framework, support for best practices in urban development and direct technical
assistance to metros. Projects and associated activities have been identified in consultation with cities, through their
city support implementation plans. These plans are implemented at national level through five component plans
(core city governance, human settlements, public transport, climate resilience and sustainability, and economic
development). The programme contributes to the generation and sharing of innovative practices and processes, as
requested by cities, as well as recommended changes to the enabling policy, regulatory and fiscal environment within
which cities operate.
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The city support programme has formed strategic partnerships with a number of institutions with a similar focus,
including the Cities Network, GTAC, the World Bank, the Centre for Affordable Housing Finance in Africa, the DBSA, and
the South African Local Government Association. These collaborative agreements have assisted in driving the importance
of South African cities as engines of growth. Formal engagements continue to provide insights into managing the
complex challenges facing cities, which often result from policies such as segregated development. This year, the
programme’s engagements included discussions with the Swedish development agency, SECO, and the World Bank
on the implementation of reimbursable advisory services; dialogue with the Centre for Development and Enterprise on
their forthcoming publications on cities and growth; participation in a conference on cities and growth, hosted by the
International Growth Centre (London School of Economics and Oxford University); and discussions with the Department
of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs on the development of a secondary cities programme.

In 2015/16, the city support programme concluded its planning phase, and moved into a delivery-focused period. During

this period the programme undertook the following initiatives:

- Areporting reforms project has undertaken work to improve the quality of data collected from municipalities and
simultaneously reduce the reporting burden. This initiative also included an overview of the data requirements from
the sector departments and provinces.

- Planning support to cities through the annual BEPP process continued with a key focus on increasingly strong
alignment across spheres of government, and with budgets.

- Support for the preparation of catalytic land development projects identified in BEPP, including panel reviews
facilitated by the Urban Land Institute.

Following the success of the delivery of the first Urban Investment Partnership conference (UIPC) in August 2015,
technical support has been initiated to develop long-term financing strategies for cities, review the municipal
borrowing policy framework, and improve quarterly monitoring of municipal borrowings.

A toolkit for the cities infrastructure delivery management system has been finalised at a technical level.

- An informal settlements support programme has been designed and agreed with the Department of Human
Settlements, for implementation in 2016/17. This is complemented by research and recommendations on
improvements to public housing finance arrangements.

- Considerable detailed technical support has been provided to cities in the design and management of bus rapid
transit systems, complemented by changes to the funding framework introduced in the 2016 budget.

An executive city leadership course on urban economic development was hosted in Q3, to complement the sub-
national cost of doing business study, with follow up system reforms and peer learning events being scheduled in cities.

The Employment Creation Facilitation sub-programme was introduced in 2011 to contribute to employment and inclusive
growth by supporting innovative approaches to job creation and enterprise development. The Jobs Fund is the main
component of the programme, comprising a multi-year R9 billion investment which leverages complementary funding
from public and private sector project partners. The fund was initially established in partnership with the DBSA. It operates
as a "challenge fund” and allocates matching grants following a competitive, open and transparent application process.
Project allocations are made by an independent investment committee.

To date, six CFPs (calls for proposals) have been issued. The objective is to support initiatives that innovatively catalyse new
employment creation models that can be replicated and scaled. The fund offers once-off grants in the areas of enterprise
development, infrastructure, support for job seekers and institutional capacity building. More recently, it has also targeted

the agricultural sector.
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Since inception, 118 projects have been approved against a target of 125, 13 withdrew prior to contracting (leaving 105
on the approved portfolio) and 95 are currently in implementation. The agriculture funding round (fifth CFPs) did not yield
the anticipated number of new projects but the target is likely to be reached upon finalisation of the sixth CFPs in 2016.
The fund has made steady progress against its targets, and exceeded several of these, including the matched funding
leveraged indicator (by 15 per cent) and the short-term jobs created indicator (by 14 per cent). It also achieved 94 per cent
of the new permanent jobs indicator.

In 2015/16 the fifth CFPs, focused on agriculture, was concluded. Many of these projects are in full implementation. The
fund received 262 concept note applications for this round, with a total of 17 projects finally being approved. A total of
R807 million has been allocated towards these projects and they will create 11 634 new permanent non seasonal jobs and
10 497 permanent seasonal jobs over the project implementation period.

The fund has supported several projects aimed at unlocking available funds for financing SMME development. In one case,
a project partner aimed to raise R300 million from pension funds against a guarantee of R75 million from the fund, and to
date has raised R450 million against the guarantee (an over-achievement of 150 per cent).

In support of enterprise development, the fund has to date funded 12 097 businesses of which 11 930 are black owned
(98.6 per cent) with a total value of the R973 million.

Table 10.1 - JOBS FUND IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS (inception to date)

INDICATORS | Target | Actual | % Target reached
Projects reporting as at the end of March 2016 95 95 100.0%
Jobs Fund grant disbursed R4.268 billion R3.22 billion 75.4%
Grantee contributions (matched funding) R3.984 billion R4.565 billion 114.6%
Total project cost (matched funding + JF grant) R8.252 billion R7.785 billion 94.3%
New permanent jobs created 78172 73698 94.3%
Placements in vacant permanent positions 52415 40 641 77.5%
Short-term jobs created 15484 1,642 113.9%
Beneficiaries completing internships 19148 14786 77.2%
Beneficiaries completing training 134 635 148 782 110.5%

Infrastructure Development Support provides technical support for infrastructure development planning and

implementation to municipalities and provinces by providing technical expertise, advisory services and skills training,
including the placement of graduate interns in local government.

The National Treasury established the infrastructure skills development grant (ISDG) in terms of the Division of Revenue Act,
to develop capacity within municipalities by creating a long-term and sustainable pool of young professionals within the
built environment in specific technical fields (i.e. engineering, town planning, architecture, quantity surveying, geographic

information systems, and project management), thereby improving infrastructure delivery and management.
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The purpose of the grant is to recruit unemployed graduates into municipalities to be trained as required by the relevant
statutory councils in the built environment. Capable municipalities recruit graduates in the built environment for training
and register them with statutory bodies. During the training, municipalities benefit from the additional capacity, while the
graduates gain relevant work experience, which is essential for professional registration. The importance of these skills is
clear in that several municipalities have retained the graduates. The programme helps to address racial imbalances in the
built environment profession, while also reducing graduate unemployment in the country.

In the three years since the start of the programme, 435 graduates have been enrolled in the programme in 16 participating
municipalities. All graduates are assigned professionally registered mentors and work under municipal supervisors in their
respective fields. Graduates are assigned to various projects in their fields, including the development, maintenance and
operation of infrastructure.

Of the 435 graduates, 124 have already completed their training and have been registered as professionals by the relevant
statutory councils. Most are employed within the public sector, while some have moved to other sectors.

The total 2015/16 allocation of R124.5 million was successfully transferred to participating municipalities.

Municipalities are complying with the reporting systems and training is being implemented according to the requirements
of the statutory councils. Graduates are registered as candidates and have received candidacy numbers from the various
statutory councdils.

The company, SAICE-PDP, was appointed to evaluate the status quo of the programme, to advise municipalities, as well
as to monitor the professional registration readiness of each candidate. Its findings indicate that graduates are receiving
relevant training, and those who will be ready to submit applications for professional registration during 2016/17 have
been identified.

Notable achievements include the following:
A graduate from Govan Mbeki municipality (in partnership with Rand Water) has been awarded a scholarship from
UNESCO-IHE to complete an MSc programme in Urban Water and Sanitation in the Netherlands. The graduate will
continue with professional registration, as the research paper will add value towards registration.

- Two engineering graduates from eThekwini municipality have been selected to participate in the young water

professionals programme, in partnership with the Water Institute of South Africa.

Municipalities have formed a task team to standardise the implementation of the infrastructure skills development grant in

all participating municipalities.

Some of the small municipalities struggled to expose graduates to all the required competencies, owing to the limited built
environment projects undertaken within those municipalities. To remedy this, graduates rotate between municipalities to
ensure sufficient exposure to technical works.

The infrastructure delivery improvement programme was introduced in 2004 to facilitate infrastructure delivery by
improving the effectiveness of systems and providing capacity development. It is being implemented in four phases. The
National Treasury, the Departments of Basic Education and Health, and participating provincial departments collaborated in
the programme to develop and implement the Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS). It was approved by the
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provincial governments as their infrastructure management system of choice. Some provinces are extending the system
to all government sectors and to local government. The National Treasury provides conditional grant funding to capacitate
infrastructure units in the provincial health and education departments and so ensure the sustainability of the system.

With the adoption of the infrastructure delivery management system as government policy, the role of the Infrastructure
Delivery Improvement Programme has shifted from developing and implementing the IDMS to supporting provincial
treasuries with the implementation of provincial systems and leveraging the knowledge gained on infrastructure delivery
systems more effectively.

The Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme has also developed a model for the structure and capacitation of
infrastructure units, which among other benefits decreases the need for consultants and increases the in-house capacity
of infrastructure units to sustain infrastructure delivery.

Intergovernmental provincial protocols were developed in all nine provinces, in terms of which specific and shared
roles and responsibilities are assigned to departments. This ensures accountable and cooperative governance of
infrastructure delivery.

Funding has been secured through the Division of Revenue Act for provincial departments of health and education to
appoint suitably qualified experts in their infrastructure units. A significant number of professionals have already been
appointed in these key posts.

New options for construction procurement have been developed, which contributed to the National Treasury Standard for
Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management. The standard is largely based on the IDMS.

The National Treasury commissioned an independent strategic review of the Infrastructure Delivery Improvement
Programme, which was conducted in 2013. It found that programme was making good progress and confirmed the
constructive role of the IDMS in addressing shortcomings in infrastructure delivery management.

Recent government policies and regulations, as well as the adoption of the IDMS by all the provincial governments

demonstrate increasing consensus in government around addressing the inefficiencies in infrastructure delivery through
this system.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Managers of the Technical and Management Support and Development Finance programme have been proactive in

addressing identified areas of under-performance.

While some variance in the number of interns appointed to municipalities is unavoidable due to absorption into
permanent positions or interns leaving for other opportunities, ongoing monitoring and engagement with
municipalities confirms that the intern programme is effectively supporting skills development.

Recognising that the number of Jobs Fund projects approved in the agriculture funding round (5th CFP) was less
than targeted, allowance has been made for agriculture projects in the subsequent Innovation round (6th CFP).

The capacity of the Jobs Fund project management unit has been enhanced and systems improved to address the
lag in grant funding approved and matched commitments. The programme has been extended to 2018/19.

Efforts are under way to improve the procurement process for technical assistants (TAs) deployed through the IDIP,
recognising that the process could not always yield suitable candidates for all provincial and national departments.

Linking performance with budgets

2015/16 Financial Year 2014/15 Financial Year

TR ) Fipal AFtuaI (Over)/Urnder ) Fipal Ax.:tual (Over)/Ur\der

Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure
Local
government
financial 573 946 573 946 - 547 926 547 926 -
management
support
Urban
development and 884 195 848 285 35910 904 479 875390 29089
support
Employment
creation 996 863 749518 247 345 1338913 1213162 125751
facilitation
Government
Technical 83 609 83 609 - 79752 79752 -
Advisory Centre
Infrastructure
development 217 356 216 888 468 215570 177118 38452
support
Total 2755969 2472246 283723 3086 640 2893348 193 292
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5.

5.1. Transfer payments to public entities

Name of public entity

1. Accounting Standards

Services rendered by the
public entity

Determine standards

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

Amount transferred

to the public entity
(R’000)

Amount spent by
the public entity
(R'000)

Achievements of
the public entity

Refer to General
Information Public

of generally recognised R11274 R11274 . )
Board : - Entities reporting to
accounting practice. o
Minister.
Regulate, promote and
Refer to General
. develop co-operative i )
2. Co-operative Banks o ) Information Public
banking, including R17 341 R 17341 . )
Development Agency ) ) ) Entities reporting to
deposit-taking and lending o
) Minister.
co-operatives.
Assist and maintain fiscal Refer to General
3. Financial and Fiscal the balance between fiscal Information Public
L o R41 156 R41156 » :
Commission decentralisation and the Entities reporting to
unitary state. Minister.
Assist in in the
identification of unlawful
. ) Refer to General
. . . activities, and combating i )
4. Financial Intelligence ) Information Public
of money laundering R239488 R 239488 . )
Centre o . Entities reporting to
activities, financing of N
) Minister.
terrorism and related
activities.
Support public finance
management through Refer to General
5. Government ) ) ) )

. . professional advisory Information Public
Technical Advisory ) R 88 006 R 88006 . )
Cent services, programme and Entities reporting to

entre
project management and Minister.
transaction support.
Registration of auditors Refer to General
6. Independent ) i )
and the regulation of Information Public
Regulatory Board for o i R 29999 R29999 . ]
. the training of public Entities reporting to
Auditors ) o
accountants and auditors. Minister.
Refer to General
7. South African Efficient and effective Information Public
R 9334439 R9334439

Revenue Service

collection of revenue.

Entities reporting to
Minister.

2015/16 | National Treasury
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5.2. Transfer payments to all organisations other than public
entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments made for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016.

Name of Type of Purpose for Did the Amount Amount spent | Reasons for the
transferee organisation | which the department transferred | by the entity | funds unspent by
funds were comply with s | (R'000) the entity
used 38 (1) (j) of the
PFMA
All 278 Municipalities | To promote See below R 452 491 R307 047 | The municipal
municipalities and support comments: financial year is
reforms in FMGis a different to the
financial conditional national financial
management grantin terms year.The 2015/16
by building of the DoRA. municipal
capacity in financial year
municipalities commences in
to implement July and therefore
the Municipal municipalities
Finance have 3 additional
Management months to spend
Act (Act No. the remaining
56 of 2003) funds (April, May
(MFMA). and June).
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6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1. Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid

The table below describes each of the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the department.

Conditional grant 1: Integrated city development grant

Department/
municipality to whom
the grant has been
transferred

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of
the grant

Actual outputs

achieved

Amount per amended
DORA

2015/16

National Treasury

Free State: Mangaung

KwaZulu-Natal: eThekwini

Western Cape: City of Cape Town

Eastern Cape Province: Buffalo City and Nelson Mandela Bay

Gauteng Province: Ekurhuleni, City of Tshwane and City of Johannesburg

To provide a financial incentive for metropolitan municipalities to achieve a more compact urban
spatial form through integrating and focusing their use of available infrastructure investment and

regulatory instruments.

Number of infrastructure projects implemented within identified integration zones; these can
include projects within public transport, roads, water, energy, housing, land acquisition.
Number of integrated strategic/catalytic projects planned within identified integration zones
Number of authorised studies/strategies completed

Collectively, all the cities have identified a total of 25 integration zones. Nelson Mandela Bay has
identified six integration zones; City of Tshwane and Ekurhuleni have five; Mangaung, City of
Johannesburg, City of Cape Town and Buffalo City have identified two integration zones each
and eThekwini identified one integration zone. In addition cities have identified several projects
within the identified integration zones that have been earmarked for planning and some projects
are already being implemented. More projects will be identified for planning and implementation

during the course of the financial year.

Division of Revenue Act (Act No. 1 of 2015) allocation for the 2015/16 financial year for each
metropolitan municipality:

Buffalo City R5 605 million
Nelson Mandela Bay R5 708 million
Mangaung R10 157 million
Ekurhuleni R43 194 million
City of Johannesburg R49 327 million
City of Tshwane R39 702 million
eThekwini R46 781 million
City of Cape Town R50 826 million




Amount transferred
(R'000)

Reasons if amount
as per DORA not
transferred

Amount spent by
the department/
municipality (R'000)

Reasons for the funds
unspent by the entity

Monitoring
mechanism by
the transferring
department

Division of Revenue Act (Act No 1. of 2015) allocation per municipality :

Buffalo City R5 605 million
Nelson Mandela Bay R5 708 million
Mangaung R10 157 million
Ekurhuleni R43 194 million
City of Johannesburg R49 327 million
City of Tshwane R39 702 million
eThekwini R46 781 million
City of Cape Town R50 826 million

Not applicable

The integrated city development grant expenditure as at the end of March 2016:

Buffalo City no expenditure

incurred
Nelson Mandela Bay R 667 million
Mangaung R4 957 million
Ekurhuleni R8 307 million
City of Johannesburg R11 792 million
City of Tshwane R1 751 million
City of Cape Town R29 938 million
eThekwini R34 038 million

It was mainly due to unpaid invoices, poor municipal coordination amongst units, as well as, poor

understanding of the grant objectives.

Section 71

2015/16

| National Treasury
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Conditional Grant 2: Local government financial management grant

Department/municipality to whom the

grant has been transferred All 278 municipalities.

To promote and support reforms in financial management by building

Purpose of the grant

capacity in municipalities to implement the MFMA.

a) Number of municipal officials registered for financial management
training.

b) Number of interns serving on the internship programme per municipality.

c) Submission of the FMG support plans.

Expected outputs of the grant d) Number of internal audit units and audit committees established.

Timely submission of annual financial statements and improved audit

outcomes.

f) Preparation and implementation of financial recovery plans, where

appropriate.

a) Atthe end of the financial year, 130 municipal managers and 140 chief
financial officers had completed the training provided by the municipal
finance management programme; 12 079 municipal officials received
certificates for completing unit standards.

o
=

As at 31 March 2016, 1 284 interns had been appointed in municipalities.

@
-

All municipalities submitted 2015/16 FMG support plans.

&

All municipalities reported the establishment of internal audit units and

Actual outputs achieved audit committees.

e) Improvement in submission of annual financial statements: 251
municipalities developed audit action plans; improvement in audit
outcomes (163 unqualified opinions - 149 in 2013/14), (76 qualified
opinions — 71 in 2013/14), (33 disclaimer and adverse opinions — 58 in
2013/14).

f) Two municipalities developed financial recovery plans (Matlosana and

Ngwathe).
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Amount per amended DoRA R452 491

Amount transferred (R’000) R452 491

Reasons if amount as per DoRA not

transferred Not applicable

Amount spent by the department/

municipality (R'000) R307 047

The municipal financial year is different to the national financial year.
Reasons for the funds unspent by the The 2015/16 municipal financial year commences in July and therefore
entity municipalities have 3 additional months to spend the remaining funds (April,
May and June).

Municipalities are required to submit the following documents to NT:
An FMG support plan detailing how the grant would be spent for the year.
FMG expenditure reports on a monthly basis

A performance evaluation report on the grant on a quarterly basis

An analysis of the support plan is undertaken and feedback is provided to
municipalities to revise their support plans, where necessary. Correspondence

Monitoring mechanism by the
transferring department

is sent to municipalities (mayors, municipal managers and chief financial
officers) for non-submission of reports and slow spending. Municipalities are
requested to submit reasons for slow spending and remedial measures to be
implemented to improve spending. An updated cash flow and/or a revised
FMG support plan is provided, where appropriate.

Provincial Treasuries are requested to assist with follow up activities on

outstanding submissions from municipalities.

6.2. Conditional grants and earmarked funds received

No conditional grants and earmarked funds were received.
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7.

7.1.

Donor fund: Furopean Union

DONOR FUNDS

Donor funds received

Name of donor

Full amount of the

funding

Period of the commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

2015/16

National Treasury

European Union - Technical Cooperation and Official Development Assistance Programme
(TC&ODAP 1I).

R12577 467

March 2012-1 June 2016 (i.e. deposits to RDP accounts are R5 105 056 in March 2012 and
R7 472 420 Dec 2014).

The purpose of the project is to enhance efficient, effective and sustainable management of
ODA for better management and impact on strategic development priorities of South Africa.

1. Enhanced coordination and management of official development assistance (ODA) by the
government

2. Improved capacity development in the ODA sector in the three spheres of government,
with emphasis on provincial and municipal levels.

3. Developed and/or improved skills in the programme cycle management with an emphasis
on monitoring and evaluation.

4. Enhanced visibility for projects/programmes within the context of knowledge
management and strategies.

5. The role of South Africa in global ODA aid effectiveness, enhanced coordination, discussion
and leadership.

Capacity development interventions to support GBS, SBS programmes: technical assistance for
the development of project specific proposals and ToRs for TCODAP and Department of Public
Enterprises.

Support the IDC to implement its ODA resource mobilisation strategy and HR resources
through capacity development: support to Department of Public Service and Administration —
Tirelo Bosha programme.

Undertake assessment in support of ongoing and future general budget support (GBS) and
sector budget support (SBS) programmes, PEFA and other complementary PFM studies:
logistical assistance provided to ODA coordinators and IDC officials during leadership
training; baseline study to complement the implementation of an expert mechanism to the
development sector.

Studies to support the stages of project cycle management: provide short-term support to NT:
International Development Cooperation (IDC), specifically to develop a national monitoring
and accountability framework and to further provide technical and conceptual support to
workshop the framework to the ODA recipient departments; baseline study and situational
analysis on SA youth volunteerism (DIRCO); state of readiness assessment for NT CBDA.

Provide research and training support to the IDC and ODA coordinators on knowledge
management and monitoring and evaluation: research design and development of public
sector SCM training needs analysis (TNA) toolkit.




Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in

current period (R'000)

Amount spent by the
department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds
unspent

Monitoring mechanism
by the donor

Implement visibility actions development sector progress and best practice, SA/EU
development partnership/relations through services and supplies: Procurement of visibility

[tems.

Support the development and participation in international conferences, study tours: Support
to NEPAD post Bussan conference; support the development and participation in international
conferences.

Logistical support services, conferences workshops, training events, all travel needs for IDC
and ODA: provide support to IDC to host ODA workshops; provide support to IDC to host the
SA/EU MIP consultations 2014; global rapporteur services during conferences.

Provide capacity building to the IDC and ODA sector through training workshop: IDC Strategic
Planning 2014.

Nil

R10 704 228.23

Out of the received budget the balance left is R1 873 247.77 and was not spent as the
contracting period was not sufficient to commit the entire budget.

Expenditure verification after completed implementation of each programme plan.

2015/16 | National Treasury

NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

191



NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

192

Donor fund: European Union (in kind and contracting, payments as well as monitoring are administered by European Union)

Name of donor

Full amount of the funding

Period of the commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in

current period (R’000)

Amount spent by the
department (R'000)

2015/16 | National Treasury

European Union - Technical Cooperation & Official Development Assistance Programme
(TCRODAP II).

€2 326 970.86

August 2011-01 June 2016

The purpose of the project, and therefore of this programme estimate, is to enhance efficient,
effective and sustainable management of ODA for better management and impact on
strategic development priorities of South Africa.

1. Enhanced coordination and management of Official Development Assistance (ODA) by
government.

2. Improved capacity development in the ODA sector across the three spheres of
government, with emphasis on provincial and municipal levels.

3. Developed and/or improved skills in the programme cycle management with an emphasis
on monitoring and evaluation.

4. Enhanced visibility for projects/programmes within the context of knowledge
management and strategies.

5. The role of South Africa in global ODA aid effectiveness, enhanced coordination, discussion
and leadership.

Feasibility study for the establishment of infrastructure support programme for South Africa
and a regional programme for Southern Africa.

Feasibility study for a regional public financial management capacity development
programme.

Technical assistance in institutional capacity development and ODA management.
Study on non-grant official flows to South Africa.

Skills audit of financial management staff in Limpopo.

Technical support to 3 municipalities in NW Province.

PEFA assessment 2014.

TA -.primary education (PrimEd SPSP).

Final evaluation of poverty alleviation SBS to DST.

Final evaluation of SURUDEC.

E-Learning - National School of Government.

Framework for SMMES rating system in SA.

Review of trilateral development activities in SA.

Technical assistance to strengthen ODA and primary health.

Monitoring and evaluation expert for ODA implementation,

Review technical assistance models in SA.

Review of philanthropy in SA.

Knowledge management for ODA.

TA to support strategic implementation of IDC.

Logistical upport to IDC - conferences and study tours.

Events management.

Printing EU delegation progress report 2011 - 2013.

Public diplomacy events.

n/a




Donor fund: Germany (GlZ) technical and management support IDC project

Name of donor

Full amount of the
funding

Period of the
commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in

current period (R'000)

Amount spent by the
department (R’000)

Reasons for the funds
unspent

Monitoring mechanism
by the donor

Germany (GlZ) technical and management support IDC project.

R 689700

1/10/2012-30/9/2013

Provide support for long-term technical assistance for the IDC unit in the National Treasury.

Improved alignment of new programmes with SA policy.

Improved integration of sector support programmes with SA public finance systems.

Increased capacity of NT staff to manage and monitor process of putting aid on budget.

SBS manuals produced and disseminated.
Improved alignment with SA public finance systems.

R26 095

R23 235

Project completed and costs incurred were less than anticipated.

Final report at end of project (financial and narrative).

Donor fund: Scholarship programme

Name of donor

Full amount of the
funding

Period of the
commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in

current period (R'000)

Amount spent by the
department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds
unspent

Monitoring mechanism
by the donor

Scholarship Programme

€44 457.05

2015-2016

Belgium contribution towards the completion of Masters'and postgraduate degrees in

development finance.

Completion of the Masters'and post graduation studies.

Two students from postgraduate have completed. The Masters’students finish end of 2017.

219

219

N/A

Expenditure report to be made available before tranche disbursement.
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Donor fund: Jicadcis project

Name of donor

Full amount of the
funding

Period of the
commitment

Purpose of the funding

Expected outputs

Actual outputs achieved

Amount received in

current period (R'000)

Amount spent by the
department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds
unspent

Monitoring mechanism
by the donor

Jicadcis project

R120000.00

13/4/2015-12/10/2015

Establish and operationalise a management information system (knowledge management
information system for ODA DCMIS).

Organise and classify of all historic ODA project documentation.
Assist with capturing of documentation on the DCMIS system.

60% of documents organised and classified

Documents captured onto system.

120

108

Actual cost for the contract was less than anticipated.

Expenditure report to be made available once all funds have been spent.

8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT

8.1. Capital investment, maintenance and asset
management plan

No capital investment was incurred during the 2015/16 financial year.
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PART C:
GOVERNANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

Commitment by the department to maintain the highest standards of governance is fundamental to the management
of public finances and resources. The department has responded impactfully to users requiring assurance that the
department has good governance structures in place to effectively, efficiently and economically utilise state resources,
which are funded by the taxpayer.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT

The overall risk management philosophy of the National Treasury is to identify potential and emerging risks prior to
materialisation and implement risk management strategies that seek to reduce the impact of the identified risks on the
achievement of NT's strategic objectives.

A risk management committee is in place and is responsible for ensuring that the department implements an effective risk
management framework, strategy and plan that enhance its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The audit committee
also provides advice and oversight regarding the implementation of risk management activities throughout the
organisation. Risk registers are compiled, updated with emerging risks and progress of mitigating actions are monitored
by the Office of the Chief Risk Officer.

The focus in the year under review was geared at improving the risk management culture of the National Treasury. To this
end, risk management is a standing agenda item in EXCO meetings and the top 15 risks are tabled regularly for discussion.

Business Continuity (BC) management continues to progress with phase two of the three phase strategy and plan
currently being implemented. To this end NT has established two BC sites and has started a process of establishing a

dedicated disaster recovery site.

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

NT has a dedicated unit that deals with fraud and corruption. Its activities are determined by an anticorruption strategy
and the unit reports its activities to the risk management and audit committees.

To further strengthen the department’s anti-corruption culture, anticorruption activities are promoted, using various
awareness mechanisms such as email flyers, competitions and observing the commemoration of the annual international
anticorruption day. NT also raises awareness promoting the importance of whistle blowing and the need to protect

whistle blowers.
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The National Treasury has a dedicated email address to report fraud and corruption. This is in addition to fraud
and corruption cases that have been reported through the National Anticorruption Hotline. Progress with all cases
reported to the anticorruption unit is reported quarterly to the PSC and also to the risk management and audit
committees.

To improve its anticorruption and fraud prevention activities, the National Treasury has recently established an
anticorruption database which brings together all elements of fraud prevention such as:

Vetting.

The declaration of financial interests.

Recording remunerative work outside the public service.

Disciplinary cases against personnel, including those previously employed in the public service.

Conflict of interest.

Through this database the NT will improve its fraud profiling and better manage its anticorruption activities.

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

NT employees are informed through various programmes annually regarding the risk that conflict of interest can pose.
Anticorruption programmes and financial disclosure procedures are used to encourage employees to disclose any
registrable interests they might have or any remunerative work that is conducted outside of the department. Where
conflict of interests has been identified employees are engaged and, where appropriate, standard disciplinary steps are

taken against them in terms of the disciplinary code and procedure of the Public Service.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT (COC)

The National Treasury adheres to the Public Service CoC that gives practical effect to the relevant Constitutional provisions
relating to the Public Service. All NT employees are expected to comply with the CoC as it acts as an ethics guide, both in
their individual conduct as well as their relationship with others. Compliance with the CoC strengthens professionalism in
the department and contributes to service delivery and confidence in the Public Service.

Newly appointed employees in NT are inducted on the CoC during the induction/training programme. The CoC is also
re-emphasised during capacity building sessions within NT.

In incidents where the CoC is breached, standard disciplinary steps are taken in terms of the disciplinary code and
procedure of the Public Service.
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6.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

NT has a dedicated official responsible for Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) related matters. Activities related to OHS

matters are managed through an OHS committee that meets quarterly. [ts members regularly receive appropriate training

including fire fighting and first aid.

The National Treasury has an approved emergency plan linked to business continuity management and, in the year under

review, evacuation drills were held in all buildings occupied by it.

NT remains aware of environmental factors affecting the South African landscape;. while its buildings are old and not

conducive to affect the latest technology to better manage environmental risks, the following are being implemented:

Taps are being replaced with automatic “stop and go”taps, as well as being adjusted to release less water.

The air conditioning system automatically switches off after office hours.

Most lifts automatically stop after office hours, with only a few remaining operational.

One of the NT buildings has been fitted with an electricity saving mechanism.

In the remaining buildings, security officials ensure that lights on all floors are appropriately switched off.

7.

Resolution
No.

Subject

SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

etails

Response by the
department

Resolved
(Yes/No)

7 of 2015 SCOPA report on the report of | SCOPA recommends that the department | Submitted the
the AG on the annual report | be assisted by NT on the implementation | SCOPA report to
and financial statements of of the new accounting system, to ensure | Public Finance
the Departments of Military that value for money is realised and that | (Justice, Crime
Veterans for 2013/14 financial | policies are aligned. Prevention and
year. Security) for action.
10f2016 SCOPA report on the SCOPA recommends that the R99.883 Submitted the
unauthorised expenditure million and the R687.304 million incurred | SCOPA report to
by the Department of Home | during the 2005/06 and 2010/11 financial | Budget Office and
Affairs. years respectively, as well as the 2012/13 | Legal Services for
amount of R160.394 million be approved | inclusion in next
by Parliament as a direct charge against Finance Bill.
the NRF.
20f2016 SCOPA report on the SCOPA recommends that the Submitted the No
unauthorised expenditure unauthorised expenditure of R3.782 SCOPA report to
by the Department of Water | million be approved by Parliament as a Budget Office and
Affairs. direct charge against the NRF as there Legal Services for
is no evidence of impropriety, wasteful inclusion in next
expenditure or losses to the state. Finance Bill.
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30f 2016 SCOPA report on the Having considered the evidence and the | Submitted the No
unauthorised expenditure by | steps taken by the accounting officer to SCOPA report to
the Department of Transport. | prevent similar cases of unauthorised Budget Office and
expenditure from reoccurring, SCOPA Legal Services for

recommends the approval of the amount | inclusion in next
of R1 207 374 000 by Parliament as a Finance Bill.
direct charge against the NRF.

8. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, . . .
Financial year in

which it first arose

adverse opinion and matters of non-

Progress made in clearing / resolving the matter

compliance
Reliability and usefulness of the 2013/14 «  The department has developed its 2016/17 annual
reported performance information performance plan (APP) that complies with the

prescripts that govern the APP.

The plan was submitted to the Department of Planning,
Monitoring and Evaluation for assessment. The review
was subsequently incorporated in the final plan.

The Auditor-General was provided with the plan prior to
approval for assessment. Their review was incorporated

to enhance compliance.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Internal audit

The committee approved a risk based three year rolling strategic internal audit plan and an annual audit coverage plan for
the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 covering the following key audit activities:

Type | Total planned audits | Total No. (%) completed
Regularity audit 15 15 (100%)
Compliance audit 3 3 (100%)
Performance audit 5 5 (100%)
Information technology audit 19 19 (100%)
Total planned audits 42 42 (100%)
Postponed Audits 9 -
Ad hoc audits 14 14 (100 %)
Total 65 65 (100 %)
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The committee reviewed all the internal audit reports and is satisfied:

With the activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work programme, coordination with the external
auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the responses of management to specific recommendations.
That internal audit conducted its work in accordance with the standards set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
With the implementation of improvement actions that were recommended during the external quality assurance
review that the internal audit function underwent in the 2014/15 financial year, which gave them the general
conformance rating in terms of their operations in compliance with the definition of internal auditing, international
standards for the professional practice of internal audit (ISPPIA) and the code of ethics.

Accounting and auditing concerns identified by internal audit

There are no accounting and auditing concerns that have been noted and brought to our attention.

Other identified concerns

The committee:

Identified significant control weaknesses in the IFMS project control environment. Management has initiated
measures to deal with them.

Has raised a number of concerns with the implementation of the prescribed framework for managing programme
performance information for selected programmes as also reflected in the audit report.

Noted that despite progress made to achieve the set project milestones, the IFMS project is still running behind
schedule. Management is implementing measures to accelerate completion of the project.

Identified significant challenges within the department’s IT environment. These are receiving urgent attention,
including a detailed and independent end to end evaluation of the IT environment with the view of implementing
remedial measures as may be deemed necessary from the evaluation.

Also identified the lack of controls to adequately and effectively mitigate the risks associated with the administration
of Programme 7 (special pensions) using the CIVPEN system.

Other than these matters, nothing significant has come to our attention to indicate any material breakdown in the

functioning of controls, procedures and systems.

The committee is therefore of the opinion that internal audit is independent, provided objective assurance and consulting

activities that were designed to add value and improve the department’s operations.

2015/16 | National Treasury



The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial and
performance information

The committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations provided by management as well as

the results of audits performed by the internal auditors, and the Auditor-General, that the financial and performance

information provided by management to users of such information is adequate, reliable and accurate.

External audit

The committee has reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

The external auditors attended six meetings of the committee.

The committee also had seven in-camera meetings with the external auditors and we are satisfied that there are no
unresolved issues of concern.

The committee reviewed and approved the external audit report and no accounting and auditing concerns were noted.

The committee has reported major concerns to the Accounting Officer and the Auditor-General.

The audit committee’s responsibilities

The committee, in conjunction with the risk management committee is satisfied that it has discharged its responsibilities

in assisting the accounting officer with the following activities:

The safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems, control and reporting processes, and the preparation of
accurate reporting and financial statements in compliance with the applicable legal requirements and accounting standards.
Overseeing the activities of, and ensuring coordination between, the activities of internal and external audit.
Providing a forum for discussing enterprise wide risks relating to financial, performance and regulatory exposures, and
monitoring controls designed to minimise these risks.

Reviewing the department’s quarterly financial and performance information, annual report, including annual
performance information and annual financial statements, and any other public reports orannouncements containing
financial and non-financial information.

Receiving and dealing with any complaints concerning the accounting practices, internal and external audit or the
content and audit of its financial statements and performance reports, or related matters.

Annually reviewing the committee’s work and charter; and making recommendations to the Accounting Officer to

ensure the committee’s effectiveness.
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Membership and attendance

The committee consists solely of independent members who are financially literate and also have appropriate
experience.
The committee met six times during the year.

The following is a list of its members, qualifications and a record of their attendance:

*Number of
meetings attended

Name of member

Qualifications ‘ Appointment date

Chartered Accountant (SA), Fellow

) Chartered Management Accountant (UK),
Mr. Joe Lesejane

) B.Com, B.Compt (Hons) and Certificate in 1 February 2013 50f6
(Chairperson)
Control Self-Assessment (CCSA), Chartered
Director (SA)
) Chartered Accountant (SA), B.Com (Hons)
Ms. Octavia Matloa* 1 July 2013 60f6
and CTA

Master in Business Administration, Bachelor
of Commerce, Certificate in Internal Audit
(CIA), Certified Government Auditing

Mr. Ameen Amod ) ) T 1 July 2015 60f 6
Professional Auditor and Certification in Risk
Management Assurance, Chartered Director
(SA)

Chartered Accountant (SA), Masters in

Business Leadership, Honours Bachelor
Mr. Luyanda Mangquku ) 1 July 2015 50f6
of Accounting and Honours Bachelor of

Commerce, Advanced Company Law | &I

B.Sc Computer Science

B.Sc Hons Computer Science
Ms. Anna Badimo MBA, MSC, CISM, CGEIT, M. InstD, Cobol 1 July 2015 40f6
Programming Diploma,
Project Management Diploma

Certification in Control Self-Assessment
Ms. Berenice Francis (CCSA), Certified Internal Auditor (CIA), 1 August 2013 40of6
B.Compt (Hons) and B.Com Accounting

*Ms Octavia Matloa was the acting chairperson from 1 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. Mr. Joe Lesejane’s term of office expired
on 31 January 2016 and Ms. Berenice Francis’ term ends on 31 July 2016.
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10. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Background

The audit committee is established as a statutory committee in terms of section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.
The committee has adopted formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter and has fulfilled its responsibilities

for the year, in compliance with its terms of reference.

The effectiveness of internal controls

The committee:
Considered all the reports issued by the various assurance providers e.g. internal and external auditors, risk
management committee, etc.
Noted management’s actions in addressing identified control weaknesses and is satisfied with the following

achievements reported during the year:

Assurance provider | Total findings | Resolved findings | Unresolved findings
Internal audit 1011 818 193
External audit 25 14 11

+  We also noted findings raised by both internal and external auditors in the area of performance information which

management is still addressing.

In light of the above we report that the system of internal control for the period under review is considered to have been

generally effective.

Risk management

Management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of governance, risk
management, prevention and detection of fraud and internal controls.

Internal audit was guided by the consolidated risk profile, critical audit areas and management’s inputs in the
formulation of its three year strategic and annual plans.

The department has a risk management committee which is chaired by an independent member who reports
directly to the audit committee.

Due to a number of internal challenges which are in the process of being addressed the risk management committee
could only meet twice during the year under review.

A risk register is updated annually to ensure that all the major risks including emerging risks facing the department
are effectively managed.
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Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions

The committee has:
Reviewed the in-year management and quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and DoRA and is satisfied
that no material deviations were noted.
Noted management’s policies and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Concerns with the department’s non-compliance to some of the legislative requirements as reflected in the audit

report.

Evaluation of financial statements and annual report

The committee has evaluated the annual financial statements and performance information for the year ended
31 March 2016 and duly recommended it for the Accounting Officer’s approval prior to being submitted to the
Auditor-General for audit.

The committee reviewed the auditor’s management and audit reports and concurs with their conclusions. The committee
therefore accepts the audit opinion and conclusion expressed by the external auditors on the annual financial statements,
annual performance report and annual report.

We would like to express our appreciation to the Director-General, Mr. Lungisa Fuzile, for his leadership and support, and
to internal audit and management for their commitment and achievement of the unqualified audit opinion.

Ms. Octavia M Matloa
Chairperson

National Treasury

31 July 2016
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PART D:

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

1.

INTRODUCTION

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service and

Administration for all departments in the public service.

2.

EXPENDITURE

TABLE 2.1 - Personnel costs by programme, 2015/16

Total Personnel Training Professional e Average
Programme expenditure | expenditure | expenditure and special costtasfz: pte: personnell cost
(R'000) (R'000) (R'000) | services (R'000) ;::e;’ dit‘; f‘e per e(';,%gg)ei
Programme 1
Administration 375582 182 388 2705 32185 486 477
Programme 2
Economic policy, tax,
) ! 131290 78214 313 11680 596 745
financial regulation and
research
Programme 3
Public finance and 262577 192 344 243 6825 733 694
budget management
Programme 4
Asset and liability 3264294 72088 362 2152 22 649
management
Programme 5
Financial systems and 774 494 179 487 1460 137 593 232 592
accounting
Programme 6
International financial 3546134 28 221 49 124 0.8 743
relations
Programme 7
Civil and military pensions, 3967 698 0 0 56 586 0 0
contributions to funds
Programme 8
Technical support and 2472 246 0 0 283 806 0 0
development finance
Programme 9
Revenue administration 9334439 0 0 0 0 0
Programme 10
Financial intelligence 4562 062 0 0 0 0 0
and state security
Total 28690816 732742 5132 530948

* Note: Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.1. Minister

and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure included in total.
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TABLE 2.2 - Personnel costs by salary band, 2015/16

Salary bands Personnel | % of total personnel No. of Average personnel cost
y expenditure (R'000) cost | employees per employee (R’000) ***
Lower skilled
0 0.0 0 0
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
11268 15 52 217
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production
94 555 130 306 309
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
328079 450 573 573
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
294 730 404 285 1,034
(Levels 13-16)
Total ** 728 632 100.0 1216 599

**Note:  Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total
***Note: Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.2.

TABLE 2.3 - Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance and medical assistance by programme, 2015/16

O ) d
N TE : Salaries Overtime HOA as Medical
Amount | asa % of | Amount asa%of | Amount a%of | Amount | assistance asa %

(R'000) | personnel | (R'000) | personnel (R'000) | personnel (R'000) | of personnel cost

cost **%% cost **%% cost *#%% P

Programme 1 124 289 68.1 879 0.5 2 686 15 5256 29
Programme 2 50180 64.2 0 0.0 843 1.1 1229 1.6
Programme 3 124 030 64.5 283 0.1 2374 1.2 2979 1.5
Programme 4 48 565 674 0 0.0 813 1.1 1386 19
Programme 5 122218 68.1 0 00 1894 1.1 2902 1.6
Programme 6 16 486 584 80 03 168 06 458 1.6
Programme 7 0.00 00.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 00
Programme 8 0.00 00.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Total 485768 66.3 1242 0.17 8778 1.2 14210 1.9

**** Note: Percentages of personnel cost of salaries, overtime, HOA and medical assistance are calculated on the total personnel

expenditure per programme in table 2.1
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TABLE 2.4 - Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance and medical assistance by salary band, 2015/16

Ove omeo allo a
Salaries Overtime HOA as as:inset:::el
ellle Amount asa % of | Amount asa%of | Amount a%of | Amount as a % of
(R'000) | personnel | (R'000) | personnel (R'000) | personnel (R'000) °
personnel
cost cost cost
cost
Lower skilled
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
7102 63.0 340 3.0 569 5.0 771 6.8
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled
production 68 322 723 392 04 2630 2.8 4439 47
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision 206 105 62.8 510 0.2 2973 09 5781 1.8
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
201774 68.5 0 0.0 2 606 09 3186 1.1
(Levels 13-16)
1.1.1.1 Total ***** 483 303 66.3 1,242 0.2 8778 1.2 14177 1.9

***%% Note: Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total
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3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

TABLE 3.1 - Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2016

Number of Vacanc it
Programme Headcount Y| filled additional to
funded posts rate % .
the establishment
Programme 1
o 415 384 74 82
Administration
Programme 2
) ) ) 122 105 139 1
Economic policy and financial sector
Programme 3
) 310 277 10.6 5
Fiscal and budget group
Programme 4
o 120 11 75 0
Asset and liability management
Programme 5
) ) ) i 326 303 7.0 38
Financial accounting and reporting
Programme 6
46 38 173 1
Economic policy and international financial relations
Programme 7 0 0 0 0
Programme 8 0 0 0 0
Total 1339 1218 9.0 127

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals.

TABLE 3.2 - Employment and vacancies by salary band, 31 March 2016

Number of posts filled

Number of

Salary bands Posts Headcount | Vacancy rate % additionf:ll to the

establishment
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 58 52 103 0
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 320 306 43 82
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 634 573 9.6 34
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 327 287 122 11
Total 1339 1218 2.0 127
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DISTRIBUTION OF FILLED POSITIONS PER PROGRAMME

— Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Senior —— Skilled (Levels 3-5)
management
(Levels 13-16)
Highly skilled
supervision Highly skilled
(Levels 9-12) production
(Levels 6-8)

210

NB: Vacancy reduced by additional appointments. Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals

TABLE 3.3 - Filling of SMS posts

Table 3.3.1 - SMS post information as of 31 March 2016

SMS Level Total number | Total number | % of SMS posts Total number of SMS | % of SMS posts
of funded of SMS posts filled posts vacant vacant
SMS posts filled
Director-General/
1 1 100 0 0
head of department
Salary level 16 0 0 0 0 0
Salary level 15 16 14 88 2 13
Salary level 14 64 60 94 4 6
Salary level 13 246 210 85 36 15
Total 327 285 87 42 13

Minister and Deputy Minister excluded in totals.
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Table 3.3.2 - SMS post information as of 30 September 2015

SMS Level Total number | Total number | % of SMS posts Total number of SMS | % of SMS posts
of funded of SMS posts filled posts vacant vacant
SMS posts filled
Director-General/
1 1 100 0 0
head of Department
Salary level 16 0 0 0 0 0
Salary level 15 16 15 94 1 6
Salary level 14 72 67 93 5 7
Salary level 13 250 229 92 21 8
Total 339 312 92 27 8

Minister and Deputy Minister excluded in totals

Table 3.3.3 - Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Adve O g of Po

Number of vacancies per level Number of vacancies per | Number of vacancies per level
advertised within 6 months of | level filled within 6 months | not filled within 6 months but
becoming vacant of becoming vacant filled within 12 months
Director-General/

0 0 0

head of department
Salary level 16 0 0 0
Salary level 15 1 0 0
Salary level 14 9 8 1
SalarylLevel 13 45 31 14
Total 55 39 15

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

The functions in some divisions of the National Treasury were under review. Certain units also restructured according to
the needs of the department. Advertising these positions at the time would therefore not have been ideal as some of the

functions changed in line with the business needs.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months

Reasons in addition to those given above include the department’s challenge in finding suitable candidates in specific scarce

skills areas.
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4. JOB EVALUATION

TABLE 4.1 - Job evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

D 00 PO
D d O oD abp 0 0
T Number % of posts Number % of posts
e oklffe evaluated evaluated
Lower skilled
0 0 0% 0 0 0 0
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
58 0 0% 0 0 0 0
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled
production 320 1 0.31% 0 0 0 0
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision 634 2 0.32% 1 9.09% 0 0
(Levels 9-12)
Senior Management
) 246 8 3.25% 0 0 0 0
Service Band A
Senior Management
) 64 0 0% 0 0 0 0
Service Band B
Senior Management
) 16 0 0% 0 0 0 0
Service Band C
Senior Management
. 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0
Service Band D
Total 1339 11 0.82% 1 9.09% 0 0%

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals

TABLE 4.2 - Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded, 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016

Beneficiaries African LYED Coloured White

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0
;] 2 2015/16 | National Treasury




NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

TABLE 4.3 - Employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation,
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Number of | Job evaluation | Remuneration | Reason for

ST employees level level | deviation
Deputy Director-General 1 15 16 | Retention
Chief Director 3 14 15 | Retention
Director 2 13 14&15 | Retention
Deputy Director 15 11&12 12&13 Retent?on/
attraction
Assistant Director and below 5 6,789 7&10 | Retention
Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in 2015/16 | 26
Percentage of total employment 2.1

TABLE 4.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31
March 2016 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries

Female 6 2 2 6 16
Male 5 1 2 2 10
Total 11 3 4 8 26

5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

TABLE 5.1 - Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of employees | Appointments and | Terminations and | Turnover

Salary band perband ason | transfers into the transfers out of rate

31 March 2015 department the department %
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 59 4 5 85
Highly skilled production(Levels 6-8) 301 60 31 10.3
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 547 83 75 13.7
Senior management service band A 211 19 26 123
Senior management service band B 64 5 15 234
Senior management service band C 14 4 4 28.6
Senior management service Band D 3 1 1 333
Total 1199 176 157 13.1
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Table 5.2 - Reasons for staff leaving the department

Termination Type Number ‘ % of total
Death 1 0.6
Resignation 80 54.5
Expiry of contract 12 7.6
Dismissal — operational changes 0 0
Dismissal — misconduct 1 0.6
Dismissal — inefficiency 0 0
Discharged due to ill-health 0 0
Retirement 5 3.8
Severance package 0 0
Transfers to other public service departments 58 36.7
Total 157 100
Number of employees who left as a % of total employment (as at 31 March 2016)

Table 5.3 - Promotions by salary band

Salary band Employees Promotions to | Salary band promotions as a %

31 March 2015 | another salary level of employees by salary level
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 59 3 5.0
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 301 12 4.0
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 547 59 10.8
Senior management (Levels13-16) 292 15 5.1
Total 1199 89 74

PROMOTIONS TO ANOTHER SALARY LEVEL

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production

Senior management (Levels 6-8)

(Levels 13-16)

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)
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6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

6.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as at
31 March 2016

O pationa
ategories (SASCO African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White
Legislators, senior
80 15 15 42 77 7 12 37 285
officials and managers
Professionals 200 15 8 32 241 9 12 26 543
Technicians and
. . 57 3 1 4 118 11 2 34 230
associate professionals
Clerks 31 0 0 0 70 4 3 10 118
Service and sales workers 17 1 0 0 7 1 0 0 26
Plant and machine
8 1 0 0 7 0 0 0 16
operators and assemblers
Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 393 35 24 78 520 32 29 107 | 1218

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals (Legislators, senior officials and managers)

RACE DISTRIBUTION 2014/15 RACE DISTRIBUTION 2015/16

White, 17% White, 15%

Black, 83% Black, 85%
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Top management

African

Coloured

Indian White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

8

2

5

1

6.2 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands as at
31 March 2016

26

Senior management

77

15

11 40

73

6

12

35

269

Professionally qualified
and experienced
specialists and mid-
management

152

165

32

402

Skilled technical

and academically
qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors, foreman
and superintendents

133

254

38

469

Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making

23

23

52

Unskilled and defined
decision making

Total

393

35

24 78

520

32

29

107

1218

Female, 56%

Male, 44%
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GENDER DISTRIBUTION 2015/16

Female, 56%

Male, 44%




6.3 — Recruitment for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Rl S African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White

Top management (15-16) 3 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 5
Senior management (13-14) 10 0 2 1 7 0 2 2 24
Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and 42 3 0 2 28 1 2 5 83
mid-management (9-12)

Skilled technical and

academically qualified

workers, junior management, 18 0 0 0 38 2 1 1 60
supervisors, foreman and

superintendents (6-8)

Semi-skilled and discretionary

decision making (3-5) 1 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 4
Unskilled and defined

decision making (1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 74 3 2 3 76 4 5 9 176
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

**%%% Note: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in total

RECRUITMENT PROFILE

Unskilled and defined
decision making (1-2), 0

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making
(3-5),7

Skilled technicaland —

academically qualified
workers, junior management,
supervisors, foreman and

superintendents (6-8), 66

— Top management (15-16), 0

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and
mid-management (9-12), 64

2015/16
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6.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

sl S African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White -

Top management (15-16) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Senior management (13-14) 3 1 1 1 4 0 1 2 13

Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and 26 0 1 1 28 0 0 3 59

mid-management (9-12)

Skilled technical and

academically qualified

workers, junior management, 0 1 0 1 8 0 1 1 12

supervisors, foreman and

superintendents (6-8)

Semi-skilled and discretionary

decision making (3-5) 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Unskilled and defined decision

making (1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 33 2 2 3 41 0 2 6 89
6.5 — Terminations for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupatio band " 0

African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White

Top management (15-16) 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 5

Senior management (13-14) 17 2 3 8 5 3 0 3 41

Professionally qualified and

experienced specialists and 28 2 2 5 27 3 3 5 75

mid-management (9-12)

Skilled technical and

academically qualified

workers, junior management, 8 1 2 0 16 1 2 1 31

supervisors, foreman and

superintendents (6-8)

Semi-skilled and discretionary

decision making (3-5) . 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 >

Unskilled and defined decision

making (1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 57 5 8 15 50 7 5 10 157

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.
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TERMINATION OF SERVICES PROFILE

Unskilled and defined decision making (1-2), 0 1 Top management (15-16), 3

Senior management

Semi-skilled and
(13-14), 39

discretionary
decision making
(3-5),1

Skilled technicaland —
academically qualified

Professionally qualified and

workers, junior management, ) .
experienced specialists and

supervisors, foreman and )
mid-management (9-12), 50

superintendents (6-8), 41

6.6 — Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Female

African | Coloured | Indian African | Coloured | Indian

Disciplinary action 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1

6.7 — Skills development for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

O D O qo O
African | Coloured | Indian | White | African | Coloured | Indian | White
Legislators, senior officials and
79 15 14 42 77 7 12 37 283
managers
Professionals 200 15 8 32 241 9 12 26 543
Technicians and associate
. 57 3 1 4 118 11 2 34 230
professionals
Clerks 31 0 0 0 70 4 3 10 118
Service and sales workers 17 1 0 0 7 1 0 0 26
Skilled agriculture and fishery
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
workers
Craft and related trades workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
and assemblers
Elementary occupations 8 1 0 0 7 0 0 0 16
Total 392 35 23 78 520 32 29 107 | 1216
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Employees with disabilities | 2| 3 o] o 5 | 1] o 3| 13|

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.

7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS

To encourage good performance, the department granted the following performance rewards during the year under
review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 7.1), salary bands (Table 7.2) and critical

occupations (Table 7.3).

TABLE 7.1 Signing of performance agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2015

Total number of Signed performance
Total number of | Total numberof | .
SMS Level signed performance | agreements as % of total
funded SMS posts | SMS members

agreements | number of SMS members

Director-General/ head
1 1 1 100

of department

Salary Level 16 2 2 0 0
Salary Level 15 16 14 10 71
Salary Level 14 67 63 56 89
Salary Level 13 227 208 199 96
Total 313 288 266 92

TABLE 7.2 - Reasons for not having concluded performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 March 2015

Status | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | Total | Reasons

Political office bearers 2 2 | Do not sign agreements

Minister advisor 1 1 | Do not sign agreements

Secondment to GTAC 2 5 1 8 | Agreements to be signed at receiving entity
Secondment aboard 3 1 4 | Agreements to be signed at receiving entity
Seconded to other departments 2 2 | Agreements to be signed at receiving entity
Incapacity leave 1 1 2 | No agreement signed, absent due to illness
Resignation 1 1 2 | Last working day before 31 May 2015
Retirement 1 1 | Last working day before 31 May 2015

Total 9 7 4 2 22

TABLE 7.3 - Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance agreements as on 31 May 2015

The reasons indicated on 7.2 do not warrant disciplinary action.

2015/16 | National Treasury



TABLE 7.4 - Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Number of Total number of | % of total within , Average cost per

beneficiaries | employees in group group Lol ny employee

African 537 871 62 11533 21477
Male 221 377 59 5090 23030
Female 316 494 64 6443 20391
Asian 32 58 55 1052 32887
Male 17 29 59 599 35222
Female 15 29 52 454 30240
Coloured 46 72 64 1221 26 538
Male 22 37 59 615 27 937
Female 24 35 69 606 25255
White 151 198 76 4833 32007
Male 66 90 73 2395 36290
Female 85 108 79 2438 28 681
Total 766 1199 64 18 639 24333

TABLE 7.5 - Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below SMS, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

0,
okinke Number of | Number of | % oftotal within | Total cost | Average cost per e e GOl
beneficiaries | employees salary band (R'000) | employee (R'000) R
expenditure
Lower skilled
0 0 0 0 0 0
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
51 59 86 355 7 0.05
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled
production 172 301 57 2278 13 0.31
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision 366 547 67 8557 23 117
(Levels 9-12)
Total 589 907 65 11190 19 1.54
TABLE 7.6 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for SMS
Lelnle Number of Number of % of total R/000 DB QI
beneficiaries employees within band Pio €Xpend
Band A 128 211 61 5049 39449 0.69
Band B 41 64 64 1952 47 615 027
Band C 8 14 57 489 61145 0.07
Band D 0 3 0 0 0 0
Total 177 292 61 7 491 423219 1.03
2015/16 | National Treasury
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8. FOREIGN WORKERS

TABLE 8.1 - Foreign workers by salary band, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production
(Legvelys 6-8) " 0 0 0 0 0 0
(HLEV}zi;Sgii‘llj)d supervision 21 60 15 56 -6 -286
Senior management
(LevelsT3-16) 14 40 12 44 -2 -143
Total 35 100 27 100 -8 -22.9
TABLE 8.2 - Foreign workers by major occupation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
0 016 g
S Number % of total Number % of total Number % change
Senior management 14 40 12 44 -2 -143
Professional qualified 21 60 15 56 -6 -28.6
Skilled technical 0 0 0 0 0 0
Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 35 100 27 100 -8 -22.9

9. LEAVE UTILISATION FORTHE PERIOD
1 JANUARY 2015 TO 31 DECEMBER 2015

TABLE 9.1 - Sick leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary band

% days with
medical
certification

Number of
employees

% of total
employees

using sick leave | using sick leave

Average
days per
employee

Estimated
cost
(R'000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 329 824 47 44 7 222
Highly skilled production

1993 77.8 267 252 7 2441
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision

3183 735 512 483 6 7044
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management

1284 723 241 227 5 4635
(Levels 13-16)
Total 6789 75 1067 100 6 14 342

2015/16 | National Treasury




NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

TABLE 9.2 - Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Total | % days with Number of % of total Average | Estimated
Salary band days medical | employees using | employees using days per cost
taken | certification disability leave disability leave | employee (R'000)
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 -
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 27 100 1 29 27 22
Highly skilled production
406 100 12 343 34 489
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
467 100 12 343 39 1188
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
964 100 10 28.6 96 2 664
(Levels 13-16)
Total 1864 100 35 100 53 4363

TABLE 9.3 - Annual leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary bands | Total days taken | Average per employee
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1287 23
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 6539 21
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 13589 21
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 7526 21
Total 28 940 21

PROFILE OF ANNUAL LEAVE TAKEN

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), 0 | | Skilled (Levels 3-5), 1 287

—— Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8), 6 539

Senior management ——
(Levels 13-16), 7 526

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12), 13 589
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TABLE 9.4 - Capped leave, 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Salary bands Total days of capped Average number | Average capped leave
leave taken of days taken per | per employee as at 31

employee December 2015

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 11 6 25
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 4 1 19
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 28 5 31
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 12 2 47
Total 55 3 33

TABLE 9.5 - Leave pay-outs for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total Amount | Number of Average payment per

Reason (R'000) | Employees employee (R'000)

(a) (c=a/b)

Leave payout for 2014/15 due to non-utilisation of leave for 0 0 0
the previous cycle

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2014/15 219 4 549

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2014/15 1719 72 24

Total 3915 76 52

10 HIV AND AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION

PROGRAMMES

TABLE 10.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of | Key steps taken to reduce the risk

contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)
N/A N/A

TABLE 10.2 - Details of health promotion and HIV and Aids programmes

Question | Yes | \[o) |

Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of the
SMS to implement the provisions contained in Part
VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations,
20017 If so, provide her/his name and position.

Avhatakali Lazarus Nenungwi

Corporate Services

Director: Organisational Development EWP and ER

Telephone: 012 315 5596
Cell: 076 020 9323
Fax: 086 768 4205

Email: avhatakali.nenungwi@treasury.gov.za
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Question | Yes | No |Detai|s,ifyes

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has The Employee Wellness Unit is a sub-directorate

it designated specific staff members to promote
the health and wellbeing of your employees? If
50, indicate the number of employees who are
involved in this task and the annual budget that is

available for this purpose.

of the Organisational Development Directorate
within the Chief Directorate: Human Resources
Management. The EWP Unit is run by a wellness
specialist (assistant director). The Unit has a budget
of R3.5 million to utilise over a period of 3 years.

. Has the department introduced an employee
assistance or health promotion programme for
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/
services of this programme.

The National Treasury provides employee assistance
programmes under its programme brand of
Siyaphila. Siyaphila is a confidential, free, 24 hour,
365 day, personal support line for NT employees
and their immediate family members. These
services include counselling services, wellness
management, HIV and Aids management, primary
health care services and productivity management.

. Has the department established (a) committee(s)
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1

of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so,
please provide the names of the members of
the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they
represent.

The committee consists of employees across the
department in various divisions. These include:
Sheridan Pillay

Johnny October

Margaret Serumula

Innocentia Machaba

Jolanda Watton

Octavia Maphila

Nomlotha Mazibuko

Betty Malope

Judith Rudolph

Ezre Stokes

Tebogo Legote

. Has the department reviewed its employment
policies and practices to ensure that these do not
unfairly discriminate against employees on the
basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment
policies/practices so reviewed.

The HIV and Aids and TB management policy has
been reviewed and tabled at the governance
review and departmental bargaining chambers
for consultation and endorsement. A task team
for employee wellness programmes, policies

and frameworks has been established and is
represented by stakeholders including organised
labour, employee relations, occupational health
and safety, chief risk officer, divisional support of

corporate services and HR management.

. Has the department introduced measures to
protect HIV positive employees or those perceived
to be HIV positive from discrimination? If so, list
the key elements of these measures.

Confidentiality clauses have been in place and are
still enforced. New infections are managed by the
primary health care personnel.
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Question

7. Does the department encourage its employees to
undergo voluntary counselling and testing? If so,
list the results that you have you achieved.

| Yes | No |Detai|s,ifyes

In 2015/16 financial year, 110 employees voluntarily
tested for HIV and Aids. The department has a clinic
on-site providing primary health care services.

The clinic is occupied by a nurse twice a week, for
four hours on each day, and a doctor one day a
week, for an hour. The services are free and provide
employees with an opportunity to do voluntary
testing. In addition to this, the Siyaphila programme
hosts 6 departmental events per annum where
employees also have the opportunity to do
voluntary testing. Nurses are present at each of the
events to render this service.

8. Has the department developed measures/
indicators to monitor and evaluate the impact of
its health promotion programme? If so, list these
measures/indicators.

+Rate of absenteeism.

« Number of health related complaints .

- Voluntary HIV and Aids reports (that do not
compromise confidentiality) .

« EWP satisfaction surveys.

+ Wellness cards to continuously monitor and
improve on health risk assessments.

+Quarterly and annual utilisation statistics of
services (reach one new employee, as well as
utilisation, including repeat users of numerous
contact points).

11. LABOUR RELATIONS

TABLE 11.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Subject Matter

None

N/A

TABLE 11.2 - Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number | % of total
Correctional counselling/written warning/suspended without pay 1 100
Verbal warning 0 0
Final written warning 0 0
Three months suspension without pay 0 0
Demotion 0 0
Dismissal 0 0
Not guilty 0 0
Case withdrawn 0 0
Total 1 100
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TABLE 11.3 - Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct | Number | % of total
Sleeping on duty, security breach and attempted theft 1 100
Corruption, dishonesty 0 0
Failure to comply with a lawful instruction, dishonesty 0 0
Total 1 100
TABLE 11.4 - Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Grievances | Number | % of total
Number of grievances resolved 4 22%
Number of grievances not resolved 14 78%
Total number of grievances lodged 18 100%
TABLE 11.5 - Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Disputes | Number | % of total
Number of disputes upheld 0 0
Number of disputes dismissed 0 0
Number of disputes pending 3 100%
Total number of disputes lodged 3 100%
TABLE 11.6 - Strike actions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Total number of person working days lost | Number
Total cost (R'000) of working days lost 0
Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0
TABLE 11.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Number of people suspended 2
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 2
Average number of days suspended 103
Cost of suspensions R136 032.61

2015/16
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12. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

12.1 - Training needs identified as at 31 March 2015

be 0 q eed e ed d epo 0 pe OQC
= = O Skills programmes
0, patio go a
AP Learnerships and other short (i 057 f.or‘ms Total
0 of training
courses

Legislators, senior officials and | Female 126 0 84 90
managers Male 167 0 100 4 104

Female 276 5 133 11 149
Professionals

Male 243 5 111 14 130
Technicians and associated Female 205 0 87 5 92
professionals Male 64 0 14 1 15

Female 44 0 33 39 72
Clerks

Male 30 0 22 24 46

Female 8 0 3 0 3
Service and sales workers

Male 20 0 1 0 11
Skilled agriculture and fishery | Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators | Female 0 0 0 0 0
and assemblers Male 0 0 0 0 0

Female 7 0 6 0 6
Elementary occupations

Male 9 0 5 0 5

Female 666 5 346 61 412
Subtotal

Male 533 5 263 43 311
Total 1199 10 609 104 723

** Note: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in total
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12.2 - Training provided, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

O d Ppro O DO g pe OQ
€ Skills programmes
O patio go a
: P Learnerships | and other short Othe|: f9rms Total
0 of training
courses
Legislators, senior officials and | Female 126 0 41 11 52
managers Male 167 0 36 13 49
Female 276 17 110 36 163
Professionals
Male 243 18 109 38 165
Technicians and associated Female 205 0 63 15 78
professionals Male 64 0 30 8 38
Female 44 0 34 44 78
Clerks
Male 30 0 15 30 45
Female 8 0 3 1 4
Service and sales workers
Male 20 0 9 4 13
Skilled agriculture and fishery | Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plant and machine operators | Female 0 0 0 0 0
& assemblers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Female 7 0 4 0 4
Elementary occupations
Male 9 0 2 0 2
Female 666 17 255 107 379
Subtotal
Male 533 18 201 93 312
Total 1199 35 456 200 691
** Note: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in total
13. INJURIES ON DUTY
The following table provides basic information about injuries on duty.
TABLE 13.1 - Injuries on duty, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Nature of injury on duty Number | % of total
Required basic medical attention only 2 100
Temporary total disablement 0 0
Permanent disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 0
Total 2 100
2015/16 | National Treasury
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERALTO
PARLIAMENT ON VOTE NO. 7

for the year ended 31 March 2016

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. | have audited the financial statements of the National Treasury set out on pages 236 to 382, which comprise
the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Modified Cash Standard and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2012 (Act No. 5 of 2012)
(DoRA), and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the National

Treasury as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with the Modified Cash Standard and the requirements of the PFMA and DoRA.
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Emphasis of matter

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Material impairments

8. As disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements, material impairments of some R13 billion were recognised in the

accounts as a result of the investment in South African Airways.

Additional matter

0. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited supplementary schedules

10.  The supplementary information set out on pages 383 to 418 does not form part of the financial statements and is
presented as additional information. We have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

11. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued
in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives of selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance
with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under
each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, | do not express
an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

12. | performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information of the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the department
for the year ended 31 March 2016:
Programme 4: Asset and Liability Management on pages 95 to 105

Programme 7: Civil And Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits on pages 160 to 161
Programme 8: Technical Support and Development Finance on pages 172 to 182.

13. | evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in
accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was
consistent with the planned programmes. | further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets
were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s
Framewaork for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

2015/16 | National Treasury



14.  lassessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.

15.  The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows:
Programme 4: Asset and Liability Management

Usefulness of reported performance information
16.  The FMPPI requires that performance targets should be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level

of performance. A total of 27% of targets were not specific and measurable. This was due to the technical indicator
descriptions not being aligned to the targets.

Reliability of reported performance information
17. The FMPPIrequires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information
to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. The reported

achievements against planned targets of 27% of indicators were not reliable when compared to the source
information.

Programme 7: Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other
Benefits

Usefulness of reported performance information

18.  The FMPPI requires that performance indicators should be well defined by having clear definitions so that data can
be collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. A total of 25% of indicators were not well defined.

Reliability of reported performance information
19.  The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance
information to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets.

The reported achievements against planned targets of 25% of indicators were not reliable when compared to the
source information.

Programme 8: Technical Support and Development Finance

Usefulness of reported performance information

20.  Performance indicators were not clearly defined so that data can be collected consistently and is easy to understand

and use. Performance indicators were also not verifiable.
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21.  Performance targets were not specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance and were
not measurable, as required by the FMPPI.

22.  The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not be assessed due to the technical indicator descriptions
either not being adequate or not being aligned to the targets.

Reliability of reported performance information

23. The FMPPIrequires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information
to ensure reliable reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly
important targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided. This was due

to the fact that proper indicator definitions were not used to predetermine the evidence and method of calculation
for actual achievements.

Additional matters

| draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

24.  Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) 39 to 194 for information on the achievement of planned targets
for the year.

Compliance with leqislation

25.  Iperformed procedures to obtain evidence that the department had complied with applicable legislation regarding
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My material findings on compliance with specific
matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

26.  The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework as required by section 40(1)(b) of the Public Finance Management Act.

27.  Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were
subsequently corrected resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Internal control

28. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, performance report and compliance with
legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.
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Leadership
29. The accounting officer guides, directs and reviews the development and performance of the system of internal

control. This system requires strengthening at the department to enable increased compliance with the PFMA and

Treasury Regulations.

Financial and performance management
30. Thefinancial and performance information submitted for audit were not free from material misstatement. Improved

application of the relevant reporting frameworks will enable increased compliance with the PFMA and Treasury

Regulations.

Other reports

Investigations

31.  Idraw attention to the following engagements that could potentially have an impact on the department’s financial-,
performance- and compliance-related matters. My opinion is not modified in respect of these engagements that
are either in progress or have been completed:

32.  Aninvestigation was conducted by the Public Service Commission (PSC) based on an allegation received by their
office in terms of the irregular appointment of service providers by the National Treasury. The PSC presented a draft
investigation report to the Minister of Finance. At present, the National Treasury is awaiting the final report and
recommendations from the PSC.

Ao~ Gureea |

Pretoria
31 July 2016

A UDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH A FRICA

Auditing to build public confidence
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FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND SUPPLY

CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT - PROGRAMME 3
for the year ended 31 March 2016
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APPROPRIATION STATEMENT - PROGRAMME 7
for the year ended 31 March 2016
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NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION m
STATEMENT .

for the year ended 31 March 2016

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-F) to

the Annual Financial Statements.

2.  Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual

Financial Statements.

4, Explanation of material variances from amounts voted

Variance as
Variance a % of final
appropriation

Final Actual
Per programme appropriation expenditure

Programme 1: Administration 386 645 375582 11063 2.9%

Underspending of R9.3 million was on capital assets due to ICT related equipment i.e. telecom and servers that were not

delivered on time by the service providers as agreed. The amount will be part of the roll-over request for 2016/17 financial
year. The remaining R1.7 million was a saving on goods and services as a result of the effective cost containment measures on

various items such as administration fees, advertising, computer services as well as training and development.

Programme 2: Economic Policy Tax Financial
132730 131290 1440 1.1%

Reg. and Research

Savings were generated on the cost effective use of consultants. Cost containment measures on operating expenditure on

items such as printing of publications as well as delays in replacing obsolete equipment also generated savings.

Programme 3: Public Finance and Budget
268 889 262 577 6312 2.3%

Management

Underspending of R3.7 million on consultancy services was due to the municipal standard chart of account project that is still
in progress. The project will be completed in the next financial year and a rollover was requested. The remaining R2.6 million
relates to, amongst others, savings on travel costs and training as well as obsolete equipment that was not replaced as a
result of effective implementation of the cost containment measures.

Programme 4: Asset and Liability Management 3265171 3264 294 877 0.0%

Saving of R488 000 was generated on goods and services on various items such as computer services and venues and
facilities as a result of implementation of the cost containment measures. Underspending of R376 000 on capital assets was
due to delays in finalisation of the new Back Office system. The remaining R13 000 was underspent on compensation of

employees and transfers to households.
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Variance as
VELE a % of final
appropriation

Final Actual
expenditure

Per programme appropriation

Programme 5: Financial Accounting and
783753 774 494 9259 1.2%

Supply Chain Management Systems

R7.4 million savings were generated on goods and services under various items such as consultancy, computer services,
consumables, administrative fees, travelling and training costs due to effective implementation of the cost containment
measures. R1.8 million saving on capital assets was due to cost effective procurement of equipment in the newly capacitated
OCPO.

Programme 6: International Financial Relations 3547 662 3546134 1528 0.0%

Savings were generated on various items under goods and services such as hiring of venues and operating payments on
printing and publications as a result of effective implementation of the cost containment measures.

Programme 7: Civil and Military Pensions
L 3967 741 3967 698 43 0.0%
Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
The expenditure on the programme was on par with the budgeted amount.
Programme 8: Technical Support and
) 2755969 2472 246 283723 10.3%
Development Finance

Under-expenditure was partly due to funds that were withheld in the NDPG (R23.4 million) due to a number of municipalities
which were not complying with the DoRA and NDPG framework. Under-spending of R247.3 million on the Jobs Fund was
due to various factors that resulted in the inability to disburse funds to projects. Some of these factors included slow-down in
project implementation on account of external factors beyond the control of the projects, such as the current drought. Other
factors include projects'failure to meet Grant Agreement obligations and / or disbursement panel conditions imposed on

the projects. Savings were generated on use of consultants in the Urban Development and Support sub-programme (R12.5

million) and Infrastructure Development Support (R468 000).

Programme 9: Revenue Administration 9334439 9334439 - 0.0%
The expenditure on the programme was on par with the budgeted amount.

Programme 10: Financial Intelligence and 4562 062 4562 062 - 0.0%
State Security

The expenditure on the programme was on par with the budgeted amount.

Total per programme 29005 061 28690 816 314 245 98.9%
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Per economic classification

Current payments
Compensation of employees

Goods and services

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and accounts
Public corporations and private enterprises

Foreign governments and international

organisations

Households
Payments for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures

Machinery and equipment

Payments for financial assets

Total per economic classification

. Variance as
Final Actual .

. . Variance a % of final

appropriation expenditure appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 %

1878989 1825908 53081 2.8%

733012 732742 270 0.0%

1145977 1093 166 52811 4.6%

21234215 20985425 248 790 1.2%

1435 256 1411831 23425 1.6%

15041883 14 816 595 225288 1.5%

11384 11384 - -

831309 831304 5 -

3914383 3914311 72 -

45 853 33210 12643 27.6%

440 - 440 100.0%

45413 33210 12203 26.9%

5846 004 || 5846 273 | 269 | ]

29 005 061 28690816 314 245 1.1%

Savings were generated on good and services due to effective implementation of the cost containment measures. Transfers

and subsidies underspent due to funds that were withheld for projects in NDPG and Jobs Funds as a result of non-

compliance with the relevant frameworks by the municipalities and Job Fund Partners that could not meet the disbursement

conditions as a result of changes in economic conditions. Saving on capital assets were due to non-replacement of obsolete

equipment and under-expenditure was due to delays in delivery of ICT related equipment by service providers.

Local Gov. Fin Man Grant
Infrastructure Skills Dev, Grant
Neighbourhood Dev. Partners Grant
Integrated Cities Develop Grant
Total

452 491 452 491 - -
124 465 124 465 - -
607 000 583575 23425 3.9%
251300 251300 - -
1435 256 1411831 23425 2.0%

Variance on the NDPG was due to municipalities requesting lesser amounts than budgeted for and funds that were withheld

due to non-compliance with DORA and NDPG Framework.
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STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

as at 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 29005 061 26703 923
Departmental revenue 2 5602 331 5599130
Aid assistance Annex 1G 92 598 93 748
TOTAL REVENUE 34699 990 32396 801
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure 1894188 1609 033
Compensation of employees 4 732742 671461
Goods and services 5 1091437 856 821
Aid assistance Annex 1G 70 009 80751
Transfers and subsidies 20985 425 21256 229
Transfers and subsidies 7 20985425 21256215
Aid Assistance Annex 1G - 14
Expenditure for capital assets 34939 21844
Tangible capital assets 8 34939 H 21844
Payment for financial assets 6 5846273 3376258
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 28 760 825 26 263 364
SURPLUS FORTHE YEAR 5939 165 6133 437
Reconciliation of net surplus for the year
Voted funds 314245 521392
Annual appropriation 290 820 521392
Conditional grants 23425 -
Departmental revenue 2 5602 331 5599130
Aid assistance 3 22589 12915
SURPLUS FORTHE YEAR 5939165 6133437
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STATEMENT OF
FINANCIALPOSITION

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R'000 R'000

POSITION
ASSETS
Current assets 1726 298 2038768
Cash and cash equivalents 9 350362 578172
Prepayments and advances 10 6202 228
Receivables 11 14 432 7199
Loans 13 1355302 1453169
Non-current assets 14582721 75744539
Investments 12 13409714 13409714
Receivables 11 13440 15691
Loans 13 1159567 62319134
TOTAL ASSETS 16309019 77 783 307
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 383724 600 588
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 314245 521392
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 15 9022 29283
Payables 16 37868 36998
Aid assistance repayable 3 22589 12915
TOTAL LIABILITIES 383724 600 588
NET ASSETS 15925 295 77182719
Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve 13409714 13409714
Recoverable revenue 2515581 63 773 005
TOTAL 15925 295 77182719
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN NET ASSETS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

Net assets
Capitalisation reserves
Opening balance Annex 2A 13409714 400 956
Movement in equity Annex 2A - 13008 758
Closing balance 13409714 13409714
Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 63 773 005 65 030 695
Transfers: (61257 424) (1257 690)
Loans written off 13 (60 000 000) -
Loans recovered (included in departmental receipts) 13 (1453 169) (1551292)
Debts/loans raised 195 745 293602
Closing balance 2515581 63 773 005
TOTAL 15925295 77182719
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CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Cash flow
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts 34436 968 32191023
Annual appropriated funds received 1 29005 061 26703923
Departmental revenue received 2 962 095 1018564
Interest received 22 4377214 4374788
Aid assistance received 3 92 598 93748
Net increase /(decrease) in working capital (10 086) 21991
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (6143 984) (6 285 004)
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor 3 (12915) (40 706)
Current payments (1894 188) 1609 033)
Payments for financial assets 6 (5846 273) (3376 258)
Transfers and subsidies paid 7 (20985 425) (21 256 229)
Net cash flow from operating activities 17 (455903) (354 216)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for capital assets 8 (34 939) (21 844)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2 17 -
Increase/decrease in loans 13 61257434 1257435
Increase/decrease in investments 12 - (13008 758)
Net cash flows from investing activities 61222512 (11773 167)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend received 22 263 005 205778
Increase/decrease in net assets (61257 424) 11751068
Net cash flows from financing activities (60994 419) 11956 846
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (227 810) (170 537)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 578172 748 709
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9&18 350362 578172
2015/16 National Treasury
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ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

for the year ended 31 March 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements
present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments and
estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information available at the time of
preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) Act 1 of 1999

(as amended by Act 29 of 1999) and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of
Revenue Act.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.

2 GOING CONCERN

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the
department.

4 ROUNDING

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R'000).

5 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot exchange

rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt and end March 2016 for disclosure purposes.
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6 CURRENT YEAR COMPARISON WITH BUDGET

6.1  Prior period comparative information
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements. Where necessary

figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the
information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year's financial statements.

6.2  Current year comparison with budget

A comparison between the approved final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic classification
is included in the appropriation statement.

7 REVENUE

7.1  Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations but exclude direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e.
statutory appropriation) which are reported and audited separately as part of the consolidated annual financial statements
this includes extra-ordinary receipts.

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation becomes
effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement of financial

performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as
a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently paid

into the relevant revenue fund unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of

financial position.
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7.3  Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements when:
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
department; and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting agents.

8 EXPENDITURE
8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of financial
performance on the date of payment.

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to households in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is recognised in

the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total
consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable
Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the goods are received or in the
case of services when they are rendered to the department or in case of transfers and subsidies when they are due and

payable.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.
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8.4 Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement of
financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

8.4.2 Finance leases

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of
financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned between
the capital and interest portions.

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:
cost being the fair value of the asset; or

the sum of the minimum lease payments made including any payments made to acquire ownership at the end of
the lease term excluding interest.

9 AID ASSISTANCE

9.1 Aid assistance received
Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received.
In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are required to be
refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid assistance

payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of financial position.

10  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.
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Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand deposits held other short-

term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11 PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or
disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost. Prepayments are expensed when contractual
obligations have been met or goods received or services rendered as agreed.

12 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest where interest is
charged less amounts already settled or written-off.

13 INVESTMENTS

Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS

14.1 Financial assets

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset.

At the reporting date a department shall measure its financial assets at cost less amounts already settled or written-off

except for recognised loans and receivables which are measured at cost plus accrued interest where interest is charged
less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying

value to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset

is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
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15 PAYABLES

Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

16 CAPITAL ASSETS

16.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Immovable capital assets
acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably the immovable capital assets are measured at
R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably estimated in which case the fair value is used.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.
Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless

the immovable asset is recorded by another department in which case the completed project costs are transferred to that
department.

16.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable capital assets acquired

through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined accurately the movable capital assets are measured at fair

value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless

the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed project costs are transferred to
that department.

16.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets acquired through
a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department
commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably the intangible capital assets are measured at fair value
and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless

the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed project costs are transferred
to that department.

17 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

17.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to
forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably

17.3 Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from past events

and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
within the control of the department

17.4 Commitments
Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an

approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities
thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash
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18 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either:

« approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or

« approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation in
the statement of financial performance; or

- transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

19 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount
recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved or transferred
to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are
de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

20 IRREGULAREXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal
to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine in which case reasons therefore
are provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to
receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised
when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND ERRORS

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with
Modified Cash Standard (MCS) requirements except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific
effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In such instances the department shall restate the opening
balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
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Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS
requirements except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect
of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the
earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

22 EVENTS AFTERTHE REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements. The
events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements.

23 AGENT-PRINCIPAL ARRANGEMENTS

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for administrative services rendered on behalf of the National
Treasury with respect to Programme 7 Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits by the
Government Pension Administration Agency, as well as implementation of the Jobs Fund administered by the Government
Technical Advisory Centre. In terms of these two arrangements the department is the principal and is responsible for providing
funding for both programmes. All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in
terms of the relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the financial statements
where appropriate.

24 CAPITALISATION RESERVE

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which are
recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are recognised in
the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund
when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

25 RECOVERABLE REVENUE

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from
a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered
or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party.
Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
transaction is not at arm’s length.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

1. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

2015/16 2014/15
Final Actual Funds Final Actual Funds
Appropriation Received Appropriation received
R'000 R’000 R'000 R'000
Administration 386 645 386 645 372382 372382
Economic Policy Tax Financial Regulation and 132730 132730 134 358 134 358
Research
Public Finance and Budget Management 268 889 268 889 259877 259877
Asset and Liability Management 3265171 3265171 3343372 3343372
Financial Accounting and Supply Chain 783753 783753 770035 770035
Management Systems
International Financial Relations 3547 662 3547 662 1199717 1199717
Civil and Military Pensions Contribution to 3967 741 3967 741 3730971 3730971
Funds and Other benefits
Technical Support and Development Finance 2755969 2755969 3086 640 3086 640
Revenue Administration 9334439 9334439 9440 321 9440 321
Financial Intelligence and State Security 4562 062 4562 062 4366 250 4366 250
Total 29005061 29005061 26703923 26703923
Note 2015/16 2014/15
Conditional Grants R’000 R’000
Total grants received 1435 256 1399742

It should be noted that the Conditional grants are included in the amounts per the Annual Appropriation in Note 1 above.

For detailed information on conditional grants refer to note 38.
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
2. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 38639 65791
Interest dividends and rent on land 22 4640219 4580 566
Sales of capital assets 2.3 17 -
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 24 923456 952773
Departmental revenue collected 5602 331 5599 130

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Sales of goods and services produced by the department 38619 65752
Sales by market establishment 103 100
Administrative fees 5 1
Other sales 38511 65 651
Sales of scrap waste and other used current goods 20 39
Total 38639 65791

Current year other sales amount includes fees collected from government providing guarantees for contracts to other entities

R35.9 million (2014/15: R65.2 million), revenue flowing from the withdrawal of old coins and selling of metal by the Reserve

Bank R2.1 million and other receipts R639 000 (2014/15: R451 000).

2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land

Interest
Dividends
Total

4377 214 4374788
263 005 205778
4640 219 4580 566

Current year interest amount includes interest from interest-bearing financial instruments, such as tax and loan accounts
R1.9 billion (2014/15: R2 billion) and foreign currency deposits R1.8 billion (2014/15: R1.6 billion) relating to the National
Revenue Fund that is controlled and managed by the National Treasury, as well as the interest receivable on the Gautrain

loan R613.2 million (2014/15: R711 million).

2.3  Sales of capital assets

Machinery and equipment
Total
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
2.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities
Loans and advances 840 000 840 000
Receivables 550 658
Other receipts including Recoverable Revenue 82 906 112115
Total 923 456 952773
3. AID ASSISTANCE
3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP
Foreign
Opening balance 12915 40706
Transferred from statement of financial performance 22589 12915
Paid during the year (12915) (40 706)
Closing balance 22589 12915
Refer to annexure 1G for more information on Aid Assistance.
3.2  Analysis by source
Aid assistance from RDP 12915
Closing balance 22589 12915
3.3 Analysis of balance
Aid assistance repayable 22589 12915
Closing balance 22589 12915
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

4., COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

4.1 Salaries and Wages

Basic salary 485768 439113
Performance award 21517 25631
Service Based 586 184
Compensative/circumstantial 2530 3504
Other non-pensionable allowances 149 389 138122
Total 659 790 606 554

“Compensative/circumstantial” refers to payments and allowances to employees as compensation for cost as a result of
operational or job requirements and other non-pensionable allowances refer to all other non-pensionable allowances not

separately provided for. Examples include acting allowances and internships.

4.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions

Pension 58 661 52812
Medical 14 210 12021
Bargaining council 81 74
Total 72952 64907
Total compensation of employees 732742 671461
Average number of employees 1232 1217
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
5. Goods and services

Administrative fees 3510 3110
Advertising 6344 1871
Minor Assets 5.1 523 1880
Bursaries (employees) 4802 4230
Catering 1098 1225
Communication 6247 4450
Computer services 52 368 743 420 591
Consultants business and advisory services 505 356 218091
Legal services 12126 12 667
Contractors 2414 2381
Agency and support /outsourced services 11052 9833
Entertainment 121 121
Audit cost — external 53 11819 15299
Fleet services 1350 1086
Consumables 54 12920 14847
Operating leases 52928 61 966
Property payments 55 23057 21389
Rental and hiring 10 -
Travel and subsistence 56 45209 43077
Venues and facilities 10 404 6689
Training and staff development 5132 6 490
Other operating expenditure 57 6272 5528
Total 1091437 856 821

Increase in advertising costs was due to the advertisement of new supply chain management initiatives introduced by

the newly established OCPO such as the Central Supplier Database, new transversal contracts etc. Increase in consultancy

and advisory services relates to the consulting and advisory services provided by the new Government Technical Advisory

Centre (GTAQ).

5.1 Minor Assets

Machinery and equipment
Total

523 1880
523 1880
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

5.2 Computer services
SITA computer services 35400 35023
External computer service providers 333343 385 568
Total 368743 420591

External computer service providers relate to the information technology services provided by service providers on the
development and maintenance of the Integrated Financial Management System (R102.6 million), legacy systems (R197.1
million) and other departmental systems (R33.6 million). These costs include license agreements obtained for the use of the
relevant software, system development costs relating to programming, training on application systems and implementation,
maintenance and support, and post implementation support.

5.3 Audit cost — External

Regularity audits 11819 14 964
Forensic investigations - 335
Total 11819 15299

5.4 Consumables

Consumables supplies 2194 3459
Clothing material and accessories 13 -
Household supplies 1414 2034
Building material and supplies 38 392
Communication accessories 2 6
IT consumables 685 793
Other consumables 42 234
Stationery printing and office supplies 10726 11388
Total 12920 14 847

5.5 Property payments

Municipal services 21494 20010
Property management fees 1075 1010
Other (Pest control, fumigation etc) 488 369
Total 23057 21389
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R'000 R'000
5.6 Travel and subsistence
Local 23581 24 557
Foreign 21628 18520
Total 45209 43 077
5.7 Other operating expenditure
Professional bodies membership and subscription fees 5135 4604
Resettlement costs 296 369
Other (Courier services, publications etc.) 841 555
Total 6272 5528
6. PAYMENT FORFINANCIAL ASSETS
Purchase of equity 2671991 374 806
Extension of loans for policy purposes 3174013 3000 000
Debts written off 6.1 269 1443
Forex losses 6.2 - 9
Total 5846 273 3376258

Purchase of equity current year amount relates to payments made to the New Development Bank (BRICS) R2.2 billion, African
Development Bank R340 million (2014/15: R298 million) and World Bank R33.1 million (2014/15: R76 million). Extension

of loans for policy purposes, current year amount relates to payments made for the recapitalisation of the Post Bank R174
million and Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) R3 billion (2014/15: R2.5 billion).

6.1 Debts written off

Settlement of claim against the Department

Civil and military pension (bad debts)

Staff debts written-off
Losses and damages
Total

5.2 Forexlosses

Civil special and military pensions

Total

- 1278
269 165
269 1443

- 9

- 9
2015/16 National Treasury

NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

341



NT
ANNUAL
REPORT

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
7. TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

Municipalities and Provinces Note 38 1411831 1398953
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 14 816 595 14115137
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1D 11384 1274456
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1E 831304 790 549
Households Annex 1F 391431 3677119
Total 20985 425 21256214

The decrease in transfers made to public corporations is due to discontinuation of the transfer payment made to the
Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) as a result of relocation of services that were funded and implemented through
the DBSA to the newly established GTAC (for more details on the movements refer to annexure 1D).

8. EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

Tangible assets

Building and other fixed structures - 363
Machinery and equipment 34939 21481
Total 34939 21844

8.1  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2015/16

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets
Building and other fixed structures - - -
Machinery and equipment 34939 - 34939
Total 34939 = 34939

8.2  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2014/15

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets
Building and other fixed structures 363 - 363
Machinery and equipment 21413 68 21481
Total 21776 68 21844
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
8.3 Finance lease included in capital expenditure
Machinery and equipment 1832 1652
Total 1832 1652
9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 329148 573072
Cash on hand 23 23
Cash with commercial banks (Local) 21191 5077
Total 350362 578172
10 PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES
Travel and subsistence 4 9
Prepayments 97
Advances paid 10.1 6198 122
Total 6202 228
10.1 Advances paid
Public entities Annex 5A 5855 122
Other institutions 343 -
Total 6198 122
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11 RECEIVABLES

2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R'000
Note Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Claims 11.1 3493 1614 5107 1647 1509 3156
recoverable
Recoverable 11.2 335 391 726 205 946 1151
expenditure
Staff debt 11.3 638 907 1545 441 875 1316
Other debtors 11.4 9966 10528 20494 4906 12 361 17 267
Total 14432 13 440 27872 7199 15691 22890
Note 2015/16 2014/15
R'000 R'000
11.1 Claims recoverable
National departments 4251 2359
Provincial departments 40 21
Foreign governments 816 776
Households and non-profit institutions - -
Total 5107 3156
11.2 Recoverable expenditure
Disallowance damages and losses 474 563
Disallowance miscellaneous 215 561
Private telephones 37 27
Total 726 1151
11.3 Staff debt
Departmental Debt 1545 1316
Total 1545 1316
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
11.4 Other debtors
Value Added Tax (SARS) 1429 1769
Amounts owed by other departments — Civil and Military Pensions 2420 1702
Outstanding debt — Civil and Military Pensions 29 24
Disallowance - Civil and Military Pensions 5282 5124
Disallowance — Special Pensions 11334 8648
Total 20494 17 267
Non-Current (non-current shares)
Development Bank of Southern Africa Annex 2A 200 000 200 000
Public Investment Corporation Limited Annex 2A 1 1
Land Bank Annex 2A 200955 200955
South African Airways Annex 2A 13008 758 13008 758
Total 13409714 13409714
Analysis of non-current investments
Opening balance 13409714 400956
Non-cash movement - 13008 758
Closing balance 13409714 13409714
12.1 Impairment of investment
Estimate of impairment of investment 13008 758 13008 758

Based on the Modified Cash Standard, the impairment value was not revised as at the reporting date and remains the same as the prior

year due to financial difficulties experienced by SAA. However, the present value of the expected future cash flows was calculated at

R18.8 billion. The impairment is limited to the total value of the investment.
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
13 LOANS
Public corporations 2514869 63772303
- Current 1355302 1453169
- Non-current 1159567 62319134
Total 2514869 63772303
Analysis of balance
Opening balance 63772303 65029 738
New issues 195 735 293 602
Amount paid (1453 169) (1551037)
Written off (60 000 000) -
Closing balance 2514869 63772303

The Eskom loan amount of R60 billion was derecognised in line with the requirements of the Modified Cash Standard due to
the amendment of the Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation Act (2008/9 — 2010/11) 2008, that was promulgated
on 6 July 2015 in the Government Gazette no. 38973 which allows for the conversion to equity of the R60 billion loan to

Eskom. The balance of R2.5 billion is the outstanding amount on the Gautrain loan and is made up of the current portion

(R1.3 billion) payable in April 2016 and non-current portion (R1.2 billion) which is the last instalment payable in April 2017.

New issues amount of R195.7 million is current year accrued interest on the Gautrain loan.

14 VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Opening balance 521392 125209
Transfer from statement of financial performance 314245 521392
Paid during the year (521 392) (125 209)
Closing balance 314 245 521392
15 DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE TO BE SURRENDERED
TO THE REVENUE FUND

Opening balance 29283 589948
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 5602 331 5599130
Paid during the year (5622 592) (6 159 795)
Closing balance 9022 29283
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
16 PAYABLES - CURRENT
Advances received 16.1 13060 21532
Clearing accounts 16.2 268 168
Other payables 16.3 24 540 15298
Total 37 868 36 998
16.1 Advances received
National departments Annex 5B 12 340 21216
Provincial departments Annex 5B 35 65
Other institutions Annex 5B 685 251
Total 13060 21532
16.2 Clearing accounts
Income tax (PAYE) 182 135
Persal Reversal Account 85 22
Pension Fund 1 11
Total 268 168
16.3 Other payables
Civil and military pensions 17014 7637
Special pensions 7526 7661
Total other pension 24 540 15298
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Note

2015/16
R’000

2014/15
R’000

17 NET CASHFLOW AVAILABLE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
Decrease/(increase) in receivables — current

Increase in prepayments and advances

Increase/(decrease) in payables — current

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Expenditure on capital assets

Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor

Dividend received

Net cash flow (utilised)/generated by operating activities

5939165 6133437
(6395 068) (6487 653)
(4 982) (1179
(5974) 1466
870 21704

a7 -
34939 21 844
(6143 984) (6285 004)
(12915) (40 706)
(263 005) (205 778)
(455 903) (354 216)

18 RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES

Consolidated Paymaster General account
Cash on hand

Cash with commercial banks (local)

Total

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other guarantees

Claims against the department
Other contingent liabilities
Total

Annex3A

Annex3B
Annex3B

329148 573072

23 23

21191 5077
350362 578172
24053 694 14651377
2106040 2103047
512 466 519151

26 672200 17 273 575

Uncertainties relating to the amounts disclosed or timing of the outflow could not be disclosed due to the inherent risks

on the events and circumstances underlying these amounts which are unfavourable to the department. The total amount

on other guarantees is made up of capital amount R 23 894 299 and interest R 159 395. For further details on contingent

liabilities refer to annexures 3A and 3B.
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
20 COMMITMENTS
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 7576470 8365878
Approved and not yet contracted 3128 17199
Total 7 579 598 8383077

The approved and contracted commitments are made up of the supply chain management related contracts i.e. goods and

services of R3.9 billion (2014/15: R4.2 billion) and the Non-Statutory Forces commitment i.e. transfer payment of R3.6 billion

(2014/15: R4.1 billion). The non-current portion i.e. longer than a year commitment is R5.9 billion, and the current portion is

R1.6 billion.

21 ACCRUALS

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 8629 359 8988 28046
Transfers and subsidies 3369 17 894 21263 16353
Capital assets 46 23 69 -
Total 12044 18276 30320 44399
Listed by programme level
Administration 3527 6381
Economic Policy Tax Financial Regulation and Research 954 468
Public Finance and Budget Management 1062 947
Asset and Liability Management 857 599
Financial Accounting and Supply Chain Management Systems 1121 19115
International Financial Relations 1539 538
Civil and Military Pensions Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits 21260 16 274
Technical Support and Development Finance - 77
Total 30320 44399
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave entitlement 22813 22226
Service bonus (thirteenth cheque) 15108 13331
Performance awards 10995 10335
Capped leave commitments 12842 14218
Long service awards 418 201
Total 62176 60311
At this stage the department is not able to reliably measure the long term portion of the long service awards due to
complexities on the calculations involved and significant internal system limitations to assist with the calculations.
23 LEASE COMMITMENTS
23.1 Operating leases commitments
Buildings and
1516 et squipmen Tota
R’000 R’000 R’000
Not later than 1 year 53609 2181 55790
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 15435 2010 17 445
Total lease commitments 69 044 4191 73235
Buildings and
2014715 ractes squipmen Tota
R’000 R’000 R’000
Not later than 1 year 58306 2591 60 897
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 60 793 1596 62 389
Total 119099 4187 123286
23.2 Finance leases commitments
Buildings and
201516 i equipment Tota
R’000 R’000 R’000
Not later than 1 year - 1289 1289
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 380 380
Total lease commitments - 1669 1669
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Buildings and
2014/15 other fixed Machln(?ry and
structures equipment Total
R'000 R'000 R’000
Not later than 1 year - 1406 1406
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 412 412
Total - 1818 1818
24 RECEIVABLES FORDEPARTMENTAL REVENUE
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets - 12
Interest dividends and rent on land 204916 278 879
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 40 12279
Total 204 956 291170
24.1 Analysis of receivables for departmental revenue
Opening balance 291170 235458
Less: Amount received (291 170) (235 458)
Add: Amount recognised 204 956 291170
Total 204 956 291170
25 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance - -
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to current year - -
Less: Amounts condoned - -
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation - -
26 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Opening balance - -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure —relating to prior year - -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure —relating to current year - -
Less: Amounts Condoned - -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonation - -
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
27 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
No. of
Individuals
Political office bearers 4 4416 4183
Officials:
Level 15t0 16 12 16 045 16915
Level 14 /1 70348 70872
Total 90 809 91970
28 IMPAIRMENT
Ex-Employee debtors 480 482
Other debtors (Material Losses) 48 690 37073
Departmental losses 391 79
Investments 13008 758 13008 758
Total 13058319 13 046 392
29 PROVISIONS
Military Pension 10981 12811
Injury on duty 59780 51641
Military Medical benefits 2076 967
Post-Retirement Medical benefits 1900 761
Admin Expense Claim 5054 4544
Special Pension 24 838 29357
Adam Smith International Claim 250 250
SA Smit claim 14 14
Total 104 893 100 345
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29.1

Military and

Injury on Duty

Military Medical

Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2015/16

Post-retirement

Total provisions

Special Pensions and Admin Benefitsand Medical Benefits
Expense claims
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance 30324 56 185 13075 761 100 345
Provisions raised 29591 44632 11333 19237 104 793
Settlement of provision (21 488) (31 388) (10 886) (18 997) (82759)
Unused amounts reversed (1615) (4597) (2276) (8998) (17 486)
Closing balance 36812 64832 11246 (7997) 104 893

Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2014/15

Military and Injury on Duty  Military Medical  Post-retirement  Total provisions
Special Pensions and Admin Benefitsand Medical Benefits
Expense claims

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance 53 986 67733 8910 3536831 3667 460
Provisions raised 39331 51650 13374 5266 109 621
Unused amounts reversed (55938) (54 779) (6383) (2735774) (2852 874)
Settlement of provision (7 055) (8419) (2 826) (805 559) (823 859)
Closing balance 30324 56 185 13075 761 100 345

30 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTERTHE REPORTING DATE

Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
Subsequent to year-end, supply chain management processes on IFMS related 461,000 -
services were concluded and a contract was awarded.
Legal claim against the department received after year-end 33,134 -
Total 494,134 -
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31. RELATED PARTIES

31.1 Related parties falling under the Ministry of Finance Portfolio

The Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC)

Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC)

Development Bank of Southern Africa Limited (DBSA)

Accounting Standards Board (ASB)

Financial Services Board (FSB)

Public Investment Corporation (PIC)

South African Revenue Service (SARS)

Sasria Limited (SASRIA)

The Land and Agricultural Development Bank of South Africa (Land Bank)

O 0 N oy W N

©

Government Employee Pension Fund (GPEF)

. Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA)

N

Financial Advisory Intermediary Services (FAIS) Ombudsman
. Office of the Pension Fund Adjudicator (OPFA)
The Co-operative Banks Development Agency (CBDA)

o E o

. Government Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA)

o

Government Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC)
South African Airways (SAA)
Office of the Tax Ombud (OTO)

c N

31.2 Related Party in-kind goods and services provided

Name Nature Space Occupied 2015/16 2014/15
Financial (m2) R’000 R’000
CBDA Office space occupied 718 2090 872
Government Technical Advisory )

Office space occupied 3410 10 251 2109
Centre (GTAQ)

) Building Occupied

Department of Public Works 5118 4451

(40 Church Square)
TOTAL 17 459 7432

Office space occupied by CBDA 718 m2 (2014/15: 656m2) and GTAC 3410 m2 (2014/15: 1 406m2) at National Treasury office

building without paying rental and municipal services.

2015/16 | National Treasury



Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000
31.3 Related party transactions
Expenditure made to GTAC
ECFF
Transfer and subsidies - 28300
MEFIP (II)
Goods and services: Consultancy services 121455 98 788
NDP
Goods and services: Consultancy services 25895 30 000
Total 147 350 157 088
Total balances of receivables and payables that arose from related party transactions
Receivables from GTAC - 146
Payables to GTAC - 640
Total - 786
Guarantees issued to related parties
South African Airways 14 393 764 8418814
Land Bank 5304378 2097 749
Development Bank of Southern Africa 4355552 4134814
Total 24 053 694 14 651377

32. MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Movement in movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Machinery and equipment
Transport assets

Computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and
equipment

Total movable tangible assets

Current Year
Opening adjustments " . .

. Additions Disposals  Closing balance

balance to prior year

balances
R'000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000
123 834 ) 34360 (5972) 152 220
4279 - 1148 - 5427
60931 (319) 25403 (4 507) 81508
18783 (105) 453 (726) 18 405
39 841 422 7356 (739) 46 880
123834 (2) 34360 (5972) 152220
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32.1 Additions

Additions to movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Cash Non-cash (Capital workin  Received current Total
Progress current not paid
costs and finance (paid current
lease payments) year received
prior year)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Description
Transport assets 1148 - - 1148
Computer equipment 25298 105 - - 25403
Furniture and office
. 453 - - - 453
equipment
Other machinery and
) 9188 - (1832) - 7356
equipment
Total.addltlo.ns of movable 34939 1253 (1832) ) 34360
tangible capital assets
Movable tangible capital assets under investigation Number Value
R’(000)
Machinery and equipment 96 1633

32.2 Disposals

Disposals of movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Assets Sold Transferoutor  Total Disposals Cash received
destroyed or actual
scrapped

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description
Transport assets - - - -
Computer equipment - (4 507) (4 507) -
Furniture and office equipment - (726) (726) -
Other machinery and equipment (17) (722) (739) 17
Total Disposal of movable tangible 17) (5 955) (5972) 17

capital assets
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32.3 Movement for 2014/15

Movement in the movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2015

Opening balance  Current Year Additions Disposals Closing balance
adjustments
to prior year
balances
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Transport assets 3640 - 1787 (1148) 4279
Computer equipment 57477 - 8171 (4717) 60931
Furniture and office
) 18 686 - 354 (257) 18783
equipment
Other machinery and
) 30523 - 9576 (258) 39 841
equipment
Total movable tangible 110326 - 19888 (6 380) 123834

assets

33. MINOR ASSETS

Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Intangible Assets

Heritage Assets

Machinery and  Biological assets

Closing balance

equipment

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - - 33570 - 33570

Current year adjustment to - - - - -
prior year balances

Additions - - 523 - 523

Disposal - - (1164) - (1164)

TOTAL - - 32929 - 32929

Machinery and Total

equipment
Number of minor assets at cost 22 22
Total number of minor assets 22 22
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Assets Minor assets under investigation included in the asset register

Machinery and equipment

Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2015

Intangible Assets Heritage Assets Machinery and

Number

305

Biological assets

Amount (R'000)
517

Closing balance

equipment

R'000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R'000

Opening balance - - 32801 - 32801
Additions - - 1970 - 1970
Disposal - - (1201) - (1201)
TOTAL - - 33570 - 33570
Machinery and Total

equipment

Number of minor assets at cost 23 23
Total number of minor assets 23 23

34. MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF

Movable Assets written off for the year ended 31 March 2016

Intangible assets Heritage assets Specialised Machineryand  Closing balance

military assets equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Assets written off - - - 6529 6529
TOTAL - - - 6529 6529

Movable Assets written off for the year ended 31 March 2015

Intangible assets Heritage assets Specialised Machineryand  Closing balance

military assets equipment
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Assets written off - - - 1201 1201
TOTAL - - - 1201 1201
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35. INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Movement in Intangible Capital Assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Opening Balance  Current year Additions Disposals Closing balance
adjustments
to prior year
balances
R R’ R’ R’ R’
Computer Software 4 - . -
TOTAL 4 - - - 4

35.1 Additions

Additions to Intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Cash Non-cash (Development Received current Total
work-in-progress not paid
current costs ) (paid current
year received
prior year)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Computer Software - - - _ i

Total additions of
Intangible capital assets

35.2 Disposals

Disposals of Intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Assets Sold Transfer out or Total Disposals Cash received
destroyed or actual

scrapped
R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Computer Software - - - _

Total Disposal of Intangible capital assets - - - -
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35.3 Intangible Capital Assets

Movement in Intangible Capital Assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2015

Opening Balance Current year Additions Disposals  Closing balance
adjustments
to prior year
balances
R’ R’ R’ R’ R
Computer Software 4 - - ,
TOTAL 4 - - - 4

36.

IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Movement in Immovable Tangible Capital Assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Opening Balance Current year Additions Disposals Closing balance
adjustments
to prior year
balances
R’000 R'000 R’000 R'000 R’000
Other fixed Structures 951 - 118 7) 1062
TOTAL 951 - 118 (7) 1062
36.1 Additions
Additions to Immovable Tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016
Cash Non-cash (Capital work-in- Received current Total
progress current not paid (paid
costs and current year
finance lease received prior
payments) year)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Description
Other Fixed Structures - - 118 - 118
Total additions of
Immovable Tangible - - 118 - 118

capital assets

National Treasury
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36.2 Disposals

Disposals of Inmovable Tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Assets Sold Transfer out or Total Disposals Cash received
destroyed or actual
scrapped
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’'000
Description
Other Fixed Structures - 7) - -
Total Disposal of Inmovable ) @) ) )

Tangible capital assets

36.3 Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

Movement in Immovable Tangible Capital Assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2016

Opening Balance Current year Additions Disposals  Closing balance
adjustments
to prior year
balances
R’000 R’000 R’000 R'000 R'000
Other fixed Structures 615 - 362 (26) 951
TOTAL 615 - 362 (26) 951
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Note 2015/16 2014/15
R’000 R’000

37. AGENT-PRINCIPAL ARRANGEMENTS

37.1 Department acting as the principal

Government Pension Administration Agency (GPAA) 3967 698 3730935
Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) - 1241431
Government Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC) 693 000 -
Total 4660 698 4972366

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement with the Government Pensions Administration Agency which
render administrative services on behalf of the National Treasury with respect to Post-Retirement Medical subsidies, Military
Pensions, Injury on Duty, Special Pensions and other pensions in relation to Judges, former State Presidents, Magistrates and
Parliamentary Office Bearers and other administration as agreed between the Parties and specified in the Administration
Agreement. In addition, National Treasury allocated R9 billion to the Employment Creation Facilitation Fund for the Jobs Fund
and the DBSA was appointed as the implementing agent for implementation, management and administration of the Jobs
Fund. The agreement was terminated on 30 September 2014 and GTAC took over as implementing agent of the Jobs Fund
to the instructed suppliers after beginning 01 April 2015. The prior year amount of R1.2 billion for the DBSA was restated in
line with the Modified Cash Standard and relates to the principal/ agency relationship that existed in the prior year but was
terminated in September 2014, as a result it was omitted at the reporting date.
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ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2016
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